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          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome,

          3  everyone, to today's joint hearing of the Public

          4  Safety Committee and the Education Committee on the

          5  oversight of the Department of Education's policy

          6  banning cell phones in public schools and related

          7  legislation.

          8                 First, I'd like to thank the

          9  Education Chair Robert Jackson and his entire staff

         10  for all the work they've done in preparation for

         11  this hearing.

         12                 We will also be conducting a hearing

         13  on Intro No. 351, which is currently before the

         14  Public Safety Committee, that seeks to allow

         15  children to carry cell phones to and from school for

         16  safety purposes, and today we'll be discussing also

         17  Resos 342 and 360-A, which are currently before the

         18  Education Committee.

         19                 Reso 342 calls on the Department of

         20  Education to place a moratorium on the confiscation

         21  of student cell phones during random searches of

         22  middle schools and high schools, to immediately

         23  convene public hearings in every community school

         24  district to discuss its policy banning cell phones.

         25                 Reso 360-A calls upon the State
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          2  Legislature to amend the Education Law in relation

          3  to the use and possession of cell phones by

          4  students.

          5                 I'm going to go off my prepared

          6  remarks for a second. Obviously, after we do our

          7  openings we'll be hearing from Dennis Walcott and

          8  Terrance Tolbert, and I happen to like both of you

          9  personally. I like the Mayor and I like the job that

         10  you guys are doing at schools, that might not be the

         11  politically correct position up here, but I happen

         12  to think you're doing a great job. Like I said, I

         13  like both of you, but I love my daughters, and I got

         14  my 12-year-old a cell phone for her birthday, not

         15  too long ago, and I want her to have it on the way

         16  to and from school.

         17                 My 12-year-old will be taking a bus

         18  to Manhattan next year. It's an hour, hour and a

         19  half ride, and when you testify you will need to

         20  answer the questions of parents like myself, who

         21  want to know why their children can't be as safe as

         22  it is possible to be because the Department of

         23  Education can't figure out what to do with cell

         24  phones once they're brought to school. I want to

         25  address that when you testify.
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          2                 I know what you're going to say,

          3  because Chair Jackson and I did some radio this

          4  morning, and they read your prepared responses about

          5  cell phones being used to send gang messages, cell

          6  phones being used to cheat, being a disruption. But

          7  you know, we here in the City Council are not yet

          8  ready to cede the schools to that type of behavior,

          9  to let cheaters and thugs prevent good kids from

         10  having cell phones on the way to and from school.

         11                 So, again, the job you're doing I

         12  think is a great one. The Mayor and yourselves have

         13  been able to arrest control from the Board of Ed,

         14  something that's never been done, so I think you can

         15  probably figure out this issue. There's got to be a

         16  compromise that we can come to. We're going to look

         17  to work with the parents in the audience, with the

         18  advocates in the audience, the unions, Council

         19  members you see sitting up here, to come up with

         20  some sort of working compromise which will allow our

         21  children to be safe to and from school and allow you

         22  to do your job, which is to educate those kids

         23  without disruption while they're in school.

         24                 That being said, I'm not going to

         25  even get back into my prepared remarks, I'm going to
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          2  turn it over to Chair Jackson for a brief opening

          3  statement and then we'll hear from the sponsors of

          4  both of these bills.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

          6  Chairman Peter Vallone, and this is a day in which I

          7  guess that the people of New York City will have an

          8  opportunity to be heard on this very, very important

          9  issue. And good morning, and welcome.

         10                 Council Member Vallone has just

         11  announced the agenda to today's hearing, and I want

         12  to make a few remarks and then we'll move on to

         13  opening statements from some of my other colleagues

         14  that have sponsored bills and resolutions.

         15                 The Chancellor's Regulation A-412 and

         16  the DOE's Citywide discipline code prohibits

         17  students from possessing cell phones on school

         18  property unless a parent obtains prior approval from

         19  a principal for medical reasons.

         20                 According to DOE, most schools have

         21  followed "don't ask, don't tell" policy, with regard

         22  to students' possession of cell phones, but recently

         23  there has been a spike in the confiscation of cell

         24  phones at some schools because of a new safety

         25  initiative that has brought mobile scanners to some
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          2  of the City's middle and high schools.

          3                 Though the purpose of the initiative,

          4  according to the Administration, is to prevent

          5  students from bringing dangerous weapons into

          6  schools, so far cell phones has been the primary

          7  item confiscating at schools that have been

          8  subjected to random searches.

          9                 Just to give you an idea of the

         10  proportion, in the first 12 days of the Initiative,

         11  approximately 800 cell phones were confiscated from

         12  students. Now, I think that we all know that in this

         13  day and age, meaning 2006, many kids have cell

         14  phones, and they're going to bring them to school.

         15                 A lot of kids have to travel long

         16  distances to get to school, and their cell phone is

         17  the only contact they have to the adults in their

         18  lives, not only to coming and going from school, but

         19  many students are involved in after school programs,

         20  sports programs, kids have jobs, they're going to

         21  pick up younger siblings, the whole gamut of things

         22  which parents want to communicate with their

         23  children.

         24                 In some ways DOE's don't ask, don't

         25  tell policy acknowledges this, and it also
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          2  acknowledges at a practical matter it will be very

          3  difficult to have a quote/unquote true absolute ban

          4  on student's possession of cell phones.

          5                 But what the Department of Education

          6  is doing, in essence, is telling kids, you're not

          7  supposed to have the phones, but we know that you're

          8  going to have them, so just don't get caught.

          9                 Well, that's not the way we operate.

         10  Of course, this is the case in most schools, but not

         11  in the schools that have roaming metal detectors, or

         12  in the schools that have permanent metal detectors.

         13  In those schools, the policy is that your phone will

         14  be confiscated, and that's the end of the story.

         15                 And, so, when you have permanent

         16  metal detectors or if there is knowledge that

         17  they're going to have the portable scanners, then

         18  students try all kinds of ways to ensure that they

         19  can have their cell phones after this. They go to

         20  bodegas and candy stores and checks them in there

         21  and pay a dollar or whatever the small fee is. They

         22  hide them in bushes, underneath cars, in alleyways,

         23  any way they can, in order to make sure they will

         24  have their cell phones when they get out of school,

         25  and this is not the way we want our children to
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          2  behave.

          3                 Now, this doesn't make a lot of sense

          4  to me. You can't have a policy that is administered

          5  inconsistently, and you can't have a policy that

          6  doesn't take into account real-world realities.

          7                 You also can't have a policy that

          8  disregards concerns of parents for the safety of

          9  their children, as Council Member Peter Vallone

         10  pointed out with his daughter. And as Council Member

         11  Lew Fidler points out to me regarding his son, and

         12  many other Council members concerning their

         13  children.

         14                 We know that there is no perfect

         15  solution to this, and I've advocated that we work it

         16  out. But it appears as though Mayor Bloomberg is not

         17  willing to work it out. At least that's what he's

         18  communicated as far as his radio programs and other

         19  responses to whether or not he is going to be

         20  flexible or bend on this particular matter.

         21                 But we also know that we need to sit

         22  down together and figure out different ways to go

         23  about doing this. We try to teach our children and

         24  try to communicate with each other that talking to

         25  one another and compromising is extremely important,
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          2  especially in today's age.

          3                 We hope that this hearing will help

          4  this proceed along, so without any further ado, I

          5  would like to turn the floor back over to my

          6  co-chair Peter Vallone, Jr., in order to have our

          7  colleagues say a few words.

          8                 Peter.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Chair

         10  Jackson.

         11                 Just for planning purposes, we will

         12  be hearing from the Department of Education, and

         13  then a few elected officials may be showing up, and

         14  we also have representatives from the UFT will be

         15  here, NYCLU is here, we have some parents groups, we

         16  have a group of principals actually that will be

         17  testifying in favor of the Board of Education

         18  position, so that will all be coming up this

         19  morning.

         20                 I would like to introduce the Council

         21  members who are here so far. We have Helen Foster,

         22  David Weprin, Lew Fidler, Jimmy Oddo, Letitia James.

         23  In the front we have Jessica Lappin, Dan Garodnick,

         24  and Miguel Martinez and Leroy Comrie.

         25                 Thank you all for coming to this very
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          2  important hearing, but the sponsors of our

          3  legislation will be afforded an opportunity to make

          4  a brief opening.

          5                 So, first let me turn to Lew Fidler.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you,

          7  Chairman Vallone.

          8                 This day for me has been a long time

          9  coming. We are here today in my view to reconnect

         10  the Department of Education with reality in the Year

         11  2006.

         12                 This issue was brought home to me,

         13  not just in my own, you know, my own kids, but by

         14  the parents in Madison High School -- I hope that

         15  they're here today. I don't know out there in the

         16  bright lights whether you're out there, but if you

         17  are, I hope we're going to hear from you -- who

         18  first complained to me when Madison became a

         19  scanning school that cell phones were being taken

         20  from their kids. And I had asked then Education

         21  Chairperson Eva Moskowitz to hold on a hearing on

         22  that policy, and I certainly appreciate the quick

         23  hearing that we're getting from Chairman Vallone and

         24  Chairman Jackson on my legislation today. And I do

         25  want to point out to everybody that's here that we
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          2  have 38 co-sponsors on this legislation. And for

          3  those of you who don't know about New York City

          4  Council civics, that's more votes than we would need

          5  to override a Mayoral veto.

          6                 So, I certainly hope it won't come to

          7  that. And I have repeatedly said when asked, I would

          8  like to change this policy with the Mayor, not over

          9  the Mayor. But if that's what it's going to take,

         10  that's what we're going to have to do.

         11                 And I have had two children attending

         12  New York City public schools. I have one now, and I

         13  have to tell you, I had a little bit of street

         14  theater planned for today, but unfortunately my son

         15  Harry is taking a Regents, so he couldn't come here

         16  today. But he was going to come here today and sit

         17  in that well with a paperbag over his head, because

         18  as a student at a New York City high school, being

         19  told that his cell phone is just as illegal to bring

         20  into school as a gun or a knife, he would be afraid

         21  to disclose his identity.

         22                 Because quite frankly, that's the

         23  comparison that was made at the outset of this

         24  debate by Mayor Bloomberg. I would hope he regrets

         25  those words. And certainly, he needs to understand,
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          2  the Administration needs to understand, DOE needs to

          3  understand, the reality that we all live in today

          4  and the necessity for cell phones.

          5                 I've heard all the arguments. Oh,

          6  what did we do before cell phones existed? And you

          7  know, I kind of laughed because it occurred to me

          8  what did my mother say to me, what did we do before

          9  computers? And I would always respond to her, what

         10  your mother used to say to you, what did we do

         11  before we had freezers?

         12                 Well, I don't think we need to go

         13  back to blocks of ice. Technology moves on. I've

         14  heard that we use cell phones to cheat on exams.

         15  Well, let me tell you something, kids have cheated

         16  on exams, it's a terrible thing, but before cell

         17  phones they cheated on exams with pen and paper, and

         18  we didn't take pen and paper away from them.

         19                 You know, I've heard that, you know,

         20  cell phones are used to congregate kids who are bent

         21  on causing trouble, to gang activity. But I've also

         22  heard that kids use cell phones to call for help

         23  when they see something happening. It's just the

         24  world we live in, and please, please, please, don't

         25  tell me that a child can run and find a working
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          2  payphone. Because we all know the reality that there

          3  aren't as many payphones as there used to be, and

          4  they aren't where we need them. And one of the

          5  reasons we don't have as many payphones is because

          6  people have cell phones, and they don't work.

          7  They're not working.

          8                 So that, you know, all the arguments

          9  I've heard just seem to be disingenuous and come

         10  down to I don't want to. I don't want to hear that

         11  principals and teachers are not disciplinarians,

         12  because in fact, they certainly are, it's a

         13  necessary component of what they do, and we are

         14  certainly telling kids the absolute wrong thing when

         15  we say it's against the rules but you can do it if

         16  you don't tell.

         17                 What kind of respect for the law does

         18  that show and teach a young person in this City, and

         19  I would submit absolutely none at all.

         20                 So, we have to bring this policy into

         21  line with the expectations of parents and students

         22  and teachers and administrators in the Year 2006. My

         23  son takes two buses to school every day. We all know

         24  that sometimes there's a problem with service. My

         25  wife and I want to know when he's going to be late,
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          2  why he's going to be late, if there's a problem.

          3  This is what the world is today. And I hope that

          4  this hearing today will be heard by DOE, will be

          5  heard by the Mayor, that they will come to their

          6  senses and understand that parents in this City need

          7  to be able to reach their children in an emergency,

          8  no one is asking kids to be able to have cell phones

          9  on their person -- I'm sorry, during the school day

         10  but on their person, turned off, except in a dire

         11  emergency, is absolutely the order of the day.

         12                 I thank the Chairman of these

         13  Committees for holding this hearing, and I promise

         14  that if the Mayor doesn't hear the message, that we

         15  will do here in the City Council what it takes to

         16  get the job done. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         18  Councilman Fidler.

         19                 Let me try this again, I'll turn it

         20  over for a brief opening statement to Council Member

         21  Tish James.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

         23                 It's unfortunate that this issue has

         24  come down to a test of wills for this

         25  Administration. Cell phones are not weapons, they
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          2  are a lifeline.

          3                 For this City Council, it is an issue

          4  of safety, convenience and reality. There is a

          5  disconnect, a disconnect between public policy, and

          6  21st century technology, a disconnect between DOE

          7  and working class families. The two resolutions I

          8  introduced, the first resolution indicates that the

          9  ban on cell phones is necessary because cellular

         10  phones have been used for, the Administration would

         11  have you believe that a ban on cell phones is

         12  necessary, because cellular phones have been used

         13  for improper purposes and are disrupted in the

         14  classroom.

         15                 Yet, there has been no concrete

         16  evidence submitted to this City Council to support

         17  that contention.

         18                 Assemblyperson Nolan has introduced a

         19  bill in the Assembly, Assembly Bill 11425, which

         20  would allow a student to carry a cell phone into a

         21  school facility but would prohibit a student from

         22  using such phone during regular school hours. That

         23  bill has been also introduced in the Senate by

         24  Senator Marchi from Staten Island. My resolution

         25  supports the introduction of the bill in the
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          2  Assembly and in the Senate, and urges that bill to

          3  pass in both houses, and it's my understanding that

          4  that bill is on its way to passage in State, in

          5  Albany.

          6                 In addition to that, I've introduced

          7  Resolution 342, which would call upon DOE to place a

          8  moratorium on the confiscation of student cell

          9  phones during random searches of middle and high

         10  schools to immediately convene public hearings.

         11                 It would also convene public hearings

         12  in every community school district to discuss its

         13  public policy banning cell phones in public schools,

         14  and to develop in consultation with all interested

         15  parties an alternative policy governing the presence

         16  of cell phones on school property.

         17                 It's important to note that this

         18  resolution also calls into question the fact that

         19  recent it has taken students several days for them

         20  to retrieve their cell phone, and this resolution

         21  would note that DOE is exceeding its authority by

         22  effectively prohibiting students from carrying and

         23  using cell phones to and from school.

         24                 Lastly, let me say that I think this

         25  policy, and I'm certain that my friend at the ACLU
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          2  will agree, is capricious and totally arbitrary,

          3  based on any evidence.

          4                 But let me tell you about a personal

          5  story. I want to tell you about a young child that I

          6  met last week who happens to live next door to me.

          7                 This child lives with her

          8  grandmother. This child happens to be an exceptional

          9  child, who is being raised by her grandmother. Her

         10  grandmother cannot afford taxis, cannot afford for a

         11  child to be chauffeured to school. This child goes

         12  to Bronx Science and Tech. Both of her parents were

         13  lost, unfortunately, to the streets, to drug abuse.

         14  This grandmother, an elderly grandmother, all that

         15  she wants is for her child to succeed. All that she

         16  wants is for her child to give back to the

         17  community. She wants her child to go to one of the

         18  best schools, and Bronx School of Science is an

         19  excellent school, a specialized school. Her

         20  lifeline, to make sure that her grandchild goes to

         21  the Bronx from Brooklyn, Clinton Hill, is that cell

         22  phone.

         23                 She calls her when she gets off from

         24  school, when she gets off of the subway, when she

         25  comes home, when she goes to the after school
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          2  programs. It's for that reason, for that

          3  grandmother, my neighbor, that I am supporting this

          4  resolution, and supporting the bill, and hoping that

          5  the Assembly and the Senate passes it as soon as

          6  possible, so that children, all children can become

          7  productive members of society, so that they can have

          8  a lifeline to their parents, and as we create all

          9  these wonderful schools in the City of New York, so

         10  that we can have more children like my neighbor, who

         11  is an exceptional student. So I'm doing this for

         12  Lilly.

         13                 Lilly, this one is for you.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         16  Council member.

         17                 We've also been joined by Council

         18  Members Arroyo, Gerson and Vacca, and we're honored

         19  today to have with us our Public Advocate Betsy

         20  Gotbaum, to make a brief opening statement.

         21                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Good

         22  morning. Thank you, Chair Jackson and Chair Vallone,

         23  for holding this very important meeting. Good

         24  morning, members of the Administration.

         25                 I'd like to start by addressing any
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          2  undue concerns about what I and thousands of other

          3  New Yorkers have proposed. We are not advocating

          4  that students be allowed to use their cell phones in

          5  schools to download pornography, cheat, initiate

          6  violence, or any number of things that have been

          7  talked about here.

          8                 What we believe is that cell phones

          9  should not be seen, nor heard, in the school. A cell

         10  phone used in school should be taken from the

         11  student that is using it. It's that simple. And it's

         12  what the vast majority of schools around the country

         13  are doing. It's school policy in Los Angeles,

         14  Chicago, Miami, Houston, San Diego and Dallas.

         15                 In fact, after reviewing the cell

         16  phone policies of the nation's 15 largest school

         17  systems, we found that New York is one of only three

         18  that ban cell phones all together.

         19                 So, clearly we believe the Department

         20  of Education is out at the mainstream on this issue.

         21                 My office has heard from thousands of

         22  parents who are justifiably upset because of an

         23  important line of communication with their children

         24  is being cut off.

         25                 They want to know why their right to
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          2  keep in touch has been suspended by an out-of-date

          3  regulation. We all want to know why so close to the

          4  end of this school year Department of Education

          5  suddenly began to vigorously enforce a longstanding

          6  rule that was mostly ignored up to now.

          7                 The biggest mystery of all is the

          8  City's stubbornness on this issue, it's

          9  unwillingness to recognize parents' and students'

         10  reliance on cell phones in a post-9/11 world in

         11  which we live.

         12                 On Saturday, in a speech to graduates

         13  at the University of Chicago, Mayor Bloomberg said,

         14  and I quote, there is nothing, absolutely nothing

         15  wrong with criticizing our government on any topic

         16  and challenging it to live up to the democratic

         17  ideals."

         18                 But that's not the message that he's

         19  sending to students, parents, teachers and all the

         20  elected officials, who are concerned about this

         21  Administration's cell phone policy.

         22                 His response to our criticism has

         23  been angry and dismissive. We need a sensible cell

         24  phone policy. We need a policy that does not treat

         25  the vast majority of students who use their phones
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          2  appropriately like criminals. We need a policy that

          3  does not cause alarm to parents, or for that matter

          4  to you at the DOE.

          5                 So, if the DOE continues to refuse to

          6  listen to reason on this issue, and come into the

          7  mainstream on the cell phone policy, it must at

          8  least continue its practice of returning phones to

          9  students at the end of the school day.

         10                 It's ironic, a widely circulated

         11  suggestion that enjoyed a great deal of support, was

         12  the idea of allowing students to take phones to

         13  schools and store them in lockers near the entrance.

         14  But this was strongly resistent, and in practice,

         15  isn't the Department of Education doing exactly the

         16  same thing? Just without the security and efficiency

         17  of the lockers?

         18                 So, where are the confiscated phones

         19  being kept? How are the schools keeping track of

         20  them, and making sure they're returned to the kids

         21  at the end of the day? These are questions that I

         22  hope the DOE will answer today.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Madam

         25  Public Advocate.
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          2                 I would like to now finally turn it

          3  over to our first panel.

          4                 We're also joined by Council Member

          5  Recchia, first of all. Thank you. And the panel will

          6  consist of Deputy Mayor Dennis Walcott, and the

          7  Director of the Office of Intergovernmental Affairs,

          8  Terence Tolbert. Thank you both for being with us

          9  this morning. The floor is yours.

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Thank you very

         11  much, and good morning, Chair Vallone and also Chair

         12  Jackson, as well as members of the City Council. I

         13  am Deputy Mayor Dennis Walcott, and it's a pleasure

         14  to be here today speaking to you about our City's

         15  policy banning cell phones in our public schools,

         16  and as indicated by you, Chair Vallone, I am joined

         17  by Terrence Tolbert, who is the Executive Director

         18  of the Office of Intergovernmental Affairs for the

         19  New York City Department of Education.

         20                 As we discuss the ban of cell phones

         21  in our school, we should all keep in mind the

         22  fundamental goals of our schools, which is to ensure

         23  that our schools provide all of our students with a

         24  high-quality education.

         25                 The many reforms we've undertaken in
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          2  our schools over the past four years have focused on

          3  achieving this goal of excellent teaching and

          4  learning for all students.

          5                 Our Citywide core curriculum, the end

          6  of social promotion in grades three, five and seven,

          7  and individualized intervention and support for

          8  struggling students, improved professional

          9  development, more than 20 million new books and

         10  materials in classrooms, the Leadership Academy,

         11  parent coordinators, new small schools, increased

         12  school safety and the Impact Schools Initiative,

         13  development of multiple pathways of graduation,

         14  expansion of gifted and talented and advanced

         15  placement programs, our Empowerment Schools

         16  Initiative, all of these reforms under the Mayor's

         17  and Chancellor's leadership and the hard work of so

         18  many administrators, educators and students, and

         19  families, have put New York City schools and

         20  students on a path to success.

         21                 I would like to take a moment to read

         22  a part of a Chancellor's memo into the record, and

         23  the memo indicates:

         24                 "As part of my program to make the

         25  New York City public schools safe havens for
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          2  learning, I have instituted a ban on beepers, pagers

          3  and other similar personal communication devices in

          4  all schools.

          5                 Principals should inform students,

          6  parents and staff that possession and use of beepers

          7  on school property is prohibited and that all

          8  beepers and other equipment will be confiscated.

          9                 In limited circumstances a student

         10  may need a beeper in order to communicate with

         11  medical personnel or family members. Students must

         12  obtain approval of the Principal in such

         13  situations."

         14                 This memo was written by Chancellor

         15  Richard Green in 1988. The Chancellor's Regulation

         16  that prohibits possession of communication devices

         17  has existed for years because the recognition that

         18  in a school building, teaching and learning are

         19  paramount, and interference with that cannot be

         20  tolerated.

         21                 In Chancellor Green's day it was

         22  beepers and pagers that disrupted school safety and

         23  learning, today we also have cell phones which

         24  present so much more opportunity for distraction and

         25  disruption.
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          2                 Cell phones with their multiple

          3  capability are not just phones. They offer a

          4  remarkable capacity for us to be plugged in in

          5  almost any time and place to make and receive calls,

          6  to send and receive text messages, to take advantage

          7  and receive photographs, to surf the web, to play

          8  video games, and to watch videos. But in our schools

          9  and in our classrooms, the focus must be on

         10  learning.

         11                 Unfortunately the reality is that if

         12  cell phones are allowed in our schools, they will be

         13  used, and they will be used inappropriately. Cell

         14  phones present so many options for use beyond

         15  emergency communication that students will take

         16  advantage of these options.

         17                 In a learning environment, each time

         18  a cell phone rings, or the temptation to check

         19  messages or to send messages or find entertainment

         20  is answered, the learning process is disrupted.

         21                 Inevitably, learning is disrupted not

         22  only for the student with the cell phone, but for

         23  those around him or her as well.

         24                 When what is at stake is the right of

         25  every student to get the best education possible,
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          2  the potential and actual disruptiveness caused by

          3  cell phones is unacceptable.

          4                 It is our responsibility to prevent

          5  the more serious offenses linked to cell phone

          6  possession as well. Students have used cell phones

          7  to summon friends for fights, to cheat on exams and

          8  to take illicit photographs.

          9                 Many students have become victims of

         10  theft or violence related to cell phones, and we

         11  take seriously our duty to provide safe and orderly

         12  environments that are conducive to teaching and

         13  learning.

         14                 I understand Chair Jackson and Chair

         15  Vallone, that you were on radio this morning and a

         16  number of teachers called stating that they do not

         17  want to be on cell phone duty. We do not want to

         18  burden our teachers and our staff for the type of

         19  responsibility in classrooms, in the bathrooms,

         20  locker rooms, or hallways. The opportunity is too

         21  great for misuse of cell phones and for an

         22  unjustifiable amount of staff time being diverted

         23  from instruction.

         24                 The bill that has been drafted,

         25  Intro. 351 raises false expectations for parents and
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          2  students. It avoids the core issue regarding the

          3  place of cell phones in schools. At the same time,

          4  any effort to supplant the Chancellor's ability to

          5  determine policy in this area would be unacceptable.

          6                 The desire of parents to contact

          7  their children in case of emergency is truly

          8  understandable.

          9                 However, parents can reach their

         10  children whenever necessary during a school day by

         11  calling school directly or calling 3-1-1 for any

         12  schools contact information.

         13                 While the opportunity to reach a

         14  student's cell phone may be more convenient, the

         15  opportunity for disruption in our schools is too

         16  great.

         17                 Thank you for your ongoing hard work

         18  on behalf of our students. We value your input as we

         19  work together to strengthen our New York City public

         20  schools, and now I'll defer to Terrence Tolbert.

         21                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: Thank

         22  you, Deputy Mayor Walcott.

         23                 Good morning, Chairman Jackson and

         24  Vallone, members of the New York City Council's

         25  Education and Public Safety Committees, and to all
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          2  gathered in the Chamber for this hearing on cell

          3  phone policy in New York City schools.

          4                 My name is Terrence Tolbert and I am

          5  the Executive Director of the Office of

          6  Intergovernmental Affairs for the New York City

          7  Department of Education.

          8                 Originally I was thinking of dialing

          9  your cell phones, as well as numbers of reporters

         10  and staff gathered here this morning. I bet a few

         11  would have wrung, and a few would have been

         12  answered, but I do not need to make the point that

         13  cell phones are disruptive. We all know that from

         14  experience. Ringing and vibrating cell phones are

         15  problematic in government, in business, and

         16  especially in our schools.

         17                 We have all experienced individuals

         18  who answer their phones at movies or do not switch

         19  them to silent, vibrate or off during theatrical

         20  performances. We've all watched as passengers won't

         21  get off the phone when instructed to by flight

         22  attendants well after the plane has closed its

         23  doors.

         24                 The worst are individuals who talk

         25  loud enough so that all of us can hear their
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          2  conversation, not understanding that cell phone

          3  etiquette dictates that a two-way conversation is

          4  between the two people on the phone and not everyone

          5  in the room.

          6                 All these modern day circumstances

          7  are the result of technology that allows each of us

          8  the opportunity to access each other immediately.

          9  Technology is great and convenient; however, I am

         10  certain that no one on the Council would disagree

         11  that there are those who abuse the use of this

         12  technology, hence the reason why the City Council

         13  passed Introductory 257-A which later became Local

         14  Law 9 of 2003.

         15                 This law prohibits an individual from

         16  dialing, talking on or listening to receiving calls

         17  signaled by audible sound on mobile phones, in place

         18  of public performance while at a theater, musical,

         19  dance, motion picture or lecture. The penalty for

         20  such an infraction is $50.

         21                 Passing Local Law 9 was important to

         22  this City Council because you believed cell phones

         23  to be so disruptive that a message had to be sent.

         24  Unfortunately, Local Law 9 has done little to change

         25  bad cell phone etiquette in public performance
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          2  spaces.

          3                 It strikes me as curious, though,

          4  that the same Council that opposes the disruption of

          5  cell phones in New York City theaters would endorse

          6  the same disruption in our classrooms.

          7                 The truth is that when the person

          8  next to me uses his or her cell phone in the movie

          9  theater, I am angry, but at worst, the only thing

         10  that is disturbed is my leisure time. When the

         11  student sitting next to my nieces or nephews uses a

         12  phone, the loss is time spent learning.

         13                 Chancellor's Regulation A-412 was

         14  created in 1988 to deal a serious and escalating

         15  problem, the use of pagers in our school system for

         16  illegal purposes. Present day cell phones and other

         17  types of two-way devices present new problems. Today

         18  personal communication devices are no longer just

         19  phones. They're MP3 players, cameras, video and

         20  sound records, gaming systems, dress accessories,

         21  and are able to access the internet. They come with

         22  speakerphones and walkie-talkie modes and a variety

         23  of ring-tones that range from the traditional to the

         24  absurd.

         25                 More troubling is today's student,
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          2  through the use or possession of a cell pone can

          3  become the target and victim of bullying, violence,

          4  and/or robbery. Cll phones have been used in

          5  association with drug and gang-related activities.

          6  They can also be used to hide small weapons such as

          7  razors. Picture and video phones have been used to

          8  obtain photos that clearly violate students'

          9  privacy. Text messages and camera phones have been

         10  connected to cheating on exams.

         11                 Cell phones distract teachers and

         12  students and disrupt learning. Despite this, some

         13  parents want their children to have cell phones. I

         14  understand why a parent might want his or her child

         15  to have a phone, but that does not outweigh the

         16  problems associated with cell phone use or

         17  possession on school grounds.

         18                 Introductory No. 351 seeks to grant

         19  parents the right for their children to have cell

         20  phones to and from school. It does not address

         21  possession of cell phones in schools. The Council

         22  leaves the question of what happens to phones once

         23  they enter our schools up to the Department of

         24  Education.

         25                 Chancellor's Regulation states that
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          2  cell phones are not to be on school grounds. This

          3  might be an easy answer to question in other

          4  districts, but here it's not so simple.

          5                 As you know, the Department of

          6  Education is responsible for 1.1 million students

          7  education and well-being. They are the largest

          8  public school system in the nation with over 1,400

          9  schools. Our student body is larger than the

         10  population of the next largest City in the State of

         11  New York, and our rules are clear: Cell phones and

         12  other communication devices are not allowed in

         13  schools, plain and simple.

         14                 A student with a medical excuse or

         15  special need might require the use of a cell phone.

         16  Chancellor's Regulation A-412 allows for such

         17  exception.

         18                 I would like to thank Public Advocate

         19  Betsy Gotbaum for working with us to better define

         20  what those medical needs might be, and how parents

         21  can be better informed about this exception. The

         22  Department of Education understands the conveniences

         23  cell phones provide for parents, but that cannot

         24  outweigh our most critical priority, which is to

         25  educate their children.
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          2                 Public safety, like education, is one

          3  of the hallmarks of this Administration. In fact,

          4  you might remember that New York City was recently

          5  recognized as one of the safest cities in America.

          6  Crime is down, the economy is doing better, and the

          7  quality of life is at an all-time high.

          8                 It's not utopia, but there are fewer

          9  and fewer incidents of random violence. And

         10  regardless of these successes we still need to

         11  protect the 1.1 million students who remain vigilant

         12  during the school day.

         13                 Part of that responsibility means

         14  making policies that work for everyone, not just a

         15  select few.

         16                 Chancellor's Regulation A-412 and the

         17  cell phone policy therein, were created to provide

         18  our students with a safe and productive learning

         19  environment.

         20                 This policy stems from the days of

         21  Chancellor Richard Green who banned beepers, pagers,

         22  an other similar communication devices in all

         23  schools on December 13th, 1988.

         24                 In his memorandum to Community School

         25  Board Presidents, Superintendents, Executive
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          2  Directors, Heads of Offices and Principals, he

          3  stated that this measure was part of his program to

          4  make New York City Public Schools safe havens for

          5  learning and personal communication devices would be

          6  confiscated would be found on school grounds.

          7                 He further went to say that limited

          8  circumstances, a student might need a beeper to

          9  communicate with medical personnel or family

         10  members.

         11                 In those cases a student would need

         12  to obtain approval from a principal. If Intro. 351

         13  were to become law, it would not solve and will in

         14  fact exacerbate all of the problems that are

         15  inherently connected to cell phone use and

         16  possession in schools, jeopardizing school safety

         17  and ultimately undermining the teaching and learning

         18  process.

         19                 As you may be aware, Senator Duane

         20  and State Assemblymember Nolan have introduced

         21  legislation on the State level which would require

         22  the Commissioner of Education to establish rules,

         23  regulations and guidelines regarding the use and

         24  possession of mobile phones by students while in

         25  school.
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          2                 As part of this authorization, the

          3  bill provides that mobile telephones must be allowed

          4  into a school facility and would prohibit use in the

          5  classroom except in emergency situations.

          6                 Among other things, the proposed

          7  legislation would allow cell phone use in hallways,

          8  cafeterias and other areas of the school facility

          9  where such activities would be disruptive and

         10  contribute to difficulties experienced by many

         11  schools in maintaining order in these common spaces.

         12                 In addition, the legislation would

         13  require the commissioner to include rules or

         14  regulations that prohibit confiscation of phones,

         15  even if the students were using the phones in a

         16  manner that disrupts the instructional program.

         17                 The flaws in this legislation do not,

         18  however, constitute the Department's primary

         19  objection. The Department objects to the provisions

         20  of this bill that strip districts of their authority

         21  to determine appropriate policies for schools in

         22  their charge.

         23                 It is the responsibility of district

         24  school boards, or in New York City the Chancellor,

         25  not the Legislature or the State Education
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          2  Commissioner, to determine policy and procedures

          3  that are appropriate to the instructional needs and

          4  climate of their schools.

          5                 The New York State School Board

          6  Association states that while such legislation is

          7  well intended, they believe it to be misguided.

          8  Boards of Education are elected by their communities

          9  to establish policies that best meet the needs and

         10  desires of their community. They further state that

         11   "in New York City, these decisions are

         12  appropriately made by the Chancellor."

         13                 The National School Safety and

         14  Security Services, an independent consulting firm

         15  that specializes in school security and

         16  emergency/crisis preparedness training also opposes

         17  district policies that allow students to have cell

         18  phones and pagers in schools.

         19                 They state that such devices detract

         20  from school efforts. They further state that cell

         21  phone policy must remain up to individual school

         22  districts, not the Commissioner or the Legislature

         23  to decide whether the advantages of cell phones

         24  outweigh their potential abuses and disruption on

         25  school property.
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          2                 A safe and orderly learning

          3  environment makes everything else possible in

          4  schools. It allows teachers to devote their full

          5  energy to teaching and enables students to

          6  concentrate on focus on learning. In a society where

          7  education is the difference between progress and

          8  stagnation, between success and failure, between

          9  opportunity and hopelessness, I am at a loss to

         10  understand why anyone would want to risk the

         11  education of our students for convenience.

         12                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         13  restate our position on this matter.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, thank you,

         15  both. Please, no comments from the audience.

         16                 I'm going to make some brief comments

         17  on your testimony, and I believe Chair Jackson and I

         18  will be deferring our questions, in deference of our

         19  fellow Council members who have a long list of

         20  questioning.

         21                 We've also been joined by Council

         22  Member DeBlasio. Thank you for coming down.

         23                 Commissioner Walcott (sic), first of

         24  all, you state that Chair Jackson and I were on the

         25  radio this morning, and that teachers called in
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          2  about the burden of being on cell phone duty. First

          3  of all, that's pretty impressive turn-around time

          4  for you. I'd like to congratulate you on that.

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Well, thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: But had we been

          8  given the opportunity to respond to those teachers,

          9  I would have said the following: The safety of our

         10  children -- now, first of all, you know, I discussed

         11  this in person, I think my kids' teachers are the

         12  greatest, but the safety of our children trumps any

         13  concern about beeper duty. It's a simple answer.

         14                 Now let me get to Mr. Tolbert's

         15  testimony. You went off on a tangent about cell

         16  phones in movie theaters. Now, let me say, that

         17  shows a fundamental misunderstanding about what

         18  we're doing here today.

         19                 There is no comparison between cell

         20  phones in movie theaters and what we're doing today.

         21  There is no safety concern of children when it comes

         22  to cell phones in movie theaters. It's just an

         23  annoyance. We're not taking them away from people in

         24  the theaters, they can make an emergency call, they

         25  can step out into a hallway any time they want. What
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          2  we're doing today is ensuring the safety of our

          3  kids, no comparison at all to cell phones in movie

          4  theaters.

          5                 You go on to say that, I guess since

          6  your pages aren't numbered, but the Department of

          7  Education understands the convenience that cell

          8  phones provide for parents, but that cannot outweigh

          9  our most critical priority, which is to educate our

         10  children.

         11                 Well, my priority as public safety

         12  chair is the safety of our children, making sure

         13  they get to and from school alive so that they can

         14  be educated.

         15                 And, again, none of us up here feels

         16  that these concerns are mutually exclusive. There is

         17  a way to ensure the safety of our kids and ensure

         18  that you're able to educate them without disruption.

         19  That's why we're here today.

         20                 I'm going to leave it to Tish James

         21  later to discuss the legislation in Albany. I'm sure

         22  you have some dispute with what you said there. But

         23  you ended with, "I'm at a loss to understand why

         24  anyone would want to risk the education of our

         25  students for convenience."
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          2                 I'm at a loss to understand why

          3  anyone would want to risk the safety of our students

          4  because they can't figure out what to do with phones

          5  in schools, so the kids don't use them improperly.

          6                 But that being said, let me turn it

          7  over to some of my colleagues.

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Chair Vallone,

          9  can I just respond for one second?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, of course.

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: We also respect

         12  your opinion around the issue of safety. And as you

         13  know, we've worked very closely, both with the

         14  Council and others around making sure that we have

         15  safe environments for our students. That's why we

         16  put in place a number of measures, including our

         17  Impact Program, including working closely with the

         18  Police Department and Department of Education and

         19  Criminal Justice Coordinator around the issue of

         20  safety and on the other side of it as well in that

         21  part of the challenge of the cell phone discussion

         22  is that unfortunately a number of our students are

         23  also preyed upon as a result of having cell phones

         24  and ipods, as well. But as you well know better than

         25  I do, that the City is now safer than it's ever been
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          2  before. We continue to reduce the number of

          3  incidents in the schools down year-by-year. I think

          4  we've made a very safe environment for our students,

          5  and our role is always to make it even safer. And,

          6  so, I don't think we're on different pages when it

          7  comes to the issue of safety. And when you talk

          8  about the quick turn-around and listening to the

          9  radio show this morning, it just happens to be that

         10  I listen to radio when I come into work, and I mean

         11  one of the things --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: With a word

         13  processor in the car?

         14                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: No, we're not

         15  that high-tech, because you guys would do a hearing

         16  if we had all that in our cars.

         17                 But I think the goal of having a

         18  joint committee of both Education and Public Safety

         19  addresses I think the joint concerns that we both

         20  have, in that how we increase the opportunity for

         21  teaching and learning to take place in our schools

         22  and to make sure that we provide an environment in

         23  our school buildings for teaching and learning to

         24  increase. And I think that's part of the response

         25  that some of the teachers were making in response to
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          2  your radio appearance this morning, we don't want to

          3  have them on cell phone duty. We don't want them to

          4  constantly interrupt their classes to stop an

          5  individual from using his or her cell phone or doing

          6  text messaging under the text.

          7                 And that's not to say that all

          8  students are doing that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: None of us want

         10  that.

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: But one student

         12  doing that is one too many. And I hear earlier that

         13  Council Member Fidler talked about pencil and

         14  papers. Well, this is not a pencil and paper age

         15  we're in. We're in a high-tech age, and a high-tech

         16  age requires us to make sure that we're even more

         17  vigilant, as far as providing the opportunity for

         18  our teachers to teach, and minimizing those

         19  disruptions in the use of cell phones and other

         20  electronic equipment as well.

         21                 So, just in response to some of the

         22  things you just mentioned earlier, and then I would

         23  be remiss because you started out by challenging us

         24  in a very appropriate way of saying your child going

         25  to school, and I did not want to ignore that. All of
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          2  us, I'm not sure about Terence, but I've had four

          3  children who have gone through the New York City

          4  public school system, who have gone to schools from

          5  point A to point B, utilizing a variety of buses,

          6  including me doing that as well, and I think our

          7  goal is to make sure that we have a safe

          8  environment, but a cell phone doesn't guarantee that

          9  safe environment. I think what the Mayor, in

         10  conjunction with the Council, has put in place, is

         11  creating safe corridors for our students to get to

         12  and from school.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, we applaud

         14  the work you're doing to keep our children safe. We

         15  understand that. But it wasn't my testimony that

         16  said at least four times the word "convenience" when

         17  it comes to cell phones, and that's not why any of

         18  us are up here.

         19                 Mr. Tolbert, you said that Intro. 351

         20  seeks to grant parents the rights to have cell

         21  phones, for their children to have cell phones to

         22  and from school, it does not address the possession

         23  of cell phones in school. You leave that question up

         24  to the Department of Education. Yes, we do, because

         25  we understand we don't have the right to do that. If
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          2  we did have the right, I would give you a policy

          3  right now. I'd say take it the first time, make a

          4  parent come and get the phone. The second time keep

          5  the phone. Give it to charity. You'll see how fast

          6  kids stop using their cell phones in school. It

          7  would be done right there and we could all go home.

          8                 So, if we had the authority, we would

          9  attempt to tell you what to do. But we don't, and

         10  that's why we're leaving it up to you, and we know

         11  you have some good people over there. We know you've

         12  done some great things and you can come up with a

         13  solution to this if you put your minds to it.

         14                 I will turn it over to my colleagues.

         15  We begin with Chair Weprin.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Thank you,

         17  Chair Vallone.

         18                 I, too, represent a district in

         19  Eastern Queens, where the overwhelming sentiment of

         20  the parents is in support of allowing them to have

         21  cell phones to and from school, and this has been an

         22  issue that's been raised in every Presidents'

         23  Council meeting, every PTA meeting, every school

         24  breakfast, over the last six months or so.

         25                 Let me ask a question to the two
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          2  panelists. It's been said about incidents of

          3  cheating that have occurred with the use of cell

          4  phones. Can someone demonstrate a statistic as to

          5  the rise of cheating as a result of using cell

          6  phones?

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I do not have

          8  stats talking about -- I don't think anybody used

          9  the word rising cheating. So, just to correct that

         10  part.

         11                 We do not have stats talking about

         12  the cheating. We will defer to the next panel who

         13  are principals who are directly on the line, as far

         14  as the issues that take place within their

         15  respective school buildings, as well as teachers who

         16  have encountered this problem.

         17                 So, from my vantage point, I do not

         18  have stats to give you, as far as the incident

         19  involving cheating.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: What about the

         21  number of fights that have increased as a result of

         22  students using cell phones? Do you have statistics

         23  on that?

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Again, you used

         25  the term "increase." If anything, we have been able
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          2  to reduce the number of incidents by making sure

          3  that we have policies in place and we have our

          4  school safety officers around the perimeters of the

          5  buildings that prevent that from occurring, and

          6  that's as a result of having a policy. And I think

          7  that also, Councilman, goes to something that was

          8  mentioned earlier, as far as all of a sudden we

          9  decided to do this. Quite frankly, there has been a

         10  ban on the use of cell phones and principals have

         11  taken that policy very seriously and make sure that

         12  it's enforced in their schools.

         13                 Yes, there are those schools where

         14  there has been a don't ask, don't tell, but at the

         15  same time, there are significant number of schools

         16  that have been very strict in their enforcement

         17  around the use of cell phones and I think there's a

         18  direct correlation in having our numbers go down

         19  around school incidents and that policy as well.

         20                 But quite frankly, I've just seen it

         21  in action. I mean, I know like all of you who have

         22  your respective communities that you're from, that

         23  when there is an issue developing out in the school

         24  grounds, there's not any more yelling come here,

         25  let's go fight. The people get on their cell phones

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2  and call the people who are in the neighborhood to

          3  come out for a fight, and that's just common sense

          4  and observation on what takes place in a number of

          5  areas.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: What about,

          7  you had a lot of testimony, Mr. Walcott, about

          8  protecting children from being either mugged or

          9  robbed, carrying cell phones. Can you cite a

         10  statistic on incidents of robberies or students

         11  being physically assaulted as a result of carrying a

         12  cell phone or having a cell phone?

         13                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: Chairman

         14  Weprin, in fact, we had a recent case where a

         15  student was leaving school, was attacked by a fellow

         16  student, and the one thing that was taken was the

         17  cell phone.

         18                 Having cell phones in a person is not

         19  an easy thing to track, as far as information is for

         20  us. But there are incidents of violence that have

         21  cell phones connected to them that people have

         22  documented. We're in an age of technology, but it's

         23  a technology that not everyone has and some people

         24  want, so cell phones are one of those things that

         25  are missing, stolen out of lockers, taken out of
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          2  pockets. We have cases of violent behavior related

          3  to the use of cell phones. These are in most cases

          4  thankfully singular incidents which are not going on

          5  systemwide, but they do occur.

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Let me, if I

          7  may? We, as of data through 6/8, those cell phones

          8  that have either been stolen in the schools, or the

          9  perimeter of the schools, are total of 693

         10  representing 27.8 percent of the incidents of theft

         11  that have taken place.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Missing or lost

         14  cell phones, 251, which represents 10.1 percent.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Let me ask --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: One second,

         17  please. Council Member Weprin, with respect to my

         18  colleagues, I want to be able to rotate the

         19  question, so that every member --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, but --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: -- Let me just

         22  finish please. Every member will have an opportunity

         23  to ask one, at the most two quick questions, so that

         24  every colleague that has questions will have an

         25  opportunity to ask them.
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          2                 I'm going to ask you, if you would

          3  please --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: One last

          5  follow-up.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Just, please.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Yes, I

          8  understand.

          9                 Is there a policy in schools,

         10  gentlemen, on the use of watches, or bringing

         11  watches to school? Watches that tell the time?

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I'm here for a

         13  serious discussion around cell phones. I'm not sure

         14  of the correlation to watches. I'm missing that,

         15  sir.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Well, a very

         17  relevant correlation.

         18                 You indicated that one of the

         19  problems with cell phones is it's a commodity that

         20  was valuable that other people wanted and would

         21  potentially create a victim situation. Why would not

         22  the same situation be created regarding watches?

         23                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I mean, if you

         24  want us to give you a breakdown of items that are

         25  stolen in school, I'll be glad to get the material
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          2  and submit it to the respective chairs, as far as

          3  items that are stolen in or around school grounds.

          4                 Since this hearing was about cell

          5  phones, I can respond very directly to you around

          6  thefts that take place involving cell phones itself.

          7  But if you want a break down of other items, I'll be

          8  glad to submit that to the Council.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: No, I'm just

         10  asking a simple question.

         11                 Is there a policy about bringing

         12  watches to school? Like a watch like this?

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I think

         14  obviously you know the answer to that. There is no

         15  policy around bringing watches to school, but

         16  watches do not prevent -- I'm not sure of the

         17  purpose of the question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: So, it's

         19  legal, it's admissible, students can bring watches

         20  to school; is that correct?

         21                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: You know the

         22  answer to that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: No, I'm asking

         24  you.

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

          4  Fidler. I'm going to ask my colleagues at the most

          5  two questions so we can move on to other colleagues

          6  that have questions also.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I'll --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: If we have

         10  additional time, we will get back for additional

         11  questions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I will try and

         13  restrain myself. First, I want to amen Chairman

         14  Vallone's suggested policy, which to me is a

         15  no-brainer. And just Council Member Weprin was kind

         16  of hitting on a point that I was also going to go to

         17  when, you know, in my day and age the story was

         18  don't wear -- you can't wear expensive sneakers to

         19  school. Now, of course, today all sneakers are

         20  expensive, so I guess this is not relevant. But

         21  because they were targets and theft, and I guess

         22  that's the other argument that I wanted to allude to

         23  in my opening statement that I hear that I just

         24  don't buy, it's not fair, it's not appropriate to

         25  say, well, someone might steal it. And Councilman
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          2  Weprin made his point very, very well, when he

          3  talked about watches, which are also an expensive

          4  commodity.

          5                 Deputy Mayor Walcott, I hope you know

          6  that I hold you in extremely high regard.

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Thank you, sir.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: For your

          9  intelligence and your integrity and your common

         10  sense, and, frankly, the Mayor probably doesn't

         11  know, but I hold him in that same high regard as

         12  well, and still I'm having a problem with why you

         13  guys don't get this. So, he walked into this Chamber

         14  a couple of weeks ago, and we were having a model

         15  City Council -- students that were selected by the

         16  Y, and he came in and spontaneously said, how many

         17  of you bring cell phones to class? And I corrected

         18  him and said, how many of you bring cell phones to

         19  school? And almost every hand shot up.

         20                 And I'd like to offer the opportunity

         21  to you and to the Mayor to meet with some of those

         22  kids or kids like them throughout the City of New

         23  York, so perhaps you can come to a better

         24  understanding of why we need to have cell phones,

         25  you know, on the possession of our students. Because
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          2  there's something that's, you know, to listen to

          3  your testimony and suggest that you're balancing

          4  these things, I don't think you've got the

          5  appropriate weight on the need, not the

          6  conveniences, again I amen Councilman Vallone, not

          7  the convenience, this is not about convenience, it's

          8  about the need.

          9                 So, I make that offer, and I do hope

         10  that you and the Mayor will take us up on that.

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: If I may for

         12  one second? You're making an assumption that we

         13  don't do that, and quite frankly, as some of you

         14  know, because I'm in your respective districts, I'm

         15  out at schools meeting with people, meeting with the

         16  parents, meeting with students on a regular basis.

         17                 On Monday, the Mayor and I and the

         18  Chancellor were up in the Bronx. Last week in the

         19  Blue Room the Mayor met with over 50 students for

         20  close to 45 minutes, along with myself from the

         21  Children's Aid Society.

         22                 So, we do meet with students on a

         23  regular basis, and as indicated by, I think it was

         24  the Public Advocate, the Mayor believes in good,

         25  thoughtful discussion, debate, that's what democracy
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          2  is about, and having differing opinions, and he is

          3  also in a position to offer his own opinion.

          4                 But to make an assumption that we

          5  don't do that, you know that we do do that on a

          6  regular basis.

          7                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: To

          8  follow-up on the Deputy Mayor, the Public Advocate

          9  recently convened a meeting to talk about the

         10  Department's cell phone policy, and though we could

         11  not make changes through the policy as far as

         12  allowing them into schools, the real issue that is

         13  at hand was what to do with those people who have

         14  special needs to have a cell phone in the school.

         15  And we had a dialogue with the Public Advocate, with

         16  parents groups, with some of the union leaders to

         17  talk specifically about how do we make our policy,

         18  one, uniformed in dealing with special needs cases,

         19  and, two, how do we make sure that everybody knows

         20  that it exists, because there are some people out

         21  there who do have the need to have a cell phone for

         22  cases of medical needs, if you're special needs, for

         23  anything that might be warranted. And we are working

         24  very hard to try and put together something that we

         25  can all agree on that will make that part of the
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          2  regulation systematic and known to everyone who

          3  needs to take advantage of it.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Kudos to the

          5  Public Advocate for that dialogue. And that kind of

          6  dovetails to your point about you're against the

          7  State bill because, you know, we should have this

          8  process by which we, in our own districts, determine

          9  out policy. But, you know, you have to have a place

         10  to go to redress. And I think, you know, in the

         11  absence of local school boards, you've heard from

         12  CEC after CEC, saying this is a policy that needs to

         13  be changed, and you've heard from 38 Council members

         14  at least say this is a policy that needs to be

         15  changed, and, so, you lead us with no alternatives.

         16                 And, so, again, we press the dialogue

         17  for it, it's one thing to talk, it's another to

         18  appreciate what's being told to you by your parents,

         19  by your students, by your CEC, by the UFT.

         20                 So, just two very quick questions --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I think you

         22  already asked those questions.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I didn't ask a

         24  question.

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I interrupted,
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          2  Chair.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes, I was

          4  interrupted. I was complimenting the Deputy Mayor

          5  when I was interrupted.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Don't compliment

          7  so much.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: These are

          9  very, very brief.

         10                 First of all, you didn't see anything

         11  in Intro. 351 about MP3 players or Gameboys, did

         12  you?

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: No.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay, because

         15  I have no particular desire to be in touch with my

         16  son's Gameboy during the day.

         17                 I didn't quite get in Mr. Tolbert's

         18  testimony the reference to, we have 1.1 million, and

         19  it's not easy for us, whereas like in some other

         20  like small triveling cities like Boston, they can

         21  have a different policy. I don't get why size

         22  matters in this particular case. Could you explain

         23  that to me?

         24                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: What I

         25  was trying to say is New York City is one of the --
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          2  correction, is the largest school system in the

          3  nation, and probably the most unique in its

          4  different characteristics.

          5                 For us, and if you look at some of

          6  the other policies around the country, but I think

          7  the Public Advocate talked about earlier, there are

          8  some cell phone policies that are lesser in the

          9  restriction and some that are greater.

         10                 Philadelphia, for instance, their

         11  cell phone policy is there are no cell phones

         12  allowed on the school grounds. The first time is --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I never like

         14  to be prepared to Philadelphia.

         15                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: Well, my

         16  sister lives there so I always think of it as a

         17  sister city.

         18                 What we have is a -- they have a cell

         19  phone policy that says on the first time that

         20  there's an infraction, you take the phone, the

         21  parent has to come get it. Not too dissimilar from

         22  what we do.

         23                 On the second time, they give it away

         24  automatically. Now, there are some cities that have

         25  similar rules. There are some cities that restrict
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          2  it on the high school rule. There are some cities

          3  that say cell phones are not a right for students to

          4  have, it's a privilege.

          5                 What each City has done, though, is

          6  found a cell phone policy -- or I shouldn't say each

          7  City, I should say that each school district has

          8  found a policy that works best for them. In New York

          9  the Chancellor's regulation is clear. For us, we

         10  need to have cell phones out of the school building,

         11  because the alternative is to have a device that

         12  clearly is disruptive to the process of teaching and

         13  learning.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: In all due

         15  respect, the policy is not terribly clear. The rule

         16  is clear, but the policy is not. As Deputy Mayor

         17  Walcott alluded to in his testimony, some schools

         18  have don't ask, don't tell, some schools don't. Some

         19  schools have scanning, which I would submit to you

         20  is somewhat unfair to students, in unscanned

         21  schools, versus scanned schools, to have those

         22  rules. Now you have random scanning. So, the policy

         23  is really not all that clear because it applies to

         24  some and not to others.

         25                 So, you know, I know I'm bogarting my
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          2  time here, so --

          3                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: I

          4  apologize for your misinterpretation, though. The

          5  cell phone policy is for all schools. There is no

          6  exception to the rule. There may be some principals

          7  in some schools --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: But there is

          9  exception to the application.

         10                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: That may

         11  be the case. But the rule of thumb is, and I'll give

         12  you a prime example, because I got a phone call from

         13  someone who said, Terence, the cell phone policy is

         14  horrible. My son was in school with a cell phone --

         15  I'm like, all right, he's starting off wrong to

         16  begin with, because his son is in school with a cell

         17  phone. But he made it in, he's got the cell phone.

         18                 Now, you have the cell phone in the

         19  school, you're not supposed to have it seen, it's

         20  not supposed to be used, the kid used it. Cell phone

         21  was taken. He is angry and upset.

         22                 But you know what? You weren't

         23  supposed to have the cell phone in the school to

         24  begin with.

         25                 There is no don't ask, don't tell
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          2  policy in A-4 -- I'm sorry, in the Chancellor's

          3  regulation. It is simply there are no cell phones

          4  along with other communication devices, and a few

          5  others that are listed are not supposed to be in our

          6  public schools.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, we need to

          8  move it along.

          9                 I have been joined by Council members

         10  Katz, Gentile and Dilan. And now I turn to Domenic

         11  Recchia for two quick questions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Good morning.

         13                 First, Deputy Mayor Walcott, I want

         14  to thank you for the outstanding work you're doing

         15  in our schools today, but this is one area where I

         16  disagree.

         17                 And in your statement, you start off

         18  the first page, which I must correct you, by saying

         19  that"expansion of gifted and talented." You're not

         20  expanding gifted and talented, because in Region 7

         21  you're doing away with the gifted and talented

         22  programs. So, let's set the record straight, you're

         23  not expanding it.

         24                 I told the Chancellor this last week

         25  when he testified. I was ignored. They did nothing
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          2  about it, til today I haven't heard from the DOE.

          3  So, let's set the record straight, they're not

          4  expanding gifted and talented. They're taking it

          5  away.

          6                 Now, when you go into court in New

          7  York City and if your cell phone is a camera, you

          8  have to check it in. So, all attorneys don't get

          9  cell phones with cameras. Why can't we have children

         10  not get cell phones with cameras? Because we're

         11  hearing from the Chancellor and from the DOE, oh,

         12  they could take pictures of children, okay? So, why

         13  can't we, if that's one issue, it can be resolved by

         14  having children with cell phones that cannot be a

         15  camera and you can't text messages with it. They

         16  sell cell phones like this. Why can't they work with

         17  us, work with the people of the City, and why can't

         18  we accommodate everyone and resolve this by

         19  addressing that issue with cell phones with no text

         20  messages, with no cameras?

         21                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: I don't

         22  know of any way to force parents not to give

         23  children certain types of cell phones. That is

         24  usually the case, when you buy a phone, you buy

         25  whatever you want.
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          2                 I do know that most cell phone

          3  companies have text messaging whether you want it or

          4  not. You have to actually call to turn it off.

          5                 Cell phones automatically come now,

          6  this is the strangest thing, with text messaging

          7  capabilities. You have to make the physical call,

          8  you have to go through the motions, they turn it

          9  off, you move on.

         10                 There are ways around it, though,

         11  because cell phones are capable of doing beyond text

         12  messaging direct to each other.

         13                 Some have the ability like our

         14  blackberries to do peer-to-peer conversations. There

         15  are some cell phones that have SMS as an automatic

         16  feature of it, if you're on the same network.

         17  There's not a simple thing to do, because the

         18  technology is not limited in itself.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: But it's very

         20  simple, you tell parents, you want a cell phone, no

         21  text messages.

         22                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: If I may? I

         23  mean, Terence is the technical expert, I'm a lot

         24  older than Terence, so I'm not as adept around the

         25  technical capacities of the cell phone and what one
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          2  can do. But I think your question, though, raises

          3  the point of why we need this policy that we have in

          4  place.

          5                 Each individual can come up with a

          6  different idea, each school can come up with a

          7  different interpretation on how to implement the

          8  idea, and then we have chaos in a system.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: No --

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Let me just

         11  finish, sir.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay.

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I think going

         14  back to Terence's point earlier, about having 1.1

         15  million students and 1,400 schools, and roughly

         16  1,200 changed buildings, we cannot have a

         17  dysfunctional chaotic system with each school or

         18  each individual district or regions setting their

         19  own policy. And so not even from a technical point

         20  of view, you -- not you personally, but people have

         21  accused us of being top-down management and very

         22  heavy, the last thing we want to get into the

         23  business of is telling parents what type of cell

         24  phone to buy for their child.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: We're not
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          2  telling what type of cell phone, we're just telling

          3  them we can't have text messages on cell phones, or

          4  cameras. They do that in the court house.

          5                 Anyway, I'm giving you ideas that I

          6  think should be addressed.

          7                 And I want to just ask one other

          8  question, because I have to get to another meeting,

          9  is that, in the second to your last paragraph, you

         10  tell parents that they could call the school or call

         11  3-1-1.

         12                 I'm a parent who sends their kids to

         13  public school, and let me tell you something, it's

         14  very hard to get through to a public school during

         15  the day. You could try calling all hours during the

         16  day from 8:30 to 4:00, your phone can ring five or

         17  six times, and you can't reach. And if there is an

         18  emergency, if there's some need, what are you

         19  supposed to do? This is why we have cell phones.

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Two things:

         21  One, before I had this job, and even I guess in the

         22  beginning of when I had this job, and I had children

         23  in the public school system, and I needed to reach

         24  my child's teacher or the school administration,

         25  without even my identifying my name initially or my
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          2  wife would do it, we could reach the school. I mean,

          3  for the most part, in a number of schools you're

          4  able to reach that particular school. But if that

          5  should fail, then we have, as some of you are well

          6  aware, the parent coordinators who are available,

          7  who people have their numbers and all 3-1-1 has all

          8  of the parent coordinator numbers, as well as parent

          9  coordinators have their own phones, as well. And,

         10  so, there are various access points to reach that

         11  particular school. But then, again, going to the

         12  heart of your question, then if you should need to

         13  reach your child during a school day, that child's

         14  cell phone, if he or she has a cell phone shouldn't

         15  be on, I mean if they should have it in the first

         16  place.

         17                 So, then you, the individual, really

         18  are disrupting that class as well, and I think the

         19  best access point to again allow teaching and

         20  learning to take place, which is what all this is

         21  about, is to really reach through the school office.

         22                 Now, I can't let your earlier

         23  comments sit without responding. In reality now,

         24  investigate what's going on in your particular

         25  region, we have expanded gifted and talented
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          2  programs throughout the City, and we can identify

          3  the specific schools where gifted and talented, as

          4  well it is advanced placement courses have been

          5  expanded, and especially in those underserved

          6  communities that have been ignored for years and

          7  years.

          8                 So, just to reinforce that point,

          9  gifted and talented has expanded, and I'll be glad

         10  to follow-up with you after that session to talk

         11  about your particular district.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: I appreciate

         15  it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Excuse me.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: I just have

         18  one other question --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: No. Council

         20  Member --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: About the

         22  theater question.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council member,

         24  please.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: All right.

                                                            71

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I have many,

          3  many Council members that have many questions. I

          4  have asked all of you, I'm asking you, you've

          5  already asked two questions, I need to move on. If

          6  there is additional time, we will come back to you,

          7  but I have to respect my colleagues' other wishes,

          8  they wish to ask questions also, please.

          9                 Next is the Public Advocate Betsy

         10  Gotbaum and Jessica Lappin after that.

         11                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: And I'm

         12  asking my colleagues, the issue of today's hearing

         13  is cell phones. It's not anything else. And if

         14  you're going to ask on anything else, you're going

         15  to then force me to interrupt you on that

         16  particular. So, please don't embarrass me, embarrass

         17  yourselves. Thank you.

         18                 Public Advocate.

         19                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: I'm curious

         20  about what is being done with those phones that are

         21  being confiscated now.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Use the

         23  microphone.

         24                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Sorry. I'm

         25  sorry. Excuse me.

                                                            72

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2                 I'm very curious about what is being

          3  done with those phones that are being confiscated.

          4  At this point where are they being kept, and how and

          5  when are they being returned?

          6                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: The truth

          7  of the matter is, most schools have to deal with

          8  this on an individual basis. Principals usually find

          9  some way to hold the cell phone in possession, and

         10  let me give you the sequence of events.

         11                 You come in with the cell phone, it's

         12  taken from you, and the student is given some type

         13  or receipt or a note to the parent saying that they

         14  have to come in and get the cell phone and that's

         15  the only way it can be released, as part the

         16  Chancellor's regulation.

         17                 In some cases, some schools, as I've

         18  heard, have different rules for how you come and

         19  pick it up.

         20                 Some do once a week, some do daily,

         21  some do monthly. As you've seen, as you've looked at

         22  some of the other policies around the country, some

         23  places say you can't have it until the end of the

         24  semester or to the end of the school year. We have

         25  pretty much, as much as principals have to deal with
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          2  this, each one of them as to find a way that works

          3  best for them and give the cell phone back to the

          4  parent. But the parent does have to come and pick

          5  the cell phone up, and that is the rule.

          6                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: And has that

          7  proven so difficult that that is one of the reasons

          8  that you are somewhat adverse to the policy of

          9  having students bring the cell phones to school,

         10  turn them off, not have them ever used in the

         11  school, but if they do get confiscated, is that

         12  because it's so complicated.

         13                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: It's not

         14  a matter of complication, it's a matter of time

         15  spent.

         16                 Let's look at it as a question I

         17  remember from my economy class long ago, if you only

         18  have one dollar and you can only spend it once, you

         19  have to spend it wisely. We only have a limited

         20  amount of time the student is in our environment to

         21  teaching and learning.

         22                 How much of it do you want to devote

         23  to dealing with sell phones and any other things

         24  that might be confiscated in a school. The rule is

         25  that you cannot bring a cell phone, other PS
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          2  devices, calculator, there's a litany of things that

          3  aren't allowed. Every time someone breaks that rule,

          4  it's taking time from something else.

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: If I may?

          6                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Yes.

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: And this may

          8  come out in a very rude way, and you know I'm not

          9  trying to be rude, but I would rather use the

         10  principal's time differently than having to be the

         11  cell phone distributor after collecting cell phones.

         12  I'd rather have that principal be focused on the

         13  complexities of his or her jobs in dealing with

         14  teaching and learning, instead of having a policy.

         15                 For example, I want to a school one

         16  time in Brooklyn, and the principal had organized a

         17  meeting to make sure that parents came up to collect

         18  the cell phones. And they had to put the systems in

         19  place to reach out to the parents and it was just a

         20  whole complicated process that that principal had to

         21  go through, as far as making sure that the parents

         22  were responsible for coming up and picking up that

         23  child's cell phone.

         24                 You know, from a management point of

         25  view I would rather have that principal deal with
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          2  other type of issues than that.

          3                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: But did you

          4  find that the incidents were so great of the

          5  principals having to do this, or the teacher or

          6  whatever, that that's why you started to enforce the

          7  1988 ban?

          8                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: The ban

          9  has always been enforced, Ma'am.

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: The only

         11  difference is that when we started our unannounced

         12  scanning program, I think two things happened: One,

         13  and I remember clearly, one school in particular had

         14  to recalibrate their magnotometers, because after

         15  school safety did an analysis of their magnotometer,

         16  they realized that the calibration was not at the

         17  proper level. And so in the recalibration of the

         18  particular magnotometer, it was picking up cell

         19  phones and the principals of this particular school

         20  are big believers in the policy and they said, you

         21  know, this is no good. You know, cell phones, as

         22  well as other items, may have been getting through.

         23                 So, that happened at the same time as

         24  our unannounced scanning program started, as well,

         25  and so then we were going to schools that had not
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          2  had magnotometers before, and then those unannounced

          3  programs put in place, and so cell phones, as well

          4  as weapons were picked up during these unannounced

          5  visits. And, so, both of those basically happened

          6  almost at the same time. And as a result of that,

          7  and then a number of people becoming very concerned

          8  around this new policy as identified by some

          9  individuals before, not here today, before when this

         10  first happened, the issue really started I think to

         11  gain more attention. But as Terence indicated, this

         12  policy has been in place, the principals have been

         13  taking it very seriously, and, again, some of the

         14  feedback that I get is that they would rather that

         15  we be very strict in the enforcement, which gives

         16  them the added ability of doing it on the ground, as

         17  well. That's what happened as far as my memory.

         18                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: Madam

         19  Advocate, a teacher just corrected me. Calculators

         20  are allowed.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         22                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Thank you

         23  very much.

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We never get a
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          2  chance to cut off the public advocate.

          3                 And let me welcome, by the way, a

          4  class from PS 2 in my own district. Welcome,

          5  students. Obviously this is a hearing -- let's hear

          6  it for the kids, c'mon. (applause.)

          7                 This is an oversight hearing. This is

          8  the City Council side, that's the Mayor's side, and

          9  it's our job to do oversight and find out what's

         10  going on. This happens to concern schools, so you're

         11  here on a good day. And it happens to concern cell

         12  phones. If you have one and it goes off, you going

         13  to make me look really, really bad, so make sure

         14  that doesn't happen, okay? But when you get older,

         15  you look a little young, but when you get older,

         16  this hearing is about whether or not you have the

         17  right to bring cell phones to and from school but

         18  not use them in school.

         19                 So, thanks for coming kids. We're now

         20  turning to Council Member Lappin.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chairman.

         23                 And with all due respect for you

         24  both, and I do have great respect for you both, I

         25  think the Administration is missing the point. And
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          2  that's what I heard from the collective testimony.

          3  It's not about convenience. We're not here today

          4  because of convenience. We're here today because

          5  it's an issue involving public safety. And when

          6  Anton Pates disappeared on the way to school, this

          7  City was gripped for decades by that story. And I

          8  think that's because that's most parents' worst

          9  nightmare, is that something happens to their kid to

         10  the way to school in the morning or on the way home

         11  later that day, and the reason you've confiscated so

         12  many phones is because there's a reality here as

         13  well, that kids have cell phones to communicate with

         14  their parents when they're outside of school.

         15                 So, I don't think any of us would say

         16  that there should be phones in the schools. All of

         17  us agree, it's before school, it's after school,

         18  it's on the weekends, it's times when parents want

         19  to communicate with their kids. And I just cannot

         20  believe that in the City of New York, with all of

         21  the great things you're doing to improve our

         22  schools, that we can't come up with a policy that

         23  works. I have a really hard time believing that.

         24  Because you've come up with a lot of innovative and

         25  interesting ideas and policies, so we know that
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          2  you're capable of it and that's where I just can't

          3  believe that we can't find something that deals with

          4  the reality and the public safety issues and make

          5  sense.

          6                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: Council

          7  member, we are as much concerned about public safety

          8  as you are. And let me state for the record that

          9  it's not just about convenience. That is just one

         10  part of my testimony. It is talking about all the

         11  other things that are involved that happens when a

         12  cell phone is in possession of a student in a

         13  school.

         14                 Deputy Mayor Walcott said it in his

         15  testimony, I alluded to it in mine. If a cell phone

         16  is in a school, it's going to be used, it's going to

         17  be disruptive.

         18                 We have cases, one which was the

         19  worst I heard, of a student who went through taking

         20  out screws to the back of their cell phone to sneak

         21  in a razor blade. That is something to be afraid of

         22  in a school.

         23                 We have cases of students who have

         24  been hurt to and from school and the thing taken is

         25  their cell phone. They have no way now to call for
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          2  help say for whatever is leftover.

          3                 We are as concerned about public

          4  safety as you. And finding a balance between your

          5  introduction and our rule is going to be hard,

          6  because we are hard-set on teaching and learning,

          7  and we cannot allow anything to interrupt it, and

          8  that's what sell phones give the opportunity to do.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I guess I have

         10  more faith in our families and in our kids, and

         11  there are always going to be bad apples and bad

         12  actors, no matter what policy is in place, and I

         13  would argue that just because you say there aren't

         14  cell phones in schools, there are still going to be

         15  people who sneak them in, and who still are going to

         16  try to do crazy things like put razors in their

         17  phones. But we have to try to develop policies that

         18  are sensible and make sense for the good actors, I

         19  would argue.

         20                 When I went to Stuyvesant, none of us

         21  had cell phones, kids from neighboring schools came

         22  by and beat us up anyway.

         23                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: I went to

         24  Bronx Science and got beat up by Clinton students.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Right. So
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          2  whether it was having a cell phone or not, you know,

          3  we had a police presence outside of the school to

          4  protect us. So, I just would say I think there has

          5  to be a better way, and I think you're hard-set on

          6  providing the best education you, and that's

          7  important, and we're here because we're hard-set to

          8  have the interest of the parents and the families

          9  who have been contacting us to try to find the

         10  middle ground that makes more sense.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         12                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: I want to

         13  take the one thing, though, that she said, Mr.

         14  Chair, one step further.

         15                 What we have now in public schools

         16  are a few problems with cell phone use because

         17  they're not allowed. Imagine if it's open to 1.1

         18  million students. Not everyone will have one, but

         19  more will have one, because with that many students,

         20  we're creating a system that is not going to be

         21  easily controlled or dealt with, it's opening the

         22  flood gates, or as someone might say, pandora's box.

         23  Because once they can have them in schools, then we

         24  don't know what's the next thing that is going to

         25  happen.
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          2                 Whether it's a razor blade in a cell

          3  phone, versus someone, and I heard this story this

          4  weekend from a ten-year-old child, where they are in

          5  a private school where cell phones are allowed, a

          6  cell phone went off. The teacher didn't see who had

          7  the cell phone, so she asked the students to on

          8  their honor say who had the cell phone. Kids knew if

          9  their cell phone wrung, it would be taken, so no one

         10  spoke. So the teacher stopped the class, did a bag

         11  search of all the students in the classroom, and

         12  took exactly 25 minutes to find said cell phone.

         13                 Imagine that in a small private

         14  school expanded to a system that has 1.1 million

         15  children.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's

         17  unrealistic, quite frankly.

         18                 Let me go to Tish James.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

         20                 I'm going to ask you two questions,

         21  but let me just point out some inconsistencies in

         22  the testimony of my very good friend Mr. Tolbert,

         23  who he and I have a very long history, having both

         24  worked in Albany.

         25                 First of all, Mr. Tolbert, and
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          2  there's no need for you to respond, you point out

          3  Local Law 9 of 2003, which prohibits an individual

          4  from dialing, talking or listening. The difference

          5  between that bill and the bill that we are proposing

          6  here today is, again, use.

          7                 You talk about A-412, the use of

          8  pagers. Again, the difference between that

          9  regulation and what we are speaking about today is

         10  use and possession. Two distinctions.

         11                 You also talk about the fact that

         12  cell phones have been used in association with drug

         13  and gang-related activities. Yet, there is no

         14  evidence that you have submitted to the City Council

         15  to support such a contention.

         16                 Let me also go on to say that you

         17  have talked about the fact that you have indicated

         18  in your testimony that it is the responsibility of

         19  District School Boards, or New York City, the

         20  Chancellor and not the Legislature, or the State

         21  Education Commissioner to determine policy and

         22  procedures.

         23                 Mr. Tolbert, you are wrong again on

         24  that because you know well, just as I indicated

         25  earlier when we worked in Albany, we worked on
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          2  legislation related to school boards. We worked on

          3  legislation related to standards in schools,

          4  curriculum, governance, funding, capital. You know

          5  that there are hundreds, if not thousands of laws

          6  related to in fact instructional needs in the

          7  climate of schools, not only in New York City but

          8  throughout the State of New York.

          9                 Let me also go on to say that, it is

         10  a discriminatory practice because the confiscation

         11  of cell phones is only practiced in certain schools

         12  and not all schools, despite the fact that there is

         13  a law on the book, and because it is inconsistent,

         14  it is not a policy which is not being adhered to or

         15  practiced at certain schools.

         16                 But my question to you, Mr. Tolbert,

         17  as well as Deputy Commissioner Walcott, who you both

         18  know I have a great deal of respect for, though I

         19  disagree with you from time to time on a lot of

         20  issues, the DOE cell phone policy prohibits students

         21  from possessing cell phones once they arrive at

         22  school. It effectively prevents students from

         23  possessing using cell phones while they are on their

         24  way to and from school. As such, many parents

         25  believe that DOE is exceeding its authority to
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          2  regulate conduct on school property and it's

          3  interfering with their right to ensure that their

          4  children are safe during the rest of the day. What

          5  gives you the right to regulate parents' authority

          6  as children leave school?

          7                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: Let me

          8  first speak to the things you said I did not need to

          9  answer.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Hold the

         11  applause, please.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: In my

         14  testimony I was quoting the memorandum in opposition

         15  from the New York State School Boards Association,

         16  which has oversight over all the school boards

         17  outside of the City of New York. They were plain and

         18  simple in saying that although they understood the

         19  needs of the Legislature's intent, they found it

         20  unwarranted because it is the purview of a school

         21  district to decide policy and Code of Conduct. They

         22  were very clear in the statement.

         23                 We do not have the right to stop

         24  parents of having students with cell phones to or

         25  from school.
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          2                 We do have the responsibility to deal

          3  with the student in the school. And for us, and I've

          4  said this before, it's about teaching and learning.

          5  Those are our priorities. And anything that

          6  interferes, disrupts, moves from, takes away,

          7  diminishes, withdraws from that process cannot be

          8  tolerated.

          9                 I hate to put it that way, but I

         10  don't know how else to connect with you on this.

         11                 Our policy is that we do not allow

         12  communication devices in schools. You have an

         13  introductory before us that says the parent has a

         14  right to supply their child with a cell phone to and

         15  from schools. And you admit that it is our right to

         16  deal with while they're in school, and we have

         17  exercised that right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And I would

         19  think that an option is to turn the cell phones off,

         20  and to allow individual students to have their cell

         21  phones, allow them to have access to their cell

         22  phones, as they leave the premises on school

         23  property.

         24                 Let me go on to say that in your

         25  testimony, you talked about Assemblywoman Nolan's
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          2  bill and Senator Duane's bill. Let me correct you

          3  that Senator Duane's Bill and Cathy Nolan's bill is

          4  not a same as. The bill that is being sponsored by

          5  Assemblywoman Nolan is being sponsored in the State

          6  Senate by Senator Marchi.

          7                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: I'm sorry

          8  to interrupt. That's incorrect. Senator Marchi has

          9  not introduced a bill at this time. He's still

         10  working on a bill because he found Senator Nolan's

         11  bill to be technically flawed.

         12                 Senator Duane's bill is very much the

         13  same as Assemblywoman Nolan's bill, with a few

         14  exceptions, which I will happily go over with you

         15  afterwards, but they essentially try to do the same

         16  thing, which is allow cell phones into schools, and

         17  they prohibit the DOE's ability to take cell phones

         18  from students, while they're in school, even if they

         19  use them.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: With those

         21  exceptions, you recognize it's not a same as bill,

         22  correct?

         23                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: Yes,

         24  they're not a same as bill.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Exactly.
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          2                 And Senator Marchi, I just got off

          3  the phone with his office, is going to be

          4  introducing Assemblywoman Cathy Nolan's bill. And

          5  that was just five minutes ago.

          6                 I will also go on to say that --

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: You used the

          8  cell phone while you were in here?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: No, before we

         10  started.

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Oh, because you

         12  said it was five minutes ago, so.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Perhaps it was

         14  longer than that.

         15                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Okay.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But I did speak

         17  to their office.

         18                 Let me also go on to say that, again,

         19  the Los Angeles, Chicago, Miami, Houston, San Diego

         20  and Dallas, all have policies. If it's good for

         21  those cities, why is it not good for the students

         22  and the parents of the City of New York?

         23                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Just because

         24  the City has another policy doesn't mean that the

         25  City has to follow that policy.
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          2                 The City has I think created its

          3  policies, whether it's dealing with cell phones or

          4  social promotion or in other areas that's in the

          5  best interest of the students of New York City.

          6                 And while we've also reviewed the

          7  policies of other cities, we feel that the policy

          8  that had been put in place back in 1988, and the

          9  policy that's currently in place is in the best

         10  interest of the New York City school system.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Could it be

         12  that our policy is not consistent with 21st century

         13  technology?

         14                 Could it be that our policy is based

         15  on individuals who want to exercise the strong will

         16  and individuals who are obstinate?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: Our

         18  policy is based on the needs of our school district.

         19  And if you look at Chicago, their rule is upon

         20  written request from parent or legal guardian, a

         21  principal may authorize a student to possess a pager

         22  or cellular telephone for medical and other family

         23  emergencies or any other good cause. That's their

         24  policy.

         25                 Philadelphia has the policy I

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2  described to you earlier. Detroit, Michigan does not

          3  allow cell phones at all, as do we and Philadelphia.

          4  So, it's not that we're inconsistent with other

          5  states, there are some states that agree.

          6                 There are some national groups, as I

          7  mentioned in my testimony, that are opposed to cell

          8  phones in schools completely. As is the case with

          9  every school district, everyone makes the rule that

         10  fits them.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And lastly, to

         12  strike a balance, as you indicated, Mr. Tolbert,

         13  since this is an exception for medical purposes, why

         14  not expand that exception for students who travel a

         15  distance? Why not expand that exception to students

         16  who are being harassed, who are bullied? Why not

         17  expand that exception to students who -- well, why

         18  not expand that exception? It's my understanding

         19  that you did have a meeting with the Public

         20  Advocate, and you were looking to expand that

         21  exception.

         22                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: No, that

         23  is not correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Was that the

         25  purpose of the meeting?
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: No. The

          3  purpose of the meeting was to better define what

          4  those exceptions are in dealing with medical

          5  exceptions.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Are you

          7  interested in expanding the exception beyond

          8  medical?

          9                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: No.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: No?

         11                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: No.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         13                 My colleagues, I am going to dismiss

         14  this panel within ten minutes, so you have to limit

         15  your questions to one and not a five-minute

         16  statement.

         17                 There are other individuals that want

         18  to testify besides the Department of Education, and

         19  the Mayor's Office. So, please, I'm asking you very

         20  nicely, don't give a two-minute statement and then

         21  ask three questions.

         22                 Alan Gerson is next.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, in a

         24  one-second statement, you know I have publicly in

         25  the past and will publicly again acknowledge the

                                                            92

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2  great work that both of you gentlemen have done, and

          3  so with that, first, are we not taking a meat

          4  cleaver, instead of a surgical scalpel to a problem

          5  where we should be able to come up with a more

          6  precise and focused resolution?

          7                 I note that in neither of your

          8  testimonies, do either of you at all address the

          9  issue, which my colleagues have raised, and that is

         10  the before and after school time, we have children

         11  who, as you very well know, stay at school until

         12  late hours, during parts of the year until after

         13  dark hours, we have children who go from school to

         14  after school programs in various locations, children

         15  who have to commute through multiple transfer

         16  points, I'm sure you could understand the desire and

         17  the imperative for parents or guardians to maintain

         18  communication with those children during those

         19  hours. It's especially poignant in my district, the

         20  Ground Zero district, where in the aftermath of

         21  9/11, in those immediate moments, cell phones worked

         22  sporadically, but when they did work, they were

         23  critical lifelines between children and parents, as

         24  well as between others, and they were able to allay

         25  a lot of needless concerns because children have
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          2  them on them. In the hours thereafter, when children

          3  were relocated to other holding locations, the cell

          4  phones were critical for the ability of parents to

          5  relocate their children. Now, that is an extreme

          6  case which hopefully will never happen again, but

          7  we're spending a lot of time preparing for that

          8  eventuality. So, I'm sure you can understand that

          9  parents, too, were doing that, and might want to

         10  prepare for that eventuality, as well as maintain

         11  conduct -- contact for their children during those

         12  time periods.

         13                 So, isn't it, or cannot we have and

         14  come up with a policy, you've only addressed one

         15  side of the coin, and there is a balance, and the

         16  balance has to acknowledge the other side of the

         17  coin and that is the safety and the assurances of

         18  safety during those critical hours. I ask you, can

         19  we, after this hearing, convene, whether it's a

         20  working group or some task force, to come up with a

         21  policy of procedure which will allow parents to

         22  maintain telephonic, cell telephonic contact with

         23  their children going to and leaving school? Would

         24  you be willing to engage in that exercise

         25  acknowledging that other side of the coin, which in
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          2  your testimony you will not acknowledge?

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I think, if I

          4  understand your question directly, the Mayor has

          5  already commented about the issue of both to and

          6  from.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, you

          8  haven't in this hearing, so why don't you tell us --

          9                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I think we

         10  touched on it earlier.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: What is your

         12  view about the to and from?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council member,

         14  let's get an answer here because we have to move on.

         15                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: The to and from

         16  part we've already talked about, in that a child, if

         17  he or she wants to bring a cell phone up to the

         18  point of school, that's their right, and find some

         19  way of depositing that cell phone before they enter

         20  the school building, then that's an option, and then

         21  pick it up.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Is this a

         23  serious comment?

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: You asked me

         25  for a response to your question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'm asking for

          3  a serious response.

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Well, then I'll

          5  shut up if you don't think it's serious then.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Come on,

          7  Deputy Mayor. How can you put that onus on a child?

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: As indicated

          9  earlier, that our response is connected to the

         10  school grounds in a school building.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And you're

         12  ignoring the rest of it.

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I'm sorry.

         14  We're not ignoring the rest of it.  I mean, again,

         15  the responsibility that we are talking about is

         16  within the school building and on school grounds.

         17  And we've been very clear, and we're not changing

         18  our position on that.  And I indicated that to

         19  several other questions that have come up.  We are

         20  very focused as far as the policy that's in place,

         21  and not moving away from that policy.  And so, I'm

         22  trying to give you a very serious response to your

         23  question.

         24                 Again, I'm a parent.  I understand

         25  what parents are saying, but again, I'm also the
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          2  Deputy Mayor of the City of New York.  And I

          3  understand our responsibility for the system of 1.1

          4  million students, and especially our teachers and

          5  our administrators, in making sure that we improve

          6  the outcomes of teaching and learning.  And also in

          7  response to Chairman Vallone's point earlier about

          8  safety, we're also very concerned about the safety

          9  of our children.  And we've put policies in place to

         10  make sure that we have a safer environment for our

         11  children as well.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So the answer

         13  then, just for clarification, is no, you will not

         14  agree to engage in a task force to come up with a

         15  policy which would accommodate the to and from.

         16                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: The answer is

         17  no.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.  And

         19  that's why this bill is being put forward, because

         20  they have been adamant on their position, and not to

         21  change.

         22                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I'll reserve

         23  comment till later on in this hearing.  Thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member
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          2  de Blasio.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DE BLASIO: Thank you

          4  Mr. Chair.  I'll be very quick.  First, I'd like to

          5  sign on to Council Member James' resolutions, and

          6  Council Member Fidler's as well.

          7                 Just the very quick comment and the

          8  question.  The comment is, I really would urge you

          9  not to make a comparison to the adults in the movie

         10  theaters.  It's night and day.  Kids, our safety and

         11  concerns for kids are because they are not in the

         12  position to always protect themselves.  Adults in

         13  the theater is an entirely different dynamic, and we

         14  allowed all sorts of exceptions. So I really urge

         15  you not to do that.

         16                 Let me go to a very simple question.

         17  As a parent of a middle school child, I know that

         18  the cell phone is the way I know where my child is.

         19  And when my child is doing something I'm not

         20  comfortable with, I have the ability to have an

         21  impact on it.  I have the ability to know who she's

         22  with, what she's doing.  I have the ability to say

         23   "change what you're doing".  Now if I did not work

         24  all day, I'd have the option to go and you know,

         25  personally intervene if I thought she was in the
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          2  wrong place after school. But we don't all have that

          3  luxury.  So we need cell phones to have the ability

          4  to intervene and monitor our child's life.  It's

          5  that simple.  And society has changed a lot.

          6  There's a lot fewer parents at home who are in a

          7  position to directly be there with their kids.  It's

          8  just night and day from even ten years ago.

          9                 So I totally respect why you don't

         10  want to disrupt education, but safety comes first,

         11  by so great a margin, as Chair Vallone said

         12  eloquently.  That we simply have to recognize it.

         13  Here's the question.  Even if it costs money,

         14  personnel, capital investment, why don't we put in

         15  lockers, and we have a person in each school who

         16  monitors the locker in the morning and the

         17  afternoon?  Let's face it.  We have found ways to

         18  respond to safety issues, and educational issues

         19  with resources before in this City. We've done it

         20  when there's a need.  I think parents are saying

         21  very broadly, across this City, that this, to them,

         22  is as important a safety need and an education need

         23  as a lot of other things we've invested in.  I bet

         24  if you showed parents the City budget, they'd find a

         25  lot of other things they'd cut in order to be able
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          2  to have an extra person and an extra locker to

          3  accommodate this.  Why isn't that getting through to

          4  as consideration?

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: First, let me

          6  speak to this issue of movie theaters.  The

          7  comparison had nothing to do with the examples that

          8  you've drawn.  Because safety is an important issue.

          9  The comparison is about how people responsibly use

         10  cell phones when it's in their possession.  Plain

         11  and simple.  We've stated that the problem with cell

         12  phones in schools is that if they are in there, they

         13  will be used, and they will disrupt teaching and

         14  learning. We've seen it in movie theaters  We've

         15  seen it in planes.  We've seen it everywhere.  The

         16  disruption exists.  There is no way to avoid it.  If

         17  you have it, you will more than likely use it.  And

         18  maybe not your child, but someone's child will,

         19  because as Council Member Lappin said, there is

         20  always going to be the bad actors who are going to

         21  cut up.  And you know what?  They are going to

         22  disrupt your child.  So that's why the comparison

         23  was made, so that we could say to you, there is a

         24  problem with people having cell phones in their

         25  possession.  When they are adults, they can't use
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          2  them properly.  Imagine when they are a child, and

          3  they want to cut up. It's just as bad.

          4                 To speak to the issue of lockers, we

          5  just went through  --  and I have to thank the

          6  Council, which I haven't done previously  --  we

          7  just went through a battle to get money for capital

          8  funds for New York City, for building new capacity

          9  projects.  It was not an easy battle.  It was hard

         10  fought, and we won.  Now, we want to take money that

         11  we need for teaching and learning, to house cell

         12  phones.  If I had a choice between what I'm going to

         13  spend that one dollar on, because I only have the

         14  one dollar, is it going to be on teaching and

         15  learning, or is it going to be on a locker and a

         16  staff person to monitor it?  And all the liability

         17  that goes along with it for the public school

         18  system.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DE BLASIO: Look, all I

         20  can say, is I thank the Chair for the opportunity to

         21  ask the question.  I'll conclude by saying, I  --

         22  do you want to take a poll of parents? They would

         23  say, absolutely, take some of that money for a very

         24  modest investment, for a locker in each school

         25  entrance, and a part of some staffer's day, in the
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          2  beginning of the day and the end of the day, to take

          3  those cell phones and give them back at the end of

          4  the day.  Because it's about safety, and it's about

          5  keeping the cohesion of our society.  If we cannot

          6  stay in touch with our children, I say this with

          7  absolute respect for the good you're doing, and the

          8  work you're trying to do here, but if we can't stay

          9  in touch with our children, I don't know what is

         10  more disempowering and threatening, and troubling to

         11  parents, than losing touch with their kids.  And so

         12  the bottom line is, yes, we would take some of that

         13  capital money.  We would take some of your expense

         14  money, and put it into that.  I would urge you to

         15  poll parents, PTAs, community education councils I

         16  bet you'd find an overwhelming majority for that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         18  Before we throw it over to Council Member Katz, to

         19  the Council Members who might be seething at the

         20  Chairs for cutting them short, I just need to remind

         21  you that we have five more Council Members.  The

         22  list is closed.  There are children here who want to

         23  testify, who need to bet back for exams.  We're

         24  trying to run this quickly.  Even the Chairs have

         25  not asked any questions, just to try to clue you in
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          2  on what's going on here.  So we do need to move

          3  quickly.  And the next Council Member is Council

          4  Member Katz.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you Mr.

          6  Chair.  And I'll try to be brief.  I think I'm going

          7  to try to focus on something that I'm not sure has

          8  been talked about that much today, which is the

          9  advancement of technology.  We've all been going  --

         10    a lot of us went to public school, and every

         11  single generation has their own issues of

         12  technology.  In 1988, it was beepers.  In 1979 or

         13   '80, it was Walkmen.  And you know, things, through

         14  the different generations, have to be dealt with in

         15  our school system, and whether or not they are

         16  stolen, and things of that nature.  I mean, you

         17  know, the joke is, your lunch money was stolen at

         18  some of the schools, right?  So if they're not

         19  stealing something, it might be something else.

         20                 And technology, historically, has

         21  changed pursuant to what we have in advancements.

         22  You know, 10 years ago, or 20 years ago, airports

         23  weren't scanning laptops.  You know, we weren't so

         24  worried about cell phones on airplanes.  Quite

         25  honestly, 20 years ago, you didn't allow calculators
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          2  in schools, which, by the way, I'd love to have that

          3  argument with the Department of Education at some

          4  point, on a different level, whether calculators

          5  should be allowed in the school.  But technology

          6  changes things, number one.

          7                 Number two, you said teaching and

          8  learning, and I think that we're creating a whole

          9  generation of folks now, who are going to have to

         10  deal with cell phone usage in the future.  And quite

         11  honestly, there are a lot of adults that don't know

         12  what to do with cell phones.  They use them in

         13  restaurants.  They use them at meetings.  And it

         14  might not be such a bad thing to start learning some

         15  sort of responsibility early.

         16                 My problem also, is that I believe

         17  this legislation goes for the worst of the worst.

         18  You're always going to have kids that cheat.  We had

         19  kids that cheated.  I went to Hillcrest High School.

         20    You know, it was a great school, but the kids

         21  cheat.  You know, there are always going to be kids

         22  that call people out for fights.  If the teachers

         23  separated you, they had friends tell you they're

         24  calling you out for fights.  You know, it's going to

         25  happen, no matter what.  Things like that are going
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          2  to happen.  And the people that were passing this

          3  legislation, if they are still doing things against

          4  the legislation, we're not protecting anyone.

          5  Because the worst of the worst are still going ways

          6  to find cell phones.  The worst of the worst are

          7  still going to find ways to cheat.  They're still

          8  going to find ways to pull people out for fights.

          9                 Finally, one of the issues I'm

         10  concerned about is enforcement.  I think Councilman

         11  Fidler alluded to this.  I have high schools that

         12  have metal detectors, and I have high schools that

         13  don't.  Which means that if you have a school in a

         14  district where you have metal detectors every time

         15  you walk in, the children are automatically going to

         16  have their cell phones taken away.  If you don't

         17  have the metal detectors there, they're going to

         18  sneak them in, they're going to have them in the

         19  classrooms, and then it is going to be up to the

         20  teachers again, to call security and get the cell

         21  phones.

         22                 So I guess I wanted to point out

         23  those issues as we move forward to negotiate this

         24  legislation.  Right now, my understanding is,

         25  teachers already, if they see a cell phone, if it's
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          2  already the policy, they're going to have to deal

          3  with it, right?

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So there's

          6  really no difference.

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: There is a big

          8  difference.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: What's the

         10  difference?

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: If I know I'm

         12  not supposed to have a cell phone, I'm borderline

         13  bringing it or not, I'm not going to bring it.

         14  There's no  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Did you go to

         16  the same high school I went to?

         17                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I went to Bronx

         18  Science.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Because you must

         20  have gone to a different district, and a different

         21  city than me.  Because kids --  look, you can make

         22  rules for any age group.  You can make rules for the

         23  worst, or you can make rules for the best, kids are

         24  still going to do what they can.  And --

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: But the job is
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          2  to set the standard, and then enforce the standard.

          3  And not allow the standard to be watered down.  And

          4  I think the challenge is, and I think you're

          5  pointing this out, is the enforcement of the

          6  standard. But I mean, we have a responsibility as a

          7  system to set a standard. And the standard is in

          8  place.  And to me, we shouldn't be just saying  --

          9  I know you're not saying this  --  that, well, there

         10  are kids who cheat, so therefore, we should allow

         11  this to happen. I mean, the reality is, it's our job

         12  to make sure that we eliminate, or minimize to the

         13  best of our ability, the cheating or other issues

         14  that are negative to teaching and learning taking

         15  place, and have a standard there to make sure that

         16  we don't have those types of things.  And that's

         17  what this discussion is about.               And I

         18  understand, and this goes back to an earlier point,

         19  around the concern raised by parents, and the issue

         20  of safety.  And again, I'll just reinforce the

         21  point, I think we're trying to combine the best

         22  policy to make sure that we provide a safe school

         23  environment, and I can't say enough of how the City

         24  is safer now than it's been since I was a high

         25  school student.  Which a long time ago.  And I think
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          2  the responsibility is how we make sure we have the

          3  standard understood and communicated throughout the

          4  system.  So I mean  --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I didn't go to

          6  high school that long ago, just for the record.

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: No, I'm not

          8  talking about you, I' talking about me.  I wouldn't

          9  talk about you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: But I will say,

         11  and I just want to make one correction, and then

         12  I'll finish up Mr. Chair.  Which is that  --  no,

         13  I'm not saying that kids cheat and there's nothing

         14  you can do.  What I'm saying is that we need to

         15  create laws and regulations that are actually going

         16  to stop or try to address the fact that if someone

         17  truly wants to do it, if they are bad, if they're

         18  not going to be honest, then I'm not sure that this

         19  really addresses the issue that we want to address.

         20  And that's really my thing.

         21                 You know, people, kids pass notes

         22  back and forth. It doesn't mean we take away pens.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So that's really

         25  my issue.           CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.
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          2  Council Member Martinez.  Then we're going to move

          3  forward quickly.  We have some students here.  We

          4  want to hear from some high school students that are

          5  being directly impacted, and before they go into

          6  their exam.

          7                 Miguel.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you

          9  Mr. Chair.  Thank you both Mr. Tolbert and Deputy

         10  Mayor Walcott.

         11                 On this debated issue, you know, I

         12  have a problem when, in your statement Mr. Tolbert,

         13  you do state clearly, and you make a comparison, and

         14  you go on to undermine the legislation passed by

         15  this Council, Local Law Nine, when you state that it

         16  strikes you as curiosity that this same Council

         17  opposed the disruption of cell phones in New York

         18  City theater, that we will endorse the same

         19  disruption in a classroom.  That is not the

         20  intention here.  No one here is endorsing disruption

         21  in a classroom.  What we're saying here is, we want

         22  to find a way in which parents could feel safe when

         23  their child leaves home, and when their child leaves

         24  school to get back to their house.  The issue here

         25  is not allowing students to have the cell phone in
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          2  the classroom.  As a product of the public school

          3  system, from elementary to junior high school, to

          4  high school, we've always had issues where we

          5  brought in things that we were not allowed to, in

          6  terms of device, such as beepers, such as Game Boys,

          7  and so forth. And Walkmen.  You forgot the Walkmen.

          8  We used to have Walkmen.

          9                 And if one would use that device

         10  during the classroom, in a classroom, it would be

         11  confiscated and a parent would be called.  And I

         12  think the problem here is, that no one is saying is,

         13  this is simply about an Administration that wants to

         14  do what it wants.  It doesn't want to hear from the

         15  public.  It doesn't want to hear from parents,

         16  legislators, and so forth.  They just want to do

         17  what it wants, what if feels it want to happen in

         18  the school system.  You go on to endorse the

         19  practice of the school districts, and how the school

         20  districts should have the authority and jurisdiction

         21  to do policy.  Why aren't we having the discussion

         22  of why school regions and local school districts

         23  should be given an opportunity to put together a

         24  policy to deal with the issue of cell phones?  Here

         25  you say that it is only the Chancellor that has the
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          2  authority to do this.  Why aren't we endorsing the

          3  same concept of participation and involvement of the

          4  parents at the local level, just as you're saying

          5  that the school district associations have?        So

          6  there's an issue here, which is just the fact that

          7  we have an Administration that is saying, "This is

          8  what I want, forget about public input.  Forget

          9  about parents.  Forget about students.  And this is

         10  what's going to happen in the school system, in a

         11  public school system.  This is what's going to

         12  happen."  I think it's wrong.  And I think as long

         13  as we have that kind of attitude, we have a

         14  responsibility, as legislators, to legislate, to

         15  make sure that that doesn't happen, and that we

         16  represent the best interests of the parents of the

         17  City of New York, when they send their kids to and

         18  from school, which is the concern that we have.

         19                 I have a daughter who goes to high

         20  school.  She is commuting for the first time in here

         21  life alone.  I want to know when she gets on that

         22  train and when she gets out.  Where she's not going

         23  to come home and go elsewhere.  We live in a big

         24  city.  The City of New York.  It is safe now, but at

         25  any minute, anything could happen.  Especially in
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          2  our public train system.

          3                 So as we go on, why aren't we

          4  discussing the issue of allowing local regions in

          5  this case, to put their own policies as to

          6  addressing the issue of cell phones?

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: If I may, let

          8  me start and then I'll defer to you Terence.  One,

          9  you single out this Administration.  And as I

         10  indicated in my testimony, this policy was put in

         11  place back in 1988.  And so the policy has been in

         12  existence through a number of Administrations, and

         13  it started under Chancellor Richard Greene.  And

         14  what this Administration has done, is put in place

         15  standards that we try to make sure improves teaching

         16  and learning and educational outcomes at the end of

         17  the day.

         18                 And this specific hearing is around a

         19  standard dealing with cell phone use.  And quite

         20  frankly, again, we've said it before, we'll say it

         21  again, we are truly empathetic for the issues of the

         22  parents as far as feeling connected to their child.

         23  And our responsibility, as indicated earlier as

         24  well, is what happens on school grounds, in making

         25  sure both we provide a best environment for
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          2  education to take place.  We leave the burden for

          3  both the principals and the teachers to make sure

          4  they have an environment that's conducive for

          5  education to take place.

          6                 And that's what the discussion is

          7  about.  It's not about Administration, as indicated

          8  earlier  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Deputy

         10  Mayor, with all respect, I need to interrupt you

         11  because time is limited.  But you have not proven to

         12  this Council, as mentioned by my colleague James,

         13  you didn't come here with statistics saying, as a

         14  result of the cell phones, we have greater gang

         15  violence, we have greater incidence of student

         16  downloading pornography, we have greater incidence

         17   --  The only thing we've heard here was exaggerated

         18  examples, exaggerated examples by Mr. Tolbert about

         19  one incident with a razor, one incident of a child

         20  being hurt.  But no specific statistic of because of

         21  cell phones, these incidents occurring.

         22                 The same is true that this

         23  Administration  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We've go to move

         25  on Council Member.
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT:: If I

          3  might  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We've go to move

          5  on.

          6                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: If I

          7  might.  We do have --  these are not exaggerated

          8  examples.  These were taken from instances that

          9  happened in our schools.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Mr. Tolbert, we

         11  are going to be requesting in writing, with   --

         12  excuse me.  We're requesting statistics based on

         13  every one of the claims that you came in here and

         14  said.  I know you   --  I don't want you to say the

         15  same thing you said in your testimony, because we

         16  need to move on.  But every claim you made,

         17  regarding increase in everything Mr. Martinez said,

         18  you will need to back up in writing.

         19                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: We're

         20  more than happy to do that, but to answer his second

         21  question  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Quickly.

         23                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: Which is

         24  about why this school district  --  by law, New York

         25  City is considered one school district.  There are
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          2   --  that's just the way it is.  We are one school

          3  district, of 1.1 million students.  There are school

          4  districts that have 600.  Some that have a couple of

          5  thousand. Some that have, ones that number in the

          6  thousands.  But for New York City, this is Region

          7  13, as recognized by the State, and we are one

          8  district.  And at the head of that district is one

          9  person who has to create the discipline code that we

         10  have, and that's the Chancellor.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  Thank

         12  you.  And by the way, back in 1988, I think they

         13  banned click- clacks also.  Times change.  We need

         14  to move on.

         15                 We've been joined by Council Members

         16  Lanza, Liu, and Gennaro.  And we're going to Council

         17  Member Garodnick.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

         19  very much.  Out of respect for my Chairman and the

         20  many people here to testify today, I will be very,

         21  very brief.  And stay without any questions at all.

         22  And I don't think there really is much need for

         23  additional questions on the subject, having heard

         24  the Deputy Mayor today say that we are not changing

         25  our position, and that we are not moving away from

                                                            115

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2  this policy.  I regard this unwillingness to have a

          3  serious discussion, as Council Member Gerson raised

          4  about ways to change the policy, ways to amend the

          5  policy to allow parents the flexibility, allow

          6  students the ability to use phones on their way to

          7  and from school, and actually accommodate that need,

          8  I think that this reflects a lot of the things that

          9  people were concerned about when we had the initial

         10  discussions about Mayoral control of the schools,

         11  which is something that I support.  But you guys are

         12  dug in.  You're clearly dug in.  And there's a lot

         13  of ways we agree here.  We agree on the potential

         14  for disruption.  We agree on the fact that schools

         15  are supposed to be learning environments, safe,

         16  without distraction.  But where we do not agree is

         17  the one point, the one line in Mr. Tolbert's

         18  testimony, where he says, "I understand why a parent

         19  might want his or her child to have a phone, but

         20  this does not outweigh the problems associated with

         21  cell phone use or possession on school grounds".

         22  That's where we have to part company.  Because you

         23  give a lot of anecdotes, what Council Member

         24  Martinez called "exaggerated examples", single

         25  stories, about a razor tucked into a phone, or
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          2  somebody summoning colleagues to a fight, or

          3  cheating.  And we know, just as well, that there are

          4  parents who are coming in a few minutes to testify,

          5  to give the very same anecdotes to say how much they

          6  desperately need these cell phones, to be able to

          7  communicate with their children to and from school.

          8  And agree with you that the school should be

          9  protected learning environments, without cell phones

         10  ringing during the day, and without requiring

         11  administrative personnel to be babysitters during

         12  the day to collect cell phones.  There is a way to

         13  find a solution to this problem.  We've worked

         14  together on many, many issues.  I'm just surprised

         15   --  I just want to make it clear that the

         16  Administration's position is that "we are not

         17  changing our position".  And it is the City Council

         18  of the City of New York that is trying to find a way

         19  to accommodate the needs of parents, and we will

         20  work through our local processes, as well as the

         21  State processes, as necessary, to try to accommodate

         22  those very important public safety needs of parents.

         23    So I will leave it there.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         25  Council Member Vacca.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Very briefly.

          3  I think we're making a mistake.  I know that we are

          4  now headed toward a system of school- based

          5  management.  We are establishing autonomy schools in

          6  the City of New York.  In September, about 300

          7  schools will be autonomous.  They'll be given

          8  increased jurisdiction over management, budgeting,

          9  curriculum.  And other schools are headed in that

         10  direction as well.

         11                 My comment, and my statement to you

         12  is, that in many schools, cell phones may be an

         13  issue, and in other schools, cell phones are not an

         14  issue.  If we are placing faith in principals, if we

         15  are determined to have a model that has management

         16  from down up, rather than from up down, why aren't

         17  we having principals and school leadership teams

         18  address this issue as it relates to their school,

         19  dealing with it on that basis?  Why are we setting

         20  policy here that is going to be implemented

         21  Citywide, when we're setting a different tone when

         22  we talk about increased autonomy and school

         23  management?

         24                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: If I can,

         25  in one quick second.  There are several things that
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          2  are non- negotiable as far as system- wide standards

          3  that concern.  And safety and instruction are non-

          4  negotiables when it comes to Citywide standards. And

          5  so, having individual policy, school- by- school

          6  policies dealing with whether it's cell phones, or

          7  other safety issues, it's something that we need to

          8  put a system standard in place that people can

          9  adhere to.

         10                 We cannot have a dysfunctional system

         11  in certain areas.  And so while we are  --  and I

         12  agree with you, Council Member  --  creating more

         13  empowerment schools, and as we recently announced,

         14  roughly 331 schools have been invited to be our

         15  empowerment schools, there are still some common

         16  threads, even for those empowerment schools, that

         17  they have to follow to qualify to be empowerment

         18  schools.  There will be performance agreements

         19  struck with these empowerment schools that they will

         20  have to adhere to as well.

         21                 So even as we devolve the power to

         22  these schools, as we give them more budgetary

         23  control over their schools, we will still have

         24  certain expectations and standards and performance

         25  agreements for these schools to follow as well.  And
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          2  safety and the use of cell phones will be one of

          3  them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          5  Helen Foster of the Bronx.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Quickly.  I

          7  was going to say exactly what Council Member

          8  Garodnick said, and he has a much better voice.  And

          9  I will end  --  and it wasn't a question.  I think

         10  there is a disconnect here, and that the sad thing

         11  is that we are not setting a good example for the

         12  kids.  Because this hearing could have been a good

         13  opportunity to resolve and work on a compromise.

         14  But it's really as if lines have been drawn in the

         15  sand.  And unfortunately it's the kids that are

         16  suffering.  Because at the end of the day, I know

         17  that I am an adult, and I still call home when I'm

         18  travelling.  And I think that is the issue here.

         19  Safety, not what we're going to do specifically with

         20  the phones in the school.

         21                 And so, unfortunately, it's now,

         22  where do we go from here?  Because we've had this

         23  long hearing, and we've had tons of questions, but I

         24  don't think we're any closer to a resolution as to

         25  kids carrying cell phones to and from school.
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          2                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Can I just make

          3  one modification, Council Member?  I think the

          4  students have benefitted tremendously here.  I think

          5  they are seeing democracy in action. I think they're

          6  seeing the give and take and interaction  --  no,

          7  I'm just not trying to be cute about it, I think

          8  this is the legislative body, as well as the

          9  executive body discussing an issue that we don't

         10  necessarily agree on, but there's been a great

         11  dialogue in back and forth, and respective, in a

         12  very proper way with each other.  And I think that

         13  to me represents the ideals of what this is all

         14  about.  And so for the students to actually be here

         15  today to hear this interaction and back and forth, I

         16  think is a great setting.  And I think the other

         17  thing, and I want to defer to Terence, but the other

         18  thing is that, I forget whether it was Council

         19  Member Vacca earlier, that we have not said to the

         20  Council around the issue of to and from, that we

         21  disagree.  I mean, to and from.  That's what happens

         22  in between.  And that's where we have our very clear

         23  line.  And so, in that regard  --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: In respect for

         25  the timeframe, I will discontinue.  But I don't
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          2  think  --  I don't agree with you.

          3                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: Chairman

          4  Jackson, if I might.  Because there is one

          5  exception.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Quickly.

          7                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: As I said

          8  earlier, we are working on the one exception that

          9  does exist to our rule.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

         11                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: There are

         12  those individuals who have medical, and what will be

         13  clearly defined as "special needs", to have cell

         14  phones in schools.  We are exploring how to define

         15  that, and how to make people aware of it.

         16                 So to say that we're opposed to

         17  having a conversation, or that we've drawn a line in

         18  the sand, is not entirely true.  Because we are

         19  taking steps.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's the

         21  opinion of most Council Members, without the  --

         22  with the medical exception. Other than that, the

         23  Mayor has been adamant.  He has basically said, even

         24  if we pass the law, he will not implement it.  So he

         25  has drawn the line in the sand, and there will be a
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          2  battle on this front.  And it will be taken to the

          3  highest levels, and let the courts decide.

          4                 And what we have said, what I have

          5  said on the news, is that we're willing to sit down

          6  and have a discussion on this particular matter.

          7  The Mayor has not held any public forums.  He did

          8  not engage us before he implemented this panel.  He

          9  did not engage the parents before he implemented the

         10  policy.

         11                 Now you could say that the policy has

         12  been in existence since 1988.  But the policy

         13  basically was implemented in April, when they said

         14  that they were going to do it.  Eight hundred cell

         15  phones were confiscated in 12 days.  And if the

         16  policy is about safety and security, okay?  Your

         17  statement doesn't really talk about safety and

         18  security.  It only talks about cell phones. Safety

         19  and security, when you talk about seven knives in

         20  two weeks. Eight hundred cell phones.

         21                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TOLBERT: Again, if

         22  I may Mr. Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, go ahead,

         24  please.

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: One, the
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          2  hearing is about cell phones, so that's why we

          3  focused on cell phones.  The policy that you're

          4  talking about is the unannounced scanning that was

          5  put in place to address the issue of --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But it's not

          7  only about unannounced scannings, Deputy Mayor, it's

          8  also about implementing --  basically going forward

          9  with the policy, updated to include cell phones.

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: And 36 weapons

         11  have been collected.  Thirty six weapons that could

         12  have been  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And every

         14  example that you use, and Mr. Tolbert, and everyone

         15  else, it's the most negative aspects. And you give

         16  that as an example of the way it really is.  And

         17  that's not the way it really is.

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: No, I am just

         19  responding to your point around  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But no.  Not

         21  only responding, Deputy Mayor.  You give that, and

         22  the Mayor give those as examples, not examples, but

         23  try to paint that as the way it is.  And I'm saying

         24  to you, that's not the way it is.  Those are the

         25  worst- case scenarios.
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          2                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: No, that's just

          3  the fact of the results of the unannounced scanning.

          4    It's that as a result of our unannounced scanning

          5  program, we have collected 36 weapons. I'm not using

          6  it in any way  --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: How many cell

          8  phones did you collect?

          9                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Oh, we've

         10  collected a ton of cell phones.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Over a thousand?

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Eighteen

         13  hundred.  Hold on and I'll get  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Eighteen

         15  hundred.

         16                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: That sounds

         17  right.  I think around 1,800.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Peter Vallone,

         19  Jr.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm not going to

         21  be able to follow that closing, which I think it

         22  was.  But unfortunately, Council Member Foster, I

         23  think the type of democracy that we're going to see

         24  in action today isn't the type where we come to a

         25  consensus.  It's the type where we pass a bill, it's
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          2  not enforced by the Mayor, and then we wind up in

          3  court.  That's the balance of powers that our

          4  founders put in.  And that's what we're going to

          5  have to see in action.  Which is unfortunate.  And

          6  again, I need to repeat how Mr. Tolbert ended his

          7  testimony.  You're at a loss to understand why

          8  anyone would want to risk the education of our

          9  students for convenience.  Hopefully now you

         10  understand a little better why we are doing what

         11  we're doing.  And hopefully, you know, hopefully you

         12  understand that the safety of our children trumps

         13  any concern for any inconvenience.

         14                 We all here believe that you have

         15  some very good minds on that side of the table.  On

         16  the other side of the hall. And that you can come up

         17  with a way that will solve this problem. We hope

         18  that happens.  When this bill isn't going to be

         19  passed out today, it will be passed out in the near

         20  future.  We don't want to take this down to court.

         21  We want to work with you.  We want to come up with a

         22  policy that both ensures the safety of our children

         23  and allows you to educate our children without

         24  disruptions.  We know we can do that.

         25                 And the ball is in your court now.
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          2  We need you to work with us.  I hope you will stay

          3  around and hear from the advocates and the parents,

          4  and the students who are about to testify now.  And

          5  now I'll be quiet so I can hear from them.  And we

          6  thank you.

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: And we thank

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And now we're

         10  going to hear from three high school students.

         11  Jenna Gogan, Seth Pearce, and Dan O'Brien, from

         12  LaGuardia High School.  And we apologize for the

         13  late hour.  We hoped to hear from you this morning.

         14  This afternoon rather.  So that you can go and take

         15  your exam.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And if you need

         17  a note for your teacher, let us know.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I'd like to add

         19  my name to Mr. Fidler's bill.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sure.  Jim

         21  Vacca, you add your name to the bill.  That's 40.

         22  Okay.  Go ahead.  Any order that you wish.  Just

         23  speak clearly into the mike.

         24                 MR. PEARCE: Thank you for allowing us

         25  the time to testify this morning.  All of you.  We
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          2  are students at LaGuardia High School in Manhattan.

          3  And if this cell phone issue were a mere matter of

          4  convenience, we would feel no need to protest it.

          5  But this involves our safety and our rights.

          6                 Cell phones are an important issue in

          7  our school for a variety of reasons.  First, the

          8  majority of our students commute from all around the

          9  five boroughs.  We have students from Staten Island

         10  that commute four hours every single day. And if

         11  this ban is in place, that is four hours where they

         12  could be anywhere in the City, and they will have no

         13  contact with their parents.  We are in school from

         14  8:06 in the morning to 3:38 in the afternoon.  And

         15  usually later, because of tutoring, rehearsals,

         16  especially at our school, and other after- school

         17  activities.  In order to communicate with our

         18  parents, and let them know of our plans and safety,

         19  cell phones are necessary.

         20                 We understand that cell phone use in

         21  schools can be disruptive, and are in favor of

         22  stronger penalties for cell phone use in schools, in

         23  unauthorized areas or times.  Phones should be

         24  turned off in schools.  However, if we abide by this

         25  rule, school phones should be made available to
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          2  students, reachable by our parents in case of

          3  emergency, and functional.

          4                 Finally for me, I need to let you all

          5  know that we all do have cell phones on our person

          6  that are turned off.  All three of us have cell

          7  phones right now, in the City Hall.  And it seems to

          8  me that the City is running just fine.

          9                 MS. GOGAN: When LaGuardia heard the

         10  news that the Department of Education was

         11  threatening to enforce metal detector scanning in

         12  order to ensure that no students could be in the

         13  building with a cell phone on their person,

         14  students, teachers, and administration alike were

         15  all outraged.  Within days, we were able to form a

         16  group of some one hundred angry students who were

         17  willing to do whatever it would take to combat this

         18  cell phone ban. Multiple petitions were sent around,

         19  getting hundreds of signatures, and the Parents

         20  Association also took an anti- ban stand.

         21                 The City's reasoning for the cell

         22  phone ban is not justified.  Citing cheating and

         23  gang violence as events that cell phones could cause

         24  is unreasonable.  Unfortunately, both things would

         25  happen with our without cell phones.  If teachers
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          2  are concerned about cheating with cell phones, we

          3  propose that students simply place their turned- off

          4  phones on the desk, so that they're clearly in view,

          5  and do not disrupt the learning.

          6                 To address the issue of gang

          7  violence, we propose that schools tackle the issue

          8  where it starts, by providing conflict resolution

          9  programs, and other programs, to handle violent

         10  students, rather than simply trying to limit

         11  communications between such students, which doesn't

         12  really even happen when you just take away cell

         13  phones.

         14                 Not only is the cell phone matter,

         15  and particularly the recent events concerning metal

         16  detector scanning about safety, but it is about our

         17  rights as students in public schools.  Students do

         18  not lose their Constitutional rights upon entering

         19  school, and this applies to our right to be free

         20  from unreasonable search and seizure.  These are

         21  turned- off, non- disruptive cell phones, which are

         22  linked to teen violence far less than many other

         23  types of items is absolutely unreasonable.

         24                 And if we were to let the Department

         25  of Education get away with prohibiting such a
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          2  harmless item as a turned- off cell phone without

          3  standing up for ourselves, what's to say they cannot

          4  begin to make any kind of oppressive rule they

          5  wanted?  Students in the City have very little

          6  collective voice right now, and City officials must

          7  not be allowed to use this fact to abuse their power

          8  and make unjustified demands of students.

          9                 For these reasons, we strongly oppose

         10  the cell phone ban in New York City public schools.

         11  Thank you for taking into account the opinions of

         12  those who experience this daily.  And thanks again

         13  for your time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         15                 MS. GOGAN: And letting us participate

         16  in democracy.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Do you have to

         18  leave for the exam?

         19                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Jenna can lay

         20  back, but we have to go take Regents.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Because we'd

         22  love to ask you questions, but if you have the exam

         23   --

         24                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Jenna can stay

         25  and answer them.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  I have a

          3  few questions for you.  You guys run.  If you need a

          4  note from us, you let us know.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Make sure we

          6  have copies of your statements, if you don't mind.

          7                 : Absolutely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sergeant- of-

          9  Arms (sic).

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: While you're

         11  leaving, I just want to say, that was a very good

         12  summary of search and seizure law.  And we

         13  appreciate it.  Something that didn't come up

         14  before. It's a very good point.  I think we might

         15  lose that when it comes to in school, but I think we

         16  absolutely win it when it comes to outside of

         17  school.  And unfortunately, because of the

         18  Department of Education policy, children are not

         19  allowed to have these outside of school.  So I think

         20  you might have a very good point there.

         21                 Do any Council Members have

         22  questions?  We've been joined by Simcha Felder.  And

         23  he has one.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         25  much.  I'm sorry for being late.  There was a
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          2  conflict with Mental Health Committee, which I need

          3  more than education.

          4                 I just wanted to  --  maybe it's more

          5  of an observation than a question  --  is that when

          6  I was in school, cell phones and beepers and all

          7  that stuff were not around.  And we managed to cheat

          8  quite well without all the stuff.  A good friend of

          9  mine figured out how to put the information in his

         10  watch, which he turned, like a scroll.  And there's

         11  another guy, I don't want to mention his name, who

         12  had a very, very, very, -- you know, was able to

         13  write very small, put all the stuff in very small

         14  print, and then sold it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Did his name

         16  rhythm with Dimcha?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: At advice of

         18  Counsel, I can't answer that question.  I'm not

         19  encouraging cheating in any way. All I'm saying is

         20  that the cheating business used to very well for

         21  many, many years without cell phones and everything

         22  like that.

         23                 So to me, the issues that have been

         24  raised, that I've been told about, are very

         25  important.  But if that was the prime reason, I
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          2  think that the talented children of New York City

          3  will figure out some other way, if they want to,

          4  even if it's wrong.  I won't say anything else self

          5  incriminating.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well first of

          7  all, let me thank you and your fellow students for

          8  coming in and giving testimony.

          9                 MS. GOGAN: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I think

         11  you're right.  That students in the school, as an

         12  organized group, you don't  --  have not expressed

         13  your opinions as a whole.  But that's why you have

         14  parents and the parent advocacy groups, in order to

         15  express their viewpoints, that you have expressed to

         16  your parents and your guardians.

         17                 And so, as elected officials, we are

         18  listening to them, and what we're trying to show

         19  here is that we will stand up, and we will fight for

         20  what we believe is right.  As I indicated, you may

         21  have heard that there's a willingness to sit down

         22  and try to negotiate.  But in order to sit down, you

         23  must have two individuals that are willing to

         24  compromise.  It appears as though that the Mayor is

         25  adamant, and he's not willing to compromise.  So as

                                                            134

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2  a result of that, then we have to do what we have to

          3  do, in order to take the action by passing

          4  legislation.  And if necessary, go into court in

          5  order to try to defend what we believe is right.   And

          6  that's the democratic process.  So I thank you for

          7  coming in and giving testimony.  And I open it up to

          8  any of my colleagues that have any questions or

          9  comments for the young people.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 MS. GOGAN: Thanks.  I would just like

         12  to say that I, and my fellow students who were just

         13  here, and countless other high school students, you

         14  have our full support in doing whatever it takes to

         15  stop this ban.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Let me just tell

         19  you the format of this hearing.  We're going to hear

         20  from elected officials, staff concerning the elected

         21  officials position.  We will then hear from the

         22  United Federation of Teachers.  Then we will hear

         23  from a panel of the New York Civil Liberties Union

         24  and others.  A panel of parents and activists.  And

         25  then a panel of principals.  In that order.  And so,
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          2  we will go with that order and that format.

          3                 I ask everyone in their statements to

          4  please be as brief as possible.  And if you can, do

          5  not read your statements. Please submit your

          6  statements if you have any.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We'll be trying

          8  to limit people to three minutes please.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And Mike McMahon

         10  is here from Staten Island.  Michelle Bodden, from

         11  UFT; Vivian Farmery, from the Manhattan Borough

         12  President's Office; Adam Riff, from Senator Tom

         13  Duane's Office; and Donna Lieberman, from The New

         14  York Civil Liberties Union.

         15                 Sergeant-of-Arms (sic) please get

         16  some additional chairs please.

         17                 Michelle Bodden, you're first.

         18  Michelle Bodden, then Vivian Farmery from the

         19  Manhattan Borough President's Office. Adam Riff,

         20  from Senator Tom Duane's Office, and Donna

         21  Lieberman, from the New York Civil Liberties Union.

         22                 MS. BODDEN: Good afternoon Chairman

         23  Jackson and Vallone, and members of the Education

         24  Council.  In the interest of time, I'm not going to

         25  read the statement from the UFT.  I'm simply going
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          2  to summarize that our position is that clearly cell

          3  phones should not be used in school.  They are very

          4  disruptive, and there is no equivocation or

          5  misunderstanding.  However, they are a very

          6  important safety tool in the travel from home to

          7  school and afterwards.  We've had several examples,

          8  and I know that there's been a lot of mention here

          9  that there may be transportation disruptions, et

         10  cetera, and parents should be able to reach their

         11  children.  And clearly the medical exception is

         12  there during the day.

         13                 What we believe is best, is that

         14  schools should be allowed to create a policy that

         15  works for the individual school. In some situations,

         16  perhaps in scanning schools, there may be a greater

         17  need to confiscate all the phones.  In other

         18  situations, where cell phones have not been a

         19  problem, the school should be able to create a

         20  policy perhaps with escalating penalties that fits

         21  the school.  But to create a blanket policy and this

         22  type of enforcement of that policy creates more

         23  problems than it solves, because it is essentially

         24  sort of criminalizing the cell phones, as opposed to

         25  looking at the issues if the issues are those that
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          2  have been alluded to of gang activity or cheating,

          3  or those kinds of issues.  Then you're simply

          4  removing a tool, but you're not addressing the

          5  problem.

          6                 So I think, and the UFT believes that

          7  the best thing to do is to allow for schools to

          8  create a policy that fits the particular school, and

          9  that that should be the way that cell phones are

         10  handled in the New York City public school system.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         12  We're going to entertain questions after we finish

         13  the entire panel.  Vivian Farmery, representing

         14  Scott Stringer, the Manhattan Borough President.

         15                 MS. FARMERY: Thank you.  Good

         16  afternoon Chairman Jackson, Chairman Vallone, and

         17  Committee Members.  I'm going to read my statement,

         18  because I promise, it's short.

         19                 My name is Vivian Farmery.  I'm the

         20  Manhattan representative on the panel for

         21  educational policy.  On behalf of the Manhattan

         22  Borough President, Scott Stringer, I thank you for

         23  this opportunity to testify in support of Intro.

         24  351, and Resolution 342.

         25                 Borough President recognizes how
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          2  important this issue is to parents, and to the

          3  entire education community.  First, we believe that

          4  the Resolutions call for an immediate call for an

          5  immediate moratorium on the confiscation of cell

          6  phones while community- wide hearings are held as a

          7  well- measured first step. These hearings would be

          8  in accordance with the State Education Law, Section

          9  29013, which requires that the Chancellor develop

         10  the discipline code, and I quote, "in collaboration

         11  with students, teacher, administrator, and parent

         12  organizations.".  A process which we do not believe

         13  was followed when the DOE decided to utilize new

         14  scanning procedures to reinforce their cell phone

         15  ban.

         16                 Second, we are hopeful that Intro.

         17  351 will be passed, allowing for students to carry

         18  cell phones to and from schools for safety purposes.

         19    We firmly believe that parents, educators, and

         20  elected leaders can arrive at a more balanced and

         21  less punitive measure regarding cell phones than the

         22  one the Department of Education has implemented.

         23                 The Department's hard line stance in

         24  the face of public objection, and the subsequent

         25  seizure of cell phones has angered parents, and have
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          2  contributed enormously to their sense of not being

          3  heard by this Administration. For many, this is the

          4  straw that breaks the camel's back.  Parents already

          5  feel disengaged from the Department of Ed, and this

          6  decision has made matters enormously worse.

          7                 Parents have tried in every possible

          8  way to call on the Administration to reverse this

          9  unreasonable policy, which jeopardizes children's

         10  safety and parents peace of mind.  But as we say

         11  this morning, they have had no success.

         12                 We therefore whole- heartedly support

         13  City Council Intro. 351, and Resolution 342.

         14  Furthermore, if Intro. 351 is passed and vetoed, we

         15  urge the Council to override said veto. Thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next, Donna

         18  Lieberman.

         19                 MS. LIEBERMAN: I'll go after the next

         20  speaker.  I would like to first introduce Jeffany

         21  Ellington.  I had spoken to Council Member Vallone

         22  about this.  She's a student at Independence High

         23  School, who asked to be allowed to testify along

         24  with me. She's not testified in such an awesome

         25  environment before, so here she is.  She's from
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          2  Independence High School, and the Urban Youth

          3  Collaborative.

          4                 MS. ELLINGTON: Hi.  Good morning

          5  everyone.  Good morning City Council Member.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good morning.

          7  Could you just pull the mike up a little further if

          8  you don't mind.

          9                 MS. ELLINGTON: Okay.  And good

         10  morning everyone in the audience.  As Donna told

         11  you, my name is Jeffany, and I'm with the Urban

         12  Youth Collaborative.  It's an organization whose

         13  mission is to achieve educational justice in New

         14  York City.  Today I will share with you some of my

         15  feelings about the safety policies and some ideas

         16  from the Urban Youth Collaborative for how we can

         17  make an improvement.

         18                 In my opinion, in our opinion, the

         19  issue is not just about cell phones.  There is a

         20  greater problem behind the safety policies.  One,

         21  student opinion is not taken into account.  And two,

         22  police officers and school safety agents are not

         23  trained to work with youth.  I think those are the

         24  issues that really need to be brought to light.  For

         25  example, going to my school at Roosevelt High School
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          2  in the Bronx was not a great experience for me.

          3  Seeing police trucks and police officers everywhere

          4  did not make me feel comfortable.  And being

          5  searched by a police officer isn't such a wonderful

          6  experience either.  The police officers tend to be

          7  loud, rude, and the experience is something like you

          8  would see on TV shows, and the Cop shows.  You know,

          9  like what's that show called?           Well anyway,

         10  it is just not great being in a school with metal

         11  detectors or where you have to be scanned, or where

         12  your property gets confiscated.  You feel like your

         13  privacy is being violated.  And another thing, metal

         14  scanning, like I said, and searches are not

         15  something wonderful to look forward to, and it makes

         16  students feel that there is something wrong with

         17  their school, or something wrong with themselves, or

         18  with their peers.

         19                 When a student has to face police

         20  officers in their halls, or scanners at the door to

         21  their schools, they internalize the feeling that

         22  they have done something wrong.  Also, schools

         23  should be a place where students can learn in safety

         24  and comfort. Not a place where they are marginalized

         25  or stereotyped.
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          2                 And unfortunately, students have no

          3  one to talk to about their concerns, because

          4  principals no longer have control over the safety

          5  policies in their schools.  And it is hard for us to

          6  contact the Mayor or the Chancellor directly with

          7  such an issue. When we have spoken to the

          8  Chancellor, and other officials, we were not taken

          9  very seriously.  We were not treated like our

         10  opinions or like our ideas mattered.  And our

         11  proposals were just shut down or not even

         12  considered.

         13                 So with that said, in regard to the

         14  cell phone policy, we suggest that you speak to

         15  those who are affected most by the issue, which are

         16  the students and the parents.  So with this said, we

         17  request for you to please do everything you can to

         18  work towards safety policies that are both effective

         19  and respective to our students.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.  Adam

         21  Riff, from Senator Tom Duane's Office.

         22                 MR. RIFF: Good afternoon Council

         23  Members.  My name is Adam Riff.  I'm the

         24  representative for Senator Tom Duane, who is up in

         25  Albany in legislative session today.  And so, I'm
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          2  going to read this testimony for him.

          3                 My name is Thomas K. Duane, and I

          4  represent New York State's 29th State Senatorial

          5  District.  Last week, I introduced Senate Bill

          6  number 8128, which would prohibit schools from

          7  confiscating students' cell phones, and prohibit

          8  students from using their cell phones in school.

          9                 I salute my colleagues in government,

         10  Council Members Lou Fidler, and Tish James for

         11  respectively sponsoring Intro. 351, which would

         12  allow New York City school children to carry phones

         13  to and from school, for safety purposes.  And

         14  Resolution 342, which calls on the City Department

         15  of Education to place a moratorium on the

         16  confiscation of students cell phones during random

         17  searches of middle and high schools.  I encourage

         18  the entire Council to support these measures.

         19                 I also understand that Council Member

         20  James has introduced another resolution supporting

         21  State Legislation including my Senate bill, and I

         22  thank her for that.

         23                 As you know, in 2006, many New York

         24  City families depend on cell phones to ascertain

         25  that students have arrived safely at school, after
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          2  school, when plans of a family member may change,

          3  and any time during an emergency or crisis.

          4  Naturally, cell phones must not be used in the

          5  classroom, and it is important to discourage that

          6  from happening.

          7                 Some supporters of the ban have

          8  suggested that cell phones make it possible for

          9  students to cheat on exams and spread rumors.  While

         10  surely it is not technology that's to blame for

         11  these unfortunate phenomena, we should ensure that

         12  cell phones are not used to facilitate these

         13  behaviors.

         14                 As a volunteer teacher of a civics

         15  class at the Institute for Collaborative Education,

         16  I am able to remind my students to turn off their

         17  cell phones before class.  But I know that may not

         18  always be enough.  We need a better solution.

         19  However, the current ban on cell phones in schools

         20  is not a solution.  It is avoiding the problem and

         21  creating a new one. Mobile phone technology is here

         22  to stay, and now is the time to come together and

         23  find a more constructive answer.

         24                 Of course, we're not the first ones

         25  to confront this issue.  In Portland, Oregon,
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          2  individual principals are allowed to develop cell

          3  phone policies tailored to their schools.  And many

          4  of them simply reserve the right to confiscate any

          5  phone used improperly.  In suburban Philadelphia, a

          6  school district repealed a cell phone ban after

          7  realizing that it was unenforceable and

          8  anachronistic.  Instead, it employs a loose, don't

          9  ask, don't tell policy.  And in England, more than

         10  80 schools already use brand new technology that

         11  broadcasts a warning message when any mobile phone

         12  use is detected.

         13                 I certainly hope an all- out ban

         14  isn't the only policy New Yorkers can come up with.

         15  In fact, I know it's not. The Association of New

         16  York City Education Councils, a parent advocacy

         17  organization, is sponsoring a contest for the very

         18  same students affected by this ban, to suggest a

         19  better solution to the problem.  While the students'

         20  ideas may not be the answers we're looking for, the

         21  innovative alternative they have already come up

         22  with represents far more creativity in trying to

         23  solve this real problem, than we've seen from the

         24  Department of Education.

         25                 The Mayor and Schools Chancellor have
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          2  said they will not withdraw the ban.  I stand with

          3  parents, students, and teachers, as well as many of

          4  my government colleagues, in urging the City Council

          5  to pass Resolution 342, and Intro. 351 in order to

          6  compel them to do so.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Everyone has

          8  testified?  Donna.

          9                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Okay.  I'm Donna

         10  Lieberman, from the New York Civil Liberties Union.

         11  Of course, the School Board has the right to

         12  prohibit the use of cell phones in schools.  But the

         13  blanket ban that's in place now, enforced as it is

         14  by police agents, not by educators, it disrespects

         15  students and parents, and ignores the legitimate

         16  needs of parents and students with regard to safety

         17  and family values.

         18                 The issue of cell phones in schools

         19  that we're addressing in today's hearing stems from

         20  a much more serious and systemic problem.  And

         21  that's the problem of over- policing of our schools.

         22    Children are entitled to attend schools that are

         23  safe and secure, and that's the City's obligation.

         24  But in achieving that responsibility, the City

         25  should not lose sight of its primary mission for the
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          2  schools, which is the education of our children.

          3                 It's well recognized that students

          4  learn best in an environment where they are

          5  respected, where they feel good about themselves,

          6  and have positive attitudes towards their classmates

          7  and teachers.  An excessive police presence in the

          8  schools undermines these critical goals.  Over

          9  policing fosters an environment where students

         10  perceive that they're being treated as criminal, as

         11  Jeffany just testified, where they are diminished by

         12  these perceptions, and where, as a result, they

         13  develop negative attitudes towards school.

         14                 Over policing takes a number of

         15  forms.  The increasing use of magnetometers, which

         16  serve all too often as a flashpoint for conflict and

         17  abuse that compromises student dignity. School

         18  safety officers, with no educational expertise or

         19  training, employed, supervised, and trained by the

         20  New York Police Department, who I might add, is not

         21  here today to talk about what they're doing to

         22  enforce the cell phone ban.  School safety agents

         23  are extending their authority beyond the enforcement

         24  of criminal law to the enforcement of school

         25  discipline, a province that has historically been,
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          2  and should remain in the responsibility of

          3  educators.

          4                 And the failure to set forth clear

          5  lines of authority within the schools, so that

          6  principals remain uncertain as to whether they can

          7  direct the behavior of school safety agents, has

          8  resulted in a situation where school safety agents

          9  feel comfortable ignoring and disrespecting

         10  educators, students, and parents alike.

         11                 And finally, it entails daily

         12  adversarial interactions between school safety

         13  agents and children, which reinforce a negative

         14  environment that undermines education.

         15                 As a result of these policies, the

         16  NYCLU has received an increasing number of

         17  complaints from students, parents, teachers, and

         18  yes, even principals.  The complaints include: The

         19  use of abusive and derogatory language towards

         20  students; safety agents threaten students with

         21  criminal summonses for violating school rules;

         22  agents handcuff students who fail to present their

         23  school ID in a timely fashion: School safety agents

         24  unilaterally prohibit students who arrive ten

         25  minutes late to school from attending the rest of
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          2  the class.  Or taking a test.  Or even getting into

          3  school altogether for the day.

          4                 Female students complain to us that

          5  they are required to lift up their shirts for school

          6  safety agents because their underwire bras set off

          7  the metal detectors.  And the metal detectors are

          8  set deliberately to the most sensitive setting to

          9  catch things like underwire bras, and as we heard

         10  here today, cell phones.  It's not about safety,

         11  just.  It's about invading student privacy and

         12  making them expose themselves in the most

         13  humiliating fashion.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Donna, can you

         15  close up please?

         16                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Sorry about that.

         17  I'll skip to  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You have to.

         19                 MS. LIEBERMAN: I will.  I want to

         20  skip to some of the things that I think the  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Stick to the

         22  cell phone issue if you don't mind.

         23                 MS. LIEBERMAN: --  That the City

         24  Council can do. There is no accountability for

         25  school safety agents enforcing the cell phone ban or
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          2  any other policy.  The City Council has an

          3  obligation and the authority to hold school safety

          4  accountable.  To hold oversight hearings, to require

          5  an educational impact statement with regard to

          6  safety policies.  That includes an educational

          7  impact statement on the impact on students, on

          8  teachers, and on the school environment about what

          9  is going on   --  the impact of these policies.  And

         10  they shouldn't be allowed to exist without filing

         11  first an educational impact statement.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         13                 MS. LIEBERMAN: I have written

         14  testimony that goes at much greater length.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well I want to

         16  thank you all for coming in and giving testimony.

         17  Are there any questions?

         18                 Thank you.  Our next panel will be

         19  Carmen Colon, Association for New York Community

         20  Education Councils; Moir Kennedy, and the student,

         21  Sarah D'Amilo; and Sanford Goldstein, for the next

         22  panel.  Please come forward.

         23                 The next panel will be a panel of

         24  principals.  Rose Marie Mills, MS 222; Denise Hallet

         25  (phonetic) from Far Rockaway High School; and Grace
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          2  Zwellenberg, from John Adams High School. That's the

          3  next panel.  Please sit down.  Please.  And you may

          4  begin.  Carmen Colon.  Please begin.

          5                 MS. COLON: Good afternoon.  The

          6  association has made every attempt to find a

          7  collaborative solution to this very complex problem.

          8    We've had a petition with over 3,000 signatures to

          9  cease confiscation of the cell phones until a

         10  solution can be found.  All with the support from

         11  our esteemed Council Members, esteemed Senators, and

         12  the Manhattan Borough President. And anycc.org had a

         13  contest where middle and high school students tried

         14  to provide possible technological, non-

         15  technological, and out- of- the- box solutions.  We

         16  think that it is unfortunate that the Department of

         17  Education chooses not to even discuss the issue with

         18  the current parent leaders to date.  But I'd like to

         19  very much address a very important underlying issue

         20  about how this policy truly affects all of our

         21  children.

         22                 The issue of cellular phones is one

         23  of real trust. Do we trust our children to be

         24  responsible?  Children learn by example.  They will

         25  trust and respect those who trust and respect them
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          2  back.  The Department of Education that is in

          3  existence to educate our children has created a

          4  backdrop  --  tries to create the backdrop for

          5  social interaction is treating our children like

          6  prisoners.  That in fact, it is not  --  excuse me.

          7  Then in fact, it's the prisoners social settings and

          8  understandings and behaviors that's going to come

          9  out of these schools.

         10                 When does a social setting atmosphere

         11  and environment of respect come into play?  Are we

         12  as parents not saying that if we trust and respect

         13  our children enough to buy these tools of

         14  communications, then should you not also?  Are we

         15  not saying that if our children are found abusing

         16  this tool of communication, then we would be the

         17  first to stand behind you and provide the

         18  appropriate punishment that they're expected to

         19  adhere to?

         20                 The City is vast, and a bit scary,

         21  and that's for the parent alone.  So to ask the

         22  children who travel further now to a school at an

         23  age younger than in years past, to travel without a

         24  backup system of support is downright negligent.

         25  The Board of Ed may not like the idea that they have
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          2  to incorporate the costs of some mechanism to store

          3  these cell phones, or to simply allow them to be on

          4   "silent" in the bags of children, but the

          5  Department of Education really doesn't have the last

          6  word.  The State and the City does.  And the

          7  introduction of legislation at both levels make this

          8  a fact.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I thought I

         10  had set the clock on you, but the clock didn't go.

         11  So you sort of ended right on time.  I'm sorry.

         12                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Do I get her minute,

         13  sir?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I don't think

         15  so.  Sanford Goldstein.

         16                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yes.  Thank you.  I

         17  have a statement which basically has been spoken

         18  about.  There isn't an item on my list that hasn't

         19  been covered.  But something that I didn't have on

         20  my list is what we are teaching the children in the

         21  school with this policy.  We're teaching them that

         22  cops are bad.  That the system of enforcing these

         23  abusive laws, and it is abusive, are bad. And now,

         24  the policy enforcement team, otherwise, safety

         25  officials, are the implementers of a very bad
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          2  policy.  We're teaching them at a very young age to

          3  have lack of respect for the authorities. That's

          4  what we're teaching them.  And this is not a good

          5  lesson.

          6                 The two people that were up here from

          7  the Mayor's Office spoke and they would pick and

          8  pull little areas where it was convenient for them.

          9  I'm a former teacher.  Many, many years ago. A small

         10  area called Ocean Hill/Brownsville.  And boy do I

         11  wish we had cell phones then.  Boy do I wish that

         12  the kids in the yard during yard time had cell

         13  phones then, so they could call 911, call the

         14  school, call the teacher, and let us know if there

         15  was trouble.             It was the time that was

         16  when you had yard duty, that was like the worst

         17  thing that could possibly happen to a teacher.  I

         18  mean, that was before police did the yard duty.

         19                 I mean, this policy not only doesn't

         20  make any sense, I think it makes the City liable,

         21  liable if something happens to one's child on the

         22  way from school, or on the way to an after school

         23  program, if their phones were denied or taken away

         24  from them.  And then something happens.

         25                 Also, I might add that this entire
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          2  meeting on one hand is very impressive, that the

          3  entire Council seems so united, standing behind such

          4  a good issue.  But it also says to me that all this

          5  time and money that is being spent, should be spent

          6  on the education of our kids, and not all these

          7  discussions and policies, and ad nauseam studies

          8  that we'll probably have to reinforce the obvious.

          9  And the obvious is for me, as I have two children.

         10  One travels to Bronxside.  One travels to Lower

         11  Manhattan.  Both are very involved in after- school

         12  activities.  And I want to know what they're doing,

         13  where they're doing it, when they're doing, and if

         14  they're not using the phone in the proper way, then

         15  I'm going to be responsible for them, and I'll deal

         16  with it.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you sir.

         18  And next, last on this panel is Moir Kennedy and her

         19  daughter Sara D'Amilo.

         20                 MS. KENNEDY: Thank you Chair Jackson.

         21    And thank you Chair Vallone and members of the

         22  Committee.  And also, thank you to the parents and

         23  students who have remained here until this point in

         24  time.  And have showed up to hear what's being

         25  spoken about today. It's a vitally important issue.
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          2  And I'm so glad that we've actually finally begun a

          3  discussion on this important issue.

          4                 I know that the  --  what I'm going

          5  to do, and let me say that I'm going to make a few

          6  comments.  I will be submitting written testimony as

          7  well.  And then I am going to turn to my daughter

          8  who is 11 years old, and attends middle school and

          9  sixth grade.  And ask her some questions to

         10  facilitate her own testimony.           This is a

         11  very important day for us as a family, that we're

         12  here today to speak to you, and I truly hope that

         13  you will listen to what we have to say.

         14                 These hearings have highlighted a

         15  number of important issue.  What I find interesting,

         16  whenever I sit here, is that what I want to say

         17  seems to change as I listen to what I hear. I come

         18  in thinking I'm going to say one thing, and then

         19  influenced by the many comments that I hear.

         20                 One of the things that I did hear was

         21  from my own City Council Member, Dan Garodnick, who

         22  has actually been working with my family and other

         23  parents quite closely on this issue.  And I was glad

         24  to hear him say that perhaps what we need to do is

         25  look at solutions.  And to work together on the
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          2  local level.  I have been doing that with parents

          3  that I know.  I'm very active in parent

          4  associations, and I've reached out to other parents,

          5  both at my daughter's high school parent

          6  association, at my younger one's, and then just the

          7  parents that I even worked with on the elementary

          8  school level.

          9                 So when Dan says, let's work on the

         10  local level, I'm heartened by that.  And why, you

         11  might ask?  Why would I be heartened by that?

         12  Because I hear about lawsuits that are going to be

         13  started.  I hear about jamming technologies and

         14  studies.  I don't hear about what these costs.  What

         15  is that going to mean to me as a citizen, as a

         16  taxpayer.  No one is connecting a dollar sign to

         17  some of these solutions.  I think people are getting

         18  ahead of themselves.  What we need to do is actually

         19  continue this dialogue, but perhaps not the way it's

         20  happened here today.

         21                 We have a phrase in my home that

         22  says, sarcasm is a foreign language to us.  And what

         23  that means is that when we get sarcastic, it's kind

         24  of like, put the brakes on it, and try to figure out

         25  what you're saying.  Where is the anger coming from?
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          2  And let's start a reasonable, effective dialogue.  I

          3  think that's what's needed here.  I've been

          4  disheartened when I hear the Mayor speak about

          5  teachers and the UFT in a disrespectful way on his

          6  radio.  I'm disheartened when it gets repeated on

          7  page B5 of the Times the following day.  What do I

          8  tell my daughter, who goes to school, when the Mayor

          9  of our City is being disrespectful for a very

         10  important union?

         11                 I am now going to turn to my daughter

         12  and ask her some questions that I hope will

         13  facilitate both your understanding of this issue and

         14  our position on it.

         15                 One of the questions that you might

         16  be interested in hearing the answer to, and I guess

         17  you've got to start the clock again, how do you use

         18  a cell phone that you bring to school?

         19                 MS. D'AMILO: After school, the way I

         20  travel home from school, is either by subway or bus.

         21    And when I'm walking home from getting out of the

         22  subway or bus, I have to call my father and tell him

         23  that I'm okay, and everything was fine.  Just so he

         24  knows that I am home safe, and nothing bad happened.

         25    Also, if a friend of mine asks if I want to go
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          2  somewhere with them after school, I have to call my

          3  parents and make sure it's okay.  If I go somewhere

          4  with my friends, every hour or so I have to call and

          5  make sure my parents know that I'm okay.  If I

          6  didn't have my cell phone, I wouldn't be able to do

          7  that.  And I wouldn't have the independence I have

          8  in order to go places by myself.

          9                 MS. KENNEDY: How do teachers manage

         10  problems with the cell phones when they occur in

         11  class?  Certainly, sometimes, they must go off.

         12  Even now, though, we know that older teachers may

         13  not hear them, because they'll have that mosquito

         14  sound.  But what would you say?

         15                 MS. D'AMILO: During class, there was

         16  a time where a group of kids were text massaging

         17  during class, when the teacher was teaching a

         18  lesson.  And the way the teachers handled that was

         19  they took the kids cell phones and they would not

         20  give them back until  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Excuse me in the

         22  back.  We're listening to the children.  Excuse me

         23  in the back, if you have a conversation, please take

         24  it outside.  Thank you.

         25                 MS. D'AMILO: They would not give
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          2  their cell phones back to the children until a

          3  parent came in and had a meeting with the principal,

          4  the teacher involved, and the student, and they made

          5  sure that there was an understanding that it

          6  couldn't happen again.

          7                 MS. KENNEDY: What do you think  --

          8  earlier, I think it was Mr. Walcott, from the

          9  Mayor's Office, who said that if you need to reach

         10  me, or your dad during the day, that you can go to

         11  the office and make a phone call.

         12                 MS. D'AMILO: The teachers and

         13  principal at my school are very understanding.  And

         14  if you do have a problem, they will allow you to do

         15  whatever you have to do to fix it.

         16                 MS. KENNEDY: Excuse me Sarah.  Does

         17  that mean a teacher might actually let you make a

         18  phone call from your cell phone if there was some

         19  kind of problem?  It might not even be an emergency,

         20  but do you know of teachers, during the school day,

         21  have let students on a rare occasion, use a cell

         22  phone in the school? That's a yes or no, sweetie.

         23                 MS. D'AMILO: Yes.  Occasionally,

         24  there are like very important or just problems that

         25  someone has.  And if you explain it to our teachers,

                                                            161

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2  then they will understand.  Because they have gone

          3  through some of that.

          4                 MS. KENNEDY: Okay, I'm going to cut

          5  off my daughter, who actually is accustomed to my

          6  doing that, because I'm watching the clock.  I don't

          7  want to have happened to her what happened to me on

          8  May 11th.  I do have to still protect her.

          9                 I do want to say one comment further

         10  though. Because I know these hearings were actually

         11  about the legislative proposals.  Specifically, on

         12  Intro. Number 351.  One comment is that I think the

         13  dialogue should really start with this legislation.

         14  I don't think that this legislation, as it is, I've

         15  only seen it since last night.  But for just one

         16  example please, if you would bear with me.  When you

         17  say  --  in Section One  -- the use of such phones

         18  allows parents or guardians to ensure their

         19  children's safe arrival at school in the morning,

         20  and back at home, please let elected officials

         21  realize that nothing, nothing in the post 911 world

         22  can ensure the safety of our children.  What cell

         23  phones do is they reassure us that our children have

         24  gotten there safely.  Nothing ensures us.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very
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          2  much.  Thank you panel.  Any questions or comments?

          3  Quickly, from anyone?

          4                 Thank you.  Our next panel is a panel

          5  of principals. Rose Marie Mills, from MS 222; Denise

          6  Hallet, from Far Rockaway High School; and Grace

          7  Zwellinberg, from John Adams High School.

          8                 Please come forward.  Good afternoon.

          9    And you may begin in any order that you may deem

         10  appropriate.

         11                 MS. HALLET: Good afternoon Chairman

         12  Jackson and Vallone.  Members of the New York City

         13  Council's Education and Public Safety Committees,

         14  and all others gathered in the chamber for this

         15  hearing on the cell phone ban policy in New York

         16  City schools.  I am principal of an impact school in

         17  Far Rockaway, Queens.  My name is Denise Hallet.

         18                 The children's first school reform

         19  and school improvement is the focus and concern of

         20  many.  The State Education Department, our Mayor,

         21  our Chancellor, administrator, teachers, parents,

         22  students, and you, Council Members.  We're seeing an

         23  improvement in student performance because there is

         24  an improvement in teaching and learning.  There are

         25  literacy initiatives, a focus on graduation rates,
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          2  and a link with greater preparation for college and

          3  careers of the future.  We are developing safe, and

          4  secure environments where administrators and

          5  teachers can focus on teaching and learning, opposed

          6  to school safety issues.

          7                 This is all an integral part of our

          8  school reform and improvement.  The Chancellor's

          9  regulation, A4- 12, and the Citywide discipline code

         10  provide the standards for all schools to maintain

         11  safe environments for its students.  Research has

         12  shown that teaching and learning can only take place

         13  when there is a safe and secure environment for all.

         14

         15                 Weapons, electronic devices of any

         16  kind, and cell phones interfere with our ability to

         17  maintain a safe environment. They interfere with our

         18    --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Excuse me Ms.

         20  Hallet.

         21                 MS. HALLET: Yes sir.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Ladies and gents

         23  in the back. Sergeant- of Arms, would you ask

         24  everyone please to take a seat or leave the

         25  chambers.  Sergeant- of- Arms.  Please take a seat.
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          2  If you wish to talk, please take your conversations

          3  outside.  Thank you. You may continue.

          4                 MS. HALLET: They interfere with our

          5  ability to focus on the instructional agenda in our

          6  classrooms.  They are distractions for both students

          7  and teachers, and place an added burden on our

          8  instructional program.

          9                 Keeping students safe and protecting

         10  their well being has been the responsibility of

         11  educators since teaching began.  All schools have

         12  definitive procedures in place that continue to work

         13  every day to this end.  We constantly collaborate

         14  with the Division of School Safety, with the NYPD,

         15  with Housing and Transit Police to ensure that our

         16  students and your children are safe to and from

         17  school.  And safe in school.

         18                 Protecting students and providing

         19  them with the quality education is something we do

         20  every day.  We cannot afford to take steps

         21  backwards, and allowing cell phones or any

         22  electronic devices to interfere with the progress we

         23  are making would do just that.

         24                 As a principal, my experiences show

         25  that students will use cell phones during class
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          2  time, and I ask that this not be ignored.  I defer

          3  to Grace  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          5                 MS ZWELLINBERG: Good afternoon

          6  Chairmen Jackson and Vallone.  Members of the New

          7  York City Council's Education and Public Safety

          8  Committees.  And all others gathered in the chamber

          9  for this hearing on the cell phone ban policy in New

         10  York City.  My name is Grace Zwellinberg.  I am the

         11  Principal of John Adams High School.  We have

         12  approximately 3,400 students in my school.  And yes,

         13  we have enforced the electronic policy since 1988,

         14  since its inception, because we've had scanning

         15  since then.  And we have enforced it to the full

         16  extent.

         17                 I'm just going to summarize some of

         18  the things that are associated.

         19                 I truly believe that there will be

         20  1,400 impact schools, if we allow children to carry

         21  cell phones indiscriminately.  Except for a few

         22  cases, no one in my school carries cell phones.  The

         23  kids that have a medical emergency, there is a

         24  procedure in place.  And we address those as they

         25  come to us.
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          2                 There will be increased incidences in

          3  the schools. Thefts to and from school of cell

          4  phones.  Theft of cell phones in school.  Just from

          5  a bookbag.  Confrontations between staff and SSAs,

          6  and students in the hallways and classrooms.  Taking

          7  of students' pictures in locker rooms and bathrooms.

          8    We can't follow kids into the locker room.  We

          9  can't follow kids into the bathroom. And they will

         10  have their phones with them.  That they're in their

         11  pockets.  And whether they're turned off or on,

         12  there will be students taking pictures.

         13                 Now, I just want to say something.  A

         14  couple of the Council Members, and a couple of the

         15  speakers before talked about bad kids only doing it.

         16  Or thugs only doing it.  It's not only those kids

         17  that will use the cell phone.  It's a temptation,

         18  and they will use it if it's there to just even look

         19  at their messages during the day.  So they will use

         20  it.

         21                 Use of phones to incite large groups

         22  of outsiders to come to school and settle disputes.

         23  Calling in of bomb threats to schools to disrupt

         24  instruction.  There's even a gun that looks like a

         25  cell phone, that would get passed, because it looks
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          2  like a cell phone.  Weapons can be hidden in cell

          3  phones.  Scanners cannot distinguish between cell

          4  phones and weapons in the school when they go

          5  through the scanning procedure.  So that means that

          6  every student that has a cell phone will have to

          7  show it.  This will cause a very long line at

          8  scanning.  And it will disrupt the instructional

          9  process.

         10                 Now, disruption of instruction and

         11  educational dishonesty.  I mean, all of the

         12  aforementioned do disrupt instruction, but these are

         13  additional.  Students will text message each other

         14  answers to exams.  I know it's been documented where

         15  tests, even like SATs, where kids have text message

         16  other students in other states the answers to the

         17  exam. And that was caught a while back.  But that

         18  did happen.

         19                 Decrease in instruction time in the

         20  classroom, because disputes that involve the cell

         21  phone.  One of the young people said that they could

         22  put the cell phone on the desk.  If the cell phone

         23  is on the desk, kids will be tempted, if they don't

         24  have a cell phone to kind of take it.  That is a

         25  temptation.  It's not --  again, will disrupt
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          2  instruction.

          3                 Students have a quick way to alert

          4  others about   --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You need to sum

          6  up your testimony.

          7                 MS. ZWELLINBERG: Oh, I'm sorry.

          8  Ultimately, it is the responsibility of all us in

          9  the schools to provide a safe environment within the

         10  school, and the educational process in our schools.

         11  If this resolution passes, it will contribute in a

         12  major way to the distractions that student face that

         13  prevent them from achieving their ultimate goal of

         14  high school graduation.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Next.

         16    Will you press the button please.  And pull the

         17  mike up so we can hear you. Thank you.

         18                 MS. MILLS: I'm Rose Marie Mills,

         19  principal of Middle School 222 in the South Bronx.

         20  I thank you for giving me the time, the opportunity

         21  today to address everyone here.

         22                 I became the principal of Middle

         23  School 222 in January 2004.  And Middle School 222

         24  was one of the 12 impact schools, and it was one of

         25  only two middle schools that was given that name.
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          2  And among all the other issues that we had to work

          3  with, my administrative team and I had to work with

          4  there, was to create a safe and orderly environment,

          5  so that teaching and learning could take place.  And

          6  the Chancellors regulations helps me to accomplish

          7  this goal.  Because there were clear guidelines   that

          8  both students and parents knew and we abided by

          9  those guidelines.  And enforcing cell phones not

         10  being in the building has helped us tremendously.

         11                 I can speak from my realities as a

         12  principal in the South Bronx.  Of having irate

         13  parents coming to me about issues with students that

         14  were called in to them without school being

         15  notified.

         16                 We think there should be one policy

         17  with the one that exists, that allows the children

         18  not to have the cell phones in school, because the

         19  cell phones, every day, they get more

         20  technologically advanced.  They have different

         21  things every day. New things are added to them, and

         22  policing cell phones should not be the

         23  responsibility of school administration.  I think

         24  our number one responsibility is teaching and

         25  learning.  And anything that is going to distract us
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          2  from that should not be allowed in the building.

          3                 And I conclude by agreeing with the

          4  last advocate that said cell phone possession does

          5  not ensure the safety of students.  It's a

          6  communication tool, and yes, there are systems in

          7  place within schools when students do not show up,

          8  there are systems in place that must be followed to

          9  inform parents that your child did not make it to

         10  school.  So there are systems in place for that

         11  communication.  And if there are emergencies, there

         12  are clear emergency systems that school

         13  administrators have to abide by.

         14  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you all.

         16  Let me thank you for spending this day with us

         17  waiting to testify.  We know you have jobs to do.

         18                 Thank you for documenting the

         19  distractions and disruptions that cell phones cause

         20  in school, but you were here, so you know that all

         21  of us are aware of that.  We've very aware of the

         22  problems that cell phones cause at school.  But I

         23  for one, and I'm sure that most of my colleagues

         24  agree, think that the safety of our children trumps

         25  any possible disruption or distraction there may be
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          2  in school.

          3                 I'm dismayed that frankly, principals

          4  are here telling me that they can't enforce a cell

          5  phone ban in school. That you know  --  I've got

          6  lots of ideas.  If you want to speak to me about how

          7  to make sure kids don't use cell phones in schools,

          8  but there are ways to do it.  We understand that

          9  they're a distraction.  And I also know that they

         10  don't ensure the safety of kids.  What the do is

         11  ensure that they are safer than they would have been

         12  without cell phones.

         13                 We don't want them to be used in

         14  class either.  We made that very, very clear.  And

         15  we're sure that our great principals, and I know

         16  you're all from Queens, can come up with ways to

         17  make sure that they don't get used in class.  Like I

         18  said, take it the first time.  Make a parent come

         19  in.  Take it the second time, give it to charity.

         20  See how fast kids stop using cell phones in

         21  classrooms.  Just do it.  It's something that's

         22  easily done.

         23                 I don't really have a question, so

         24  I'm going to turn to Council Member Fidler.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you
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          2  Chairman Vallone. First I want to dispose of this

          3   "ensure" remark, which I think was --  I mean, only

          4  God Almighty can ensure anyone's safety.  And I -

          5  the comment itself struck me as a bit outlandish.

          6  So it doesn't even need to be rebutted.  But I can

          7  tell you that if my child is stranded on the street,

          8  and doesn't have a cell phone, having a cell phone

          9  would assist in his being safe.  So let's get away

         10  from ensure.

         11                 And I want to kind of draw a

         12  distinction that maybe some folks here need to have

         13  drawn.  Now, I get the   --  if I understand

         14  correctly, all three of you are principals in impact

         15  schools.

         16                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I'm not an

         17  impact school.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: But you're a

         19  metal detector school.  All right.  Well, you know,

         20  I happen to be a Council Member who stood up and

         21  applauded when the Mayor announced the impact school

         22  program.  I have two impact schools in my district,

         23  and I told the parents at both of those schools they

         24  should be pleased that somebody was coming in to try

         25  and make sure that their school children could go to
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          2  school in safety, because a child cannot learn if

          3  they don't feel safe.

          4                 So not all the testimony you've heard

          5  here before, and you know, we lost a couple of

          6  Council Members who said, this is where you lose me.

          7    On the issue of metal detection and scanning, you

          8  know, is relevant to the issue of cell phones.

          9  Because quite frankly, any gun or knife that's being

         10  brought into the school that can be detected and

         11  taken away, is a good thing.  That doesn't apply,

         12  that same logic does not apply to cell phones.  And

         13  so, the record needs to be clear about that  We can

         14  argue, and maybe on another day we will, about the

         15  appropriateness of scanning students coming in and

         16  out of school.  I have one view, maybe other

         17  Councilmen have another view.  But the discussion

         18  today is about the appropriateness of cell phones.

         19                 Now, I just want to come back to a

         20  couple of points that were raised.  When we got to

         21  the theft issue again.  Do any of your schools

         22  prohibit money, watches, or expensive sneakers from

         23  being brought into your school by your students?

         24                 MS. MILLS: Again, we are guided by

         25  the Chancellor's regulations, and those are not
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          2  prohibited items in school.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes, I know

          4  what the regulation is.  And I'm not looking to have

          5  you cite facts.  I'm looking for some real serious

          6  answers here.  Because I don't know if you were here

          7  when I made my opening statement.  I resent the

          8  argument that you can't have something because

          9  someone else might steal it.  I really do.  And when

         10  you bring it to other  --  I remember the time when

         11  we were sneakers.  I remember that. Councilman

         12  Weprin talks about watches.  But let's go to plain

         13  simple money.  My kid needs money on his person to

         14  come to and go home from school.  He may need money

         15  to buy lunch.  I would think money is the most

         16  fungible stolen item in schools.  And we don't

         17  prohibit it.  Do any of you prohibit it?

         18                 MS. HALLET: Council Member, I don't

         19  think that we're saying that money is not allowed,

         20  or it is not an item that will not be stolen, along

         21  with watches.  I think someone made reference to

         22  earlier.  And also sneakers.  Our concern is that if

         23  cell phones are allowed in classrooms, that we have

         24  another distracter that is going to interfere with

         25  student performance.

                                                            175

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: In all

          3  fairness, that was one of the points, and I'll get

          4  to that one in a second.  But I heard from your

          5  colleague from John Adams the point about theft.  I

          6  heard that very clearly.  And I just don't accept

          7  it.

          8                 Now, I also heard the cheating

          9  argument come up again.  And people being text

         10  messaged during the SATs from other states.  And

         11  actually, I thought that was a Law and Order

         12  episode. I'm not sure it was really happened.  But

         13  you know, again, why is it any harder for a proctor

         14  of an exam to see an electronic device being used to

         15  cheat as opposed to someone's cripp notes or someone

         16  passing a note.  Or someone writing answers on the

         17  palm of their hand.  Why is it harder to find a

         18  device that's text massaging than those things?

         19                 MS. ZWELLINBERG: You know, all those

         20  things we address.  And we look at.  This would be

         21  an additional way.  I don't understand why saying,

         22  oh, you know, we cheated before, so it's okay that

         23  they'll have the cell phones, and this is just

         24  another way.  Because teachers are very aware of

         25  cripp notes.  And teachers actively supervise during
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          2  a Regents exam.  Having the cell phone is added

          3  detraction.  And if students are taking a Regents or

          4  an exam to have a cell phone there means that there

          5  might be cheating.  I don't know.  But we have to

          6  control every possible way.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: No one here is

          8  condoning cheating.  And Chairman Vallone, at the

          9  outset of the hearing suggested a very sensible

         10  policy, which is off and out of sight. And so,

         11  during a Regents exam, there's no reason in the

         12  world for the cell phone to be on someone's desk.

         13  It ought to be in their pocket or their bookbag.

         14                 Now, we also heard about the cell

         15  phone as a gun. And I'm sure that  --  I read that

         16  article in the Post. It was fascinating.  And I'm

         17  sure that the average high school student has the

         18  ability to but that high- tech weapon right after

         19  Double O Seven sells it on the market.

         20                 I mean, you could make a calculator

         21  look like a gun. I mean, it's a disgraceful thing,

         22  but that to me is just absurd.

         23                 So let me get to the distraction

         24  issue.  Which is the one that we keep on coming back

         25  to.  I don't understand why, if a policy is simply
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          2  off and out of sight, zero tolerance for that, off

          3  and out of sight.  Whether that's harder  --  why

          4  that's harder to enforce than don't bring it at all.

          5    What is the extra effort that's being called upon?

          6    It strikes me that we're going to a tremendous

          7  amount of effort to confiscate 800, 1,000 cell

          8  phones when we scan.

          9                 And for those schools, and you're all

         10  scanning schools, and my child goes to a non-

         11  scanning school, has been told that on any given

         12  day, there might be random scanning.  And when he

         13  approaches school that day, he's going to have to

         14  decide whether or not to ditch the phone that his

         15  parents bought for him, or not go to school.  Which

         16  is an absurd choice to ask a child to have to make

         17  as well.

         18                 So what's the extra effort? Why, if

         19  the policy is zero tolerance at this level, is it

         20  harder to zero tolerance at this level?

         21                 MS. HALLET: Out of sight doesn't

         22  necessarily mean that it's off.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, if it

         24  rings, it's --

         25                 MS. HALLET: Well wait.  On Monday, I
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          2  think the article came out and it was all over the

          3  news on Tuesday, about the ring that adults cannot

          4  hear.  And that students can.  In addition, there's

          5  vibrating phones that will not make a very big

          6  noise, and students can have it on.  So that's   --

          7  out of sight doesn't mean out of order.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes.  But even

          9  if it vibrates, or if they have that ring that I'm

         10  too old to hear, and I saw all that.  They still

         11  have to take the phone out of their pocket to

         12  communicate with it.  To read the text message.  To

         13  get the voice mail.  That doesn't happen by magic.

         14                 MS. HALLET: If you're saying that

         15  cell phones  --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Which, by the

         17  way, at that point, they're now violating the

         18  policy.  You take the phone.

         19                 MS. HALLET: If you're saying that

         20  when cell phones ring, if you have maybe three to

         21  five students in ten classrooms and you multiply the

         22  number of students and teachers that that impacts,

         23  you're really taking a look at disruption to not

         24  just those 30 to 50 students, but to the other

         25  surrounding students in that classroom.  You're
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          2  asking teachers to take valuable instructional time,

          3  valuable teaching time to focus on addressing

          4  students who may have a phone that rings, or who may

          5  be receiving text messages, and who may be

          6  responding to text messages.

          7                 I also ask that you not dismiss the

          8  fact that cell phones can be used to bring all sorts

          9  of harmful weapons, blades, drugs, into schools.  We

         10  are in school buildings every day.  We came here to

         11  speak to you honestly and we're hoping that you're

         12  truly listening, because we are telling you what we

         13  see.  We're telling you what we're dealing with

         14  every day.  We're talking to you about kids who, as

         15  my colleague said, are not just the bad kids, but

         16  are all of our kids that are impacted by this.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I respect your

         18  sincerity in what you're saying.  I don't for one

         19  minute suggest you're here for any other reason.

         20  But, you know, they make you take your shoes off at

         21  the airport, put it through the metal detector, if

         22  you're going off, because people have been known to

         23  secrete things in their shoes.  I mean to suggest

         24  that we are going to single out the cell phone, you

         25  know even unscrew the stuff and they are going to
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          2  put a razor blade in. I mean that's preposterous.

          3  You'd have to strip search every child, that's just

          4  to say that's one more place they can hide it.

          5  That's crazy.  They could hide it in their

          6  calculators, probably one less screw.

          7                 So I mean that just doesn't make

          8  sense to me and you know, I was once called by one

          9  of our City daily newspapers and I was told a

         10  luddite, which is someone who is not for

         11  technological progress, because I didn't think that

         12  we should allow trains to be run by remote control.

         13  We have to recognize the realities of the years that

         14  we are in. You know, cell phones not Eve's Apple.

         15  You know, temptation, there will be a hundred things

         16  that are going to tempt tomorrow.

         17                 The final point, I know we have other

         18  witnesses. Last night we had the commemoration of

         19  the 20th anniversary of the signing of the  Gay

         20  Rights Bill and Mayor Koch got up and said, you know

         21  gee, when we did all that it was a big deal.  Now,

         22  we take for granted as not such a big deal with

         23  things that we did 20 years ago.  And I would submit

         24  to you that we are making a much, much bigger deal

         25  of the distraction issue.  If we established a
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          2  clear, consistent, no- tolerance policy that said,

          3  you can have them, they can't come out.  People

          4  would get that message.  You wouldn't be talking to

          5  me about, well we have thirty- five students and

          6  there are one every day, because it wouldn't happen.

          7    Because the first time they lost the phone, and

          8  the parent had to come up and get it, that, in my

          9  house would sure be the last time that that

         10  happened. In most houses, the second time, when the

         11  phone was taken, they wouldn't get a second phone

         12  purchased for them.

         13                 It just is too much adieu about

         14  nothing.  And if we establish the policy and move

         15  forward, I think you'd see it wouldn't be quite the

         16  issue that seems to be being raised today. Thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you

         19  Council Member.  Let me just add to that.  I agree

         20  completely with Council Member Fidler that the

         21  safety issues are either non- existent or if they do

         22  exist they are out- weighed by the safety of kids to

         23  and from school. Kids are not using these things to

         24  smuggle things in and out of the school and risk

         25  with them having it stolen again is outweighed.  So
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          2  that's something we've disconsidered and we are not

          3  actually considering any more.

          4                 What this comes down to is to say,

          5  it's an added burden to you and to teachers.  And we

          6  understand that.  This is not something we'll wish

          7  to add additional burdens to you're already pretty

          8  burdensome life as principals and teachers.  We know

          9  how tough it is in those schools.  And it's not

         10  something we do lightly.  We are very aware that the

         11  major problem here that the school system has with

         12  this is that it's a huge undertaking and that it

         13  will cause extra work for all of you, and that's not

         14  something we do lightly, trust us.

         15                 We expect your opinion and we are

         16  glad you are here to tell us about these problems

         17  because hopefully you can help us. And the question

         18  is now craft our bill perhaps a little better.  So

         19  that we can approve it, so that it will help you

         20  more than it does now.  Because the bill's going to

         21  be passed, as you know.  There is 40 of us on it.

         22  So if you have some opinions or some ideas on ways

         23  to improve this we would be more than happy to

         24  listen, because we really do respect your opinion.

         25                 MS. PALLET: I just wanted to say,
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          2  it's not that it's a burden on us because our jobs

          3  are tremendous and we have large schools and a great

          4  number of kids and a great number of challenges that

          5  we deal with everyday.  So it's not that it's a

          6  burden, it's our focus on instruction and teaching

          7  that is our primary concern. You know, it's the

          8  safety of students first in our schools, in our

          9  school buildings, and we have decreased incidence

         10  across the City, you know, really, greatly, but what

         11  we need to do is concentrate on getting the kids to

         12  graduate without -- and I respectively disagree that

         13  it's not a distraction and it's just going to be --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I mean it's not

         15  a distraction --

         16                 MS. PALLET: You know, its something

         17  that we care about our kids getting on with the rest

         18  of their lives and graduating high school and that's

         19  our primary focus.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And we care our

         21  kids getting to and from school in safety and so we

         22  are trying to work out both of those things, so we

         23  can do one and you can do yours.

         24                 But let me move to our Council Member

         25  Gerson.

                                                            184

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

          3  much.  Let me just take the opportunity to

          4  congratulate or to thank actually, our two Chairs

          5  Jackson and Vallone for the way conducted you

          6  conducted this Hearing.  I know them well enough,

          7  and that's not going to get me any extra time.  So

          8  that's sincere.

          9                 A question and then a comment.  The

         10  question is, why does it have to be the same for

         11  every school in this very diverse system.  Wouldn't

         12  you as principals want to preserve the flexibility

         13  to adjust rules, to fit the needs and experiences of

         14  your schools and would you not want to extend the

         15  same flexibility to your colleagues and other

         16  schools, which may be dealing with slightly

         17  different situations, not only within the school

         18  buildings, but in the neighborhood surrounding of

         19  the schools? Should we not afford you, as

         20  professional leaders of your school communities an

         21  opportunity for a reasonable degree of flexibility?

         22                 MS. PALLET: That's a very interesting

         23  question and you would think that it would be

         24  something that we would really be able to have. But,

         25  if you take a look at all of our schools, one of the
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          2  reasons why we are able to come here before you as a

          3  group to address this issue is because we have very

          4  similar experiences.  We have students who do some

          5  of the same things.  We can say one thing to each

          6  other and we know exactly what the situation was and

          7  we know exactly what happened.

          8                 And this is one of the reasons why we

          9  are quite appreciative of the Chancellor's

         10  Regulation and of the Discipline Code because it

         11  allows uniformity, it allows equity.  If a student

         12  leaves my school and transfers to her school, the

         13  same school safety policies and procedures are in

         14  place.  The same discipline codes are in place.  And

         15  so, all students know that throughout the City of

         16  New York, those same procedures are in place that

         17  will drive their behavior and that will drive their

         18  actions and will also drive what we are allowed to

         19  do, when students do the wrong thing.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: When it's off,

         21  it's on, the light that is.  And when it's on, it's

         22  off.  That's how it works here.

         23                 MS. ZWELLLINBERG: I would just want

         24  to add about instructional time.  And we are looking

         25  at the things that really disrupt instruction and
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          2  yet I may have a class of thirty students with one

          3  cell phone going off in the middle of a lesson.  It

          4  takes away from the instructional time of all the

          5  students.  Every single one looses that

          6  instructional time when the teacher has to stop

          7  instruction.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I guess, and I

          9  appreciate the dialogue.  I guess the fault was, is

         10  that the common rule throughout the system is that

         11  there be no use of cell phones, which the common

         12  rule should be.  The suggestion is that the common

         13  rule be that there is no use of cell phones, except

         14  for emergencies of course, within the school

         15  building.  But the means, the mechanisms to enforce

         16  that common rule might vary, depending on the

         17  situations of the schools.  Let me just leave that

         18  up there, you know, for us to think about.

         19                 My comment to Chairs, is addressed

         20  not only to this panel, but to public education and

         21  the Administration.  I'm glad they are here.  But, I

         22  am a proud graduate of public school system from

         23  kindergarten through the 12th grade.  I was the

         24  beneficiary of great principals, as well as great

         25  teachers and that's why I have such confidence in
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          2  these principals and teachers that they would be

          3  able to deal with the rule prohibiting cell phone

          4  use but not prohibiting the possession of it.

          5                 From my experience, I will be very

          6  brief, it defies and offends really, by common sense

          7  of one of my experiences to say that there is going

          8  to be greater bullying, greater cheating, greater of

          9  disciplinary problems because of the cell phones.

         10  We had all that without cell phones and we'll have

         11  it with cell phones, with or without it.  And you

         12  are going to have to deal with them and if we

         13  support it we'll be able to deal with it effectively

         14  whether or not cell phones are ban from possession.

         15                 I can't imagine situations where

         16  every abusive cell phone, there is a young person

         17  who uses a cell phone, not to call people to come to

         18  a fight, but to call police or the school principal.

         19  I can certainly remember situations where I was

         20  isolated, and if I or other students had a cell

         21  phone, we would have been able to summon help.  So I

         22  think there is no basis to define my experience in

         23  the public school system to say that there is going

         24  to be a net increase in problems in disruption of

         25  educational time because we have cell phones.
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          2                 You know I remember gum.  You weren't

          3  allowed to chew gum.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Councilman, we

          5  have four more panels and four more panels after

          6  their four panels --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: The complaint

          8  is made-            CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Please,

          9  let's not sit here the entire time --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: -- And so my

         11  comments will address all four panels.  But in

         12  conclusion --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: No, no, the

         15  final sentence. This has to be.  I would take the

         16  concern over school time disruption a lot more

         17  seriously because this is not the same

         18  Administration, which wanted to make sure that

         19  teachers had to have class time, a lunch room time

         20  and hallway patrol time instead of pedagogical time.

         21    And also you're concern over bullying, if you have

         22  the code you have there, which still does not yet

         23  fully and adequately define and prohibit bullying in

         24  our system.  So I urge you to work on the underlying

         25  problems and remember the needs for cell phones to
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          2  and from school and your concerns about them.  Thank

          3  you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          5  Council Member James.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Just a question

          7  of fact.  The two principals here are from Far

          8  Rockaway and the Bronx, represent impact schools.

          9  The young lady in the middle is from James Adams,

         10  John Adams, excuse me and you indicated that you

         11  have implemented this policy since its inception in

         12  1987 or '88, correct?

         13                 MS. ZWELLINBERG: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, that

         15  suggests to me certain things.  One, impact schools

         16  you have Megs, a metal detector, which suggests that

         17  you -- you don't have a magnetometer at your school?

         18    No.  Thank you.

         19                 Do you have Megs at your school?  And

         20  you have been implementing this policy.  So

         21  basically my question to the Principal from PS 222,

         22  because the other two principals, they have a

         23  policy.  They have been confiscating phones, I would

         24  think, and therefore it's primarily your experience

         25  has been based on conjecture and based on
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          2  hypothetical and based on what possibly could

          3  happen, as opposed to actual fact.  Is that a fair

          4  statement?

          5                 MS. MILLS: I think what we're saying

          6  to you, all that we have been sharing with you, is

          7  factual.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Oh, I'm sure

          9  it is factual. But my point is that you have a metal

         10  detector at your school because you are an impact

         11  school and therefore you have been confiscating

         12  phones.  Yes?

         13                 MS. MILLS: That's correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.  And the

         15  principal from John Adams, you've been confiscating

         16  phones since the inception of it's policy. Yes?

         17                 MS. ZWELLINBERG: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And so

         19  basically you've been basting your testimony on

         20  popular, what you have been reading in the New York

         21  Post.

         22                 MS. ZWELLINBERG: No. That's not

         23  correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Well, the one

         25  example that we talked about earlier was from the
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          2  New York Post.

          3                 MS. ZWELLINBERG.: No, that was from

          4  Enron.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay, so it's a

          6  popular belief. So it's really 2- 2- 2.  You don't

          7  have a meg, you don't have a magnetometer, you don't

          8  have a metal detector.  Your instance, your case,

          9  your situation, your frame of experience is based on

         10  what is happening at your school. How long has your

         11  school been at impact?

         12                 MS. ZWELLINBERG: Since the inception

         13  of impact, January '04.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And impact

         15  suggests to me that you have a significant number of

         16  police in your school, correct?

         17                 MS. ZWELLINBERG: When we started.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And it also

         19  suggests to me that you have a problem based upon

         20  the number of incidents at your school, which is why

         21  your school is designated an "impact" school. Yes?

         22                 MS. ZWELLINBERG: Correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.  So,

         24  you've had problems with your population for some

         25  time.  Yes?
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          2                 MS. ZWELLINBERG: Yes, that's correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.  Thank

          4  you.  No further discussion.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          6  Council Member Martinez.

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Can I just make

          8  one comment, in response to Council Member James.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Sure.  Go ahead

         10  please.

         11                 MS. PALLET: One of the things that I

         12  would like for you to understand is that although we

         13  are impact schools, the procedures that are in place

         14  with the Discipline Code and with the Chancellor's

         15  Regulation, has really helped to improve the tone,

         16  and improve the safety of the environment for our

         17  kids.  So, although we may still be impact schools,

         18  we have made great strides in improving school

         19  safety and because of that we can now focus on

         20  teaching and learning.

         21                 MS. ZWELLINBERG: You are absolutely

         22  right.

         23                 MS. PALLET:  And that is why we truly

         24  feel that the cell phones, the use of cell phones in

         25  our school building and the cell phones that the

                                                            193

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2  kids will have in classrooms, are going to greatly

          3  impact both areas, both teaching and learning and

          4  both in both school phases.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: My point is

          6  that you are speculating, because they are based

          7  upon the fact that your school is impact and you

          8  have been confiscating cell phones from its

          9  inception and you are really just speculating.  And

         10  let me also say, because your school is impact, I

         11  would argue that the reason why the number of

         12  incidents have been reduced at your school is

         13  because you have police and a significant number at

         14  that.                    MS. PALLET: Okay. There is

         15  a very concrete program in place, that involves more

         16  than just police presence.  There is a program of

         17  Student Support, there is a program of Improving

         18  Teaching and Learning, there is a program of

         19  Following the Discipline Code, there is a program of

         20  Following the Chancellor's Regulation, and all of

         21  these --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  All of that.

         23                 MS. PALLET: -- All of it --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Correct.

         25                 MS. PALLET: -- Works to improve the
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          2  environment that provides a safe environment for all

          3  of our children in all of our schools, each and

          4  every day.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But to think

          7  that the cell phone ban is somehow the leading cause

          8  of the reason why your school is now safe, is a

          9  misperception.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         11  Council Member Martinez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you

         13  Mr. Chair.  First of all I want to start by saying

         14  that I appreciate the leadership of every single one

         15  of you in the school building, as educators and

         16  leaders in education.  But, you know when we heard

         17  testimony from the Administration in terms of

         18  violence, the connection between violence and cell

         19  phones.  There were no specific statistics to

         20  support that.  When we spoke about increased

         21  violence between gangs, no statistics support that.

         22  We only heard some example of incident from Mr.

         23  Terence Tolbert, and the problem I have, and

         24  unfortunately you're the principal.

         25                 I remember going to school and if I
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          2  took out a Walkman, a Game Boy, whatever it was, it

          3  was confiscated because it was not allowed in the

          4  school building, my parents were called, if I used

          5  it again, after the first incident, I would not see

          6  that until the end of the year.  And unfortunately,

          7  that's the type of leadership that we are talking

          8  about in implementing policy.

          9                 No one is advocating for cell phones

         10  in the classroom or in the school building.  What we

         11  are saying is, it just cannot be done for a child to

         12  have a cell phone from school to home, and from home

         13  to school.  So he has to have it on his possession,

         14  but without being used.

         15                 So my question is. Do you think that

         16  with the additional cut in personnel, coming soon

         17  from the Department of Education, which means, I

         18  don't know if we are going to have less school aids.

         19    I remember a school aid who use to patrol the

         20  halls and the school aid that will assist principals

         21  and teachers if they confiscated something, that

         22  school aid would take it to the principal's office,

         23  or the dean's office and put it away.

         24                 What happened to the common sense

         25  system of a community where children had supervision

                                                            196

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2  of the staff, the adults in the building, that if

          3  you're not supposed to do that in the school

          4  building, there are consequences, we took it away

          5  from you. What happened to that concept?

          6                 MS. PALLET: That concept still

          7  exists.  We still have procedures in place in our

          8  Discipline Code.  But, if you are now asking me to

          9  use my resources, my funding to provide a large

         10  number of school aids to monitor the use of cell

         11  phones, then where are my dollars to support

         12  instruction so that my students improve.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: That's not

         14  what I am asking you for.  What I'm saying is, if

         15  there's a rule, a procedure in the school building

         16  that you cannot have a cell phone, and if you see a

         17  child with a cell phone being utilized in the

         18  hallway or a classroom, why not simply confiscate

         19  the phone, contact the parents, and if he does it

         20  again, just confiscate it until the end of the year.

         21    It was like the "known rule" when I went to

         22  school. But, if you do this, either it is going to

         23  get confiscated, if you fight you are going to get

         24  suspended. I use to love the food fights. Food

         25  fights, you get suspended and so forth.  And we knew
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          2  the consequences and parents were called.

          3                 I'm not saying dedicate solely on

          4  patrolling to detect and look for cell phones.  But

          5  if you see a child using a cell phone, there should

          6  be an adult that could simply call security to

          7  confiscate it or take the phone and take it to the

          8  principal's office or the Dean, and have it there

          9  until you contact the parents.  If you do it again,

         10  you just lost it.  And parents should get that

         11  message that if they do it again, you are not going

         12  to see it until the end of the year.

         13                 MS. PALLET: We do have procedures in

         14  place. And procedures, believe it or not, are not

         15  far from what you just said. However, now, ask us to

         16  multiply that by the number of students that we have

         17  in our building.  Me, ask me to multiply that times

         18  900 students.  Ms. Zwellinberg, ask her to multiply

         19  that times 3,400 students.  It takes a lot out of

         20  the instructional day. It takes a lot out of what

         21  should be happening in classrooms and that is

         22  specifically that we should be using every precious

         23  moment on teaching and learning and not taking time

         24  to focus on cell phones. And having to follow up on

         25  cell phones.  And having to discipline students
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          2  because of cell phones.  We need to focus on

          3  teaching and learning.  All of our moments are

          4  precious.  As it is, we don't have enough.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. I

          6  want to thank all three of you for coming in and

          7  giving testimony and we appreciate your

          8  participation in this Hearing.  Thank you very much.

          9                 Next we are going to hear from a

         10  panel of activists, Rebecca Daniels, District 2,

         11  CEC, Community Education Council. Elizabeth Lois

         12  Ritter, Community Board 12, District 2 Parent, high

         13  school parent.   David Bloomfield, Citywide Council

         14  on High Schools, and Melvin Band, a retired teacher.

         15    Please come forward.

         16                 Rebecca Daniels, Elizabeth Lois

         17  Ritter, David Bloomfield and Melvin Band. Rebecca,

         18  please, you may begin.

         19                 MS. DANIELS: I want to first say

         20  thank you very much the entire Council for having

         21  this Hearing today.  They have been tremendously

         22  insightful and effective and extremely creative and

         23  I think that there are a great deal of solutions

         24  that have come up today and a lot that's been

         25  challenged.  And I want to thank all the parents who
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          2  came out as well.  It was I think, a very worthwhile

          3  day.  Having said that, I would also like to say,

          4  I'm not going to go to my written testimony because

          5  as the day as gone on, there are just so many issues

          6  that I think are particularly important.

          7                 The issue I heard in terms of

          8  presuming how much time we involve in the classroom,

          9  over the issue of the distraction of the cell phone,

         10  I really don't know where to go there because I

         11  think that we are speculating.  I think we are also

         12  speculating in terms of the impact schools.  Because

         13  the scanning brought about the cell phone.  The cell

         14  phone is the issue here and I think that's something

         15  we have to keep very distinct in our minds.

         16                 I also think that when we talk about

         17  the safety, going back and forth to school, we

         18  brought up many issues, but I do know because I have

         19  been very active in the CEC and because I've been a

         20  PA President over the years and I've been in private

         21  and public school for the past 13 years, at this

         22  point, with two children of various ages.

         23                 I know for example, in Chinatown

         24  currently, we have a problem where there are cafes,

         25  internet cafes.  And these are not cafes, they are
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          2  behind bakeries and they are run by gangs.  And

          3  these are issues the kids can very easily walk into.

          4    And a cell phone is a perfect thing to have at a

          5  time like that.  I also know there was an instance

          6  where somebody saw someone in a car accident and it

          7  was a teenager and another teenager picked up the

          8  phone and called 911.  Obviously this is just

          9  limited children, but I am sure all of us have

         10  picked up a cell phone in an emergency situation

         11  ever since we've had them.  I know I have also heard

         12  at some of our Hearings how rumors get started using

         13  a cell phone when there is a crisis and the GOE does

         14  not approve of that.

         15                 I was very involved in 9- 11 downtown

         16  and very involved in finding parents in 41 and ran a

         17  supply station out of 41 so I know what it's been

         18  like to use cell phones at times like that.  And

         19  they really aren't rumors.  Rumors are started to

         20  call 911, rumors can start in any situation.  So I

         21  can't really agree at that.  As far as the sneakers

         22  and the watches, and I heard that conversation, I'd

         23  love to add to that list too because it could have

         24  been John Roman (phonetic) handbags, when I grew up.

         25                 I mean, there is always going to be

                                                            201

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2  something.  One of the people at DOA said well, if

          3  these kids wear a pink rays around their neck the

          4  could get mugged.

          5                 These are family values.  We teach

          6  our children what they can and cannot wear to

          7  school.  I think this is something where the parents

          8  have some privilege in deciding what is under their

          9  domain and what is the auspices of the DOE.

         10                 I do understand that there can be

         11  problems in school, but I've also listened to this

         12  whole conversation about cheating.  As far as the

         13  cheating, it was very interesting. One gal told me

         14  from one of the schools in high school that they're

         15  more clever than that.  They use there water

         16  bottles.  There are all kinds of ways.  I listened

         17  to a teacher from Stuyvesant come talk and she said

         18  they are still writing on their sneakers.  You know

         19  there are a million ways we can all learn how to

         20  cheat, you know. Let's hope that they won't, but I

         21  don't know how far we can go with that.  Here we are

         22  as adults.  What do we do, when we are trying to get

         23  our eye exam passed at the motor vehicle's bureau.

         24                 I just don't want to speculate much

         25  more because I think that it's old fashioned.  I
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          2  think that people will still throw airplanes across

          3  the room, I think they'll still whisper, I think

          4  someone is going to pull someone's hair, they are

          5  going to put gum on their seat and someone is going

          6  to have to stop and tell the whole class, not who

          7  did this or you all get punished. So, I just think

          8  that kind of conversation is just not relevant.  I

          9  think that we are a little, a don't know what kind

         10  of phobic it is, technophobic, whatever, I can't

         11  articulate.

         12                 But, I think the fact of the matter

         13  is we have kids now that are doing exhibitions in

         14  our portfolio schools. These kids know what

         15  PowerPoint is.  Some kids don't know what PowerPoint

         16  is. Some kids go to the library and finding other

         17  ways to make these presentations all the more

         18  elaborate.  And our kids have to step up and

         19  compete.  And they are competing for college

         20  entrances.  We've got kids in the suburbs who have

         21  known what PowerPoint is forever.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Please sum up

         23  with it.

         24                 MS. DANIELS: Okay.  So I want to say

         25  as far as technology, I think we can relate to the
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          2  cell phone. And I think as one of the Councilman

          3  said, we can certainly figure out how to do no

          4  texting and no photographs.  So I am just going to

          5  highlight one or two things and say I'd rather not

          6  see these kids labeled. I think we are labelling

          7  them and listen to conversations.  They are not bad

          8  kids, they are great kids.  And if you label in a

          9  negative way, they feel negative about themselves, I

         10  mention this to impact schools, principal's offices.

         11    There is so much you could say except let them eat

         12  cake.  I do feel and I'd like to say, being on the

         13  CEC and being involved, I think a more serious issue

         14  and this is that we are not involved in making

         15  decisions.  I don't know if it's going to be that we

         16  as parents come to Council, to formulate some kind

         17  of communication.  But, I think it's very wrong that

         18  these decisions are made and not one parent, CEC,

         19  SLT, PTA, PA, et cetera, et cetera, et cetera, have

         20  had any impact, or one bit of conversation about

         21  policies such as this.  It hangs up the phone on us

         22  and slams the door.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Ms. Daniels,

         24  you've really got to stop here.

         25                 MS. DANIELS: I think that's it.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think Council

          4  Member Fidler wanted to make a brief comment on your

          5  testimony.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes, I just

          7  thought it would be inappropriate if we didn't at

          8  least acknowledge the tremendous contribution you've

          9  made to this fight, Rebecca.  I know that a lot of

         10  the organizing that goes on in and around you on

         11  this issue, has helped bring us to this day and I

         12  just wanted to convey my thanks to you.

         13                 MS. DANIELS: Thank you for being

         14  there.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.  Why

         16  don't we go with Elizabeth next.

         17                 MS. RITTER:  Hi, I jettisoned my

         18  written testimony and rewrote it as I was listening

         19  to everybody else's testimony.

         20                 This man back here said, Thomas

         21  Jefferson, for those of you who cannot read the

         22  plaque, I am not an advocate for frequent changes in

         23  laws and constitutions but laws and institutions

         24  must go hand in hand with the progress of the human

         25  mind.  As that becomes more developed, more
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          2  enlightened as new discoveries are made, new truths

          3  discovered and manners and opinions change.  With

          4  the change of circumstances institutions must

          5  advance also to keep pace with the times. We might

          6  as well require a man to wear still the coat when

          7  fitted him when a boy, as civilized society to

          8  remain ever under the regiment of their barbarous

          9  ancestors.

         10                 My name is Elizabeth Ritter.  I am

         11  the parent who started this media fury eight weeks

         12  ago.  I live in Washington heights, I have a son who

         13  attends the Salk School of Science in District 2 and

         14  a daughter at Bronx High School of Science.

         15                 My son has a two- train and one- bus

         16  commute everyday, you probably read about it on the

         17  front page of the New York Times in the middle of

         18  May.  But I am not actually here to talk about my

         19  children's experience, because both of children are

         20  exempt.  Bronx Science has a pilot program that

         21  allows local control of rules on cell phones.  Mr.

         22  Tolbert of the DOE was actually wrong.  There are a

         23  couple of schools in the system that are pilot

         24  schools and my son is highly asthmatic so he has a

         25  medical exception.
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          2                 I'm here to advocate for the other

          3  one million, ninety- nine thousand, nine hundred

          4  ninety- eight children in the school system who are

          5  subject to a policy that I think is not particularly

          6  effective or smart.

          7                 Deputy Mayor Walcott spoke of the

          8  place of cell phones in schools.  Well, that place

          9  is in back- packs or in back pockets and off.  End

         10  of discussion.  I'm here to talk about the place of

         11  cell phones not in school.  And it's really not up

         12  to the Chancellor or the Mayor to get involved in my

         13  husband's and my method of parenting our children.

         14  It is my right as a parent and my children's rights

         15  as citizens of the world to carry a cell phone and

         16  use it at my discretion and their discretion during

         17  non- school hours.

         18                 We've heard a lot of anecdotes about

         19  terrible ways in which cell phones have been used

         20  and very helpful ways in which cell are used.  I am

         21  sure that they are all true but I think that

         22  something that is really important is that you make

         23  really bad public policy when you do it based on

         24  outlier.  You have to make public policy based on

         25  the norm, based on the average, based on the
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          2  standard.  There is if you look at medical testing,

          3  when you go to solve the problem of false/negative's

          4  or false/positive's you want what's called an alpha

          5  level of five percent, that's considered a fair

          6  standard.  So that you've got 95 percent accuracy,

          7  five percent inaccurate.  Most people can live with

          8  that.  If you want to be really safe, you go with an

          9  alpha level of two percent.

         10                 Dennis Walcott testified that they

         11  had confiscated 36 weapons and 1,800 cell phones,

         12  that is 1.9 percent weapons.  By any medical

         13  standard that is, and I'm not advocating weapons in

         14  the schools, I'm just saying it's a false/negative

         15  by any medical standard would be considered

         16  acceptable.

         17                 In closing, I'd like to say that the

         18  Deputy Mayor also testified the job is to set the

         19  standard and enforce the standard.  Well if that's

         20  the job, let's talk about Chancellor Klein who

         21  during the PEP meeting, where the cell phone policy

         22  was discussed, was on his Blackberry the entire

         23  time.  That's not how you set the standard.  And if

         24  that Blackberry is good enough for Chancellor Klein

         25  when he's at work, then my kid's cell phone is good
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          2  enough for my kid when they are out after school or

          3  before school.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, and

          5  so you know, we do have your written testimony, it

          6  will become part of the record, so no one needs to

          7  feel they have to read the entire written

          8  statements.

          9                 MS. RITTER: Oh, I didn't.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I know you cut

         11  it very short, but there are two more to come and

         12  one absolutely will not be able to be read, Mr.

         13  David Bloomfield, Citywide Council on High Schools.

         14                 MR. BLOOMFIELD: Yes.  Hi. Thank you

         15  very much.  My name is David Bloomfield, I am a

         16  member of the Citywide Council on High Schools.  I

         17  would also say that I am a Professor of Education

         18  and Chair of the Educational Leadership Program at

         19  Brooklyn College.

         20                 I take offense at the way the

         21  Department of Education has wrapped itself around

         22  this phrase "teaching and learning" as if we parents

         23  and we educators don't care about teaching and

         24  learning just as much.  It's a despicable debating

         25  tactic, that they should apologize for.
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          2                 Having said that, the Citywide

          3  Council on High Schools, which is an elected body,

          4  created by the Chancellor to advise him on high

          5  school policy, has voted unanimously to bring cell

          6  phones and ipods into the schools.  I would like to

          7  be intro to the amended and that's the Citywide

          8  Council on High Schools' policy to include MP3

          9  players.  Our children have long journeys to and

         10  from  school.  They should be able to have the

         11  pleasure of quiet enjoyment of those devices as long

         12  as they don't disrupt the school day.

         13                 And I will add, and it's in my

         14  remarks that the City's us, them mentality with

         15  guarding these non- dangerous items, not only

         16  poisons the school climate but extends the

         17  government's reach into innocuous, personal, off-

         18  campus behavior.  I believe that's illegal.  I'm a

         19  former General Counsel to the New York City Board of

         20  Education, I teach education law and I think it's

         21  time for the Mayor to be concerned about what goes

         22  on in schools and not what goes on back and forth in

         23  the school day.

         24                 Finally, I want to say that I believe

         25  the Mayor and the Chancellor are disconnected from
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          2  families.  The Chancellor has just extended the

          3  empowerment zone to over 300 schools and we had

          4  three principals here, under the watchful eye of Mr.

          5  Pinto (phonetic), saying that they thought that they

          6  should be allowed to abandon cell phones for their

          7  schools, fine.  If they have the leadership ability

          8  and I teach leadership, to convince their school

          9  communities, teachers, administrators and parents,

         10  if that is the best thing for their kids, then let

         11  them make that policy.  It should be school- based,

         12  that's where it belongs and it doesn't belong in a

         13  system of schools, rather than a system of

         14  bureaucratic regulation.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Before you go,

         16  let me say, I think you may have heard me say to the

         17  young girls, who testified earlier, that I think she

         18  is absolutely right, as are you on constitutional

         19  grounds.  Within the school, I believe we would

         20  lose. But outside the schools, age is not a suspect

         21  class, which means we can make regulations. I know

         22  that because I'm involved in a graffiti lawsuit and

         23  I'm being challenged on the exact same basis. But

         24  you need a rational basis and my basis on the

         25  graffiti lawsuit is 20 percent of graffiti done by

                                                            211

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2  kids 18, 19 and 20.  But there is no rational basis

          3  to stop a child going to and from school from having

          4  a cell phone.

          5                 And so I think you are absolutely

          6  right, we would win that in court.

          7                 MR. BLOOMFIELD: Just to pull another

          8  case out of the air, Yoder is a case about parent

          9  decision- making over school policies. Yoder v.

         10  Wisconsin.  And that says that parents should be

         11  able to -- it's actually a compulsory education

         12  suit, that the Amish were able to take their

         13  children out of school for that purpose.  If parents

         14  have a right to attenuate the education of their

         15  children, certainly they have the right to decide

         16  whether or not their children will ipods, as well as

         17  cell phones off school premises.  They are not

         18  weapons.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.  Mr.

         20  Band, as I said we have your testimony, you don't

         21  need to read it, you've got three minutes.

         22                 MR. BAND: Okay.  Thank you.  Good

         23  afternoon Councilman Jackson and Vallone.  My name

         24  is Melvin Band, I'm a retired teacher.  First, the

         25  fact of life.  Anything and everything in the
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          2  universe can be used for good or evil.  Mayor

          3  Bloomberg and Chancellor Klein, to further their own

          4  agendas, view cell phones as evil, as weapons, put

          5  in the same category as guns and knives. They are

          6  alarmists wanting the public to think that with cell

          7  phones in the schools, anarchy will rule, learning

          8  will stop.

          9                 This is insulting to our students,

         10  saying they have no self discipline, they can't be

         11  trusted.  This meets contempt with authority.

         12                 Well here's something to really be

         13  alarmed about.  New York Post, February 15, 2004,

         14   "Clear and present danger to kids, Dozen of Child

         15  Molesters convicted of the most heinous crimes on

         16  the youngest of victims are living within blocks of

         17  elementary and middle schools all over Brooklyn."

         18  The Mayor and Chancellor should stand up and take a

         19  bow because they are being applauded by these vermin

         20  for removing cell phones from students that can

         21  record and report the perverts and send them back to

         22  the slammer for good.

         23                 As I told Chancellor Klein at the May

         24  15th education Panel Meeting, quote "The real reason

         25  cell phones are being banned is students will use
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          2  them to record and report crimes in and around

          3  schools, not cause crimes. This will undermine you

          4  and Mayor Bloomberg's claim that City schools are

          5  safe and thus cause the City to cough up millions in

          6  legitimate law suits" end quote.

          7                 The inability to protect its most

          8  vulnerable, will reflect negatively in the legacies

          9  of Klein and Bloomberg and make the philanthropists,

         10  who donate to education, have second thoughts about

         11  continuing to donate. Bloomberg and Klein want no

         12  phones even outside of school, where crimes can be

         13  recorded.  And as Council Member Fidler knows there

         14  was a tremendous crime outside of Green Park last

         15  year.  And if that was recorded, all heck would have

         16  broken loose.

         17                 The Daily News, 2005, I don't have

         18  the exact date, "Smile Perv- You're Busted. Girls

         19  snap cell phone photo in subway and run for cops."

         20  These were Catholic school girls from Mary Louis

         21  Academy in Queens.  How come the Catholic schools

         22  allow students to have cell phones?  The same is

         23  also true of Yeshivas that I have spoken to.  Is the

         24  fear of God put into these children not to turn on

         25  the phones in school?  No.  The phones are simply
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          2  not the obstruction the Mayor and Chancellor want us

          3  to believe they are.  Perhaps Dennis Walcott should

          4  start speaking to the principals of these schools.

          5                 Now, we heard a lot before about

          6  statistics.  Well here's something.  Daily News,

          7  March 31, 2005, quote, "The Education Department

          8  conducted a five month pilot program in which

          9  students from 15 high schools were allowed to bring

         10  cell phones to school.  The experiment was

         11  inconclusive said spokesman Keith Kalb" and quote.

         12   "The DOE couldn't prove its case, even with its

         13  history and propensity for spinning numbers, even

         14  with its own numbers."

         15                 Final paragraph.  Finally, wouldn't

         16  it be a real kick in the teeth of democracy if

         17  students in totalitarian countries were allowed to

         18  have cell phones in school, while New York City

         19  school children were not allowed.  How about

         20  democratic countries?  Children should check with

         21  their pen pals.  Newspapers should publish the

         22  letters. Adults should contact the United Nations

         23  Consulates.

         24                 And finally, Chancellor Klein, a

         25  former Federal Prosecutor sworn to uphold the laws
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          2  of this country, the Constitution, the First Ten

          3  Amendments to the Constitution, The Bill of Rights,

          4  well I think he needs a refresher course in the

          5  first and especially the fourth amendments.  That's

          6  my statement.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Alan Gerson for

          8  a quick comment.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ALAN GERSON: I have a

         10  quick question. I want to just pick up on the point

         11  about labelling, which the first witness mentioned

         12  and asked to any of you.  A pedagogical question.

         13  With respect to labelling.  Are we not kind of

         14  teaching a wrong lesson to children and adding, if

         15  you will, psychological stress, by putting them in a

         16  position where they have to choose between desires

         17  of families and these rules of the school, where

         18  they have to choose between what is kind of common

         19  place and what they feel they need for safety.  Are

         20  we not making them with such a precocious all out

         21  ban, feel as if by wanting to do something, which

         22  they feel they are either criminal or they are bad

         23  kids because they are violating rules.  Should we be

         24  concerned about that?  And at the same time are we

         25  not missing an opportunity to teach kids
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          2  responsibility in the use of technology, which is

          3  going to change day- in and day- out. Should we not

          4  be teaching them responsibility in how technology is

          5  used?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.  One

          7  second.  The total four of you have one minute to

          8  respond.

          9                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Well, I think

         10  we are teaching our students a terrible lesson by

         11  having this policy in place, which is so widely

         12  ignored.  We are teaching them just to be scoff

         13  laws.

         14                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I would agree.

         15  I would say what they have done now is don't see,

         16  don't tell.  What it does, it's a mixed message and

         17  I think anyone feels criminal when they are sneaky.

         18  And they are at an age when we are telling them to

         19  be direct and be up front.  And this is not direct,

         20  nor is it up front.

         21                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: You know, the

         22  flip side of that is for my own kids, I have

         23  instructed them to take their cell phones and their

         24  ipods to school. And if they are met with the

         25  scanners, to turn around and come home.  So the
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          2  lesson that I am teaching my kids is that they are

          3  completely empowered to ignore stupid laws.  But I

          4  guess I'm a little outside of the box on that one.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you Mr.

          7  Chair, that was an important point.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.  I

          9  want to thank all of you for coming in.  Our next

         10  panel is Warren Haring from Staten Island Tech PTA,

         11  Jeffany Ellington from Urban Youth Collaborative, is

         12  he here?  And Vivian Matz Levi she is a parent and

         13  educator.

         14                 Please come forward.  Warren, you may

         15  begin.

         16                 MR. HARING: My name is Warren Haring

         17  and I am a member of the Staten Island Tech

         18  Leadership Team. I really just came because I feel

         19  it's a very important issue.

         20                 We are in an age of terrorism.  And

         21  this Administration wants more federal dollars in

         22  New York City because we are a terrorist target.

         23  How can we in good conscience not allow our children

         24  to carry a safety tool and a communication device

         25  called a cell phone.
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          2                 Last September I spent two weeks in

          3  Baton Rouge, Louisiana trying to connect families

          4  together after hurricane Katrina.  Thousands of

          5  children were and some are still separated from

          6  their families, weeks after Katrina.  Parents were

          7  calling the ward daily, trying to find their

          8  children.  Remember there were no homes to go back

          9  to, there were no phones, there were no neighbors,

         10  there were no family members, you know to be

         11  relocated.  Certain people such as the dads were

         12  sent to Tennessee, moms went to Virginia, where were

         13  the children?  Can you just think for a second what

         14  would happen if a dirty bomb went off in New York?

         15  What is going to happen to that neighborhood, that

         16  subway car, your children's school.  Where do

         17  families recongregate, if they survive, or how do

         18  they get together after it.

         19                 In part of that prospect in Baton

         20  Rouge, the main priority of the Red Cross and FEMA

         21  were to try to get families back together with their

         22  children.  They were separated and they could not

         23  get back.  The one thing that children would have,

         24  if they had their cell phones, is families can get,

         25  at least communicate back and forth.  There are
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          2  children that are still separated from their

          3  families because there is no central place to be

          4  able to go back, if there is a major disaster.

          5                 How quickly we forget that we are

          6  war.  That we are a terrorist target.  Do we not

          7  remember the disruption after 9- 11? Many parents

          8  were unable to get home for days after 9- 11.

          9  Remember the bridges were closed, the airports were

         10  shut down, mass transit was stopped and disrupted.

         11  I've set up with my own family disaster plans that

         12  include emergency out- of- state contact numbers

         13  with family members that are out- of- state so there

         14  is a way of contacting.  You know, we have to

         15  remember, the Columbine situation, where children

         16  were rescued and located by use of their cell

         17  phones.

         18                 We have a movie out now, Flight 93,

         19  which tells the passengers fought back against the

         20  hijackers because they knew there were other

         21  hijacking.  We have to remember these are safety

         22  tools that it is very important that they have

         23  access to.  I am fully in agreement that they should

         24  not use it during class.  But, our own PTA was

         25  unanimous in that the children should be using these
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          2  phones. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. In

          4  spite of all your examples, the Administration sat

          5  here and told us we were doing this for convenience.

          6    It boggles the mind.  You are absolutely right.

          7  And you are representing the Staten Island --?

          8                 MR. HARING: Well, the Staten Island

          9  Leadership Meeting, is what I am a member of.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. Good.

         11  Next.

         12                 MS. LEVI: My name is Vivian Matz

         13  Levi, I am a parent and an educator of Per Diem

         14  Substitute Teachers, so I am in schools all over the

         15  City between K through 12.

         16                 I first want to speak as a parent.

         17  My son, who is in 10th grade right now, I have a

         18  daughter who just graduated. They both have been in

         19  the public school system and they came home with a

         20  letter indicating that they were going to be spot

         21  checked for weapons and that cell phones would be

         22  confiscated.  This was really the first time -- I

         23  mean our school, the New York City Lab School has a,

         24  you know, if you don't take out your cell phone,

         25  it's not an issue.  I mean, they don't have those
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          2  kind of problems, that they do at impact schools.

          3  So it hasn't been an issue.  My son was very, very

          4  upset and talk about emotionally upset, he was very

          5  upset, he was very psychologically disturbed.  He

          6  said he and his friends were not go into the school

          7  if they saw that metal detectors were going to be

          8  there.

          9                 As a parent, I didn't know to say

         10  because I wanted, you know, if you tell him not to.

         11  They have school, you know and I was trying to

         12  figure out alternatives and it put me in an

         13  uncomfortable situation.  He is not an activist, but

         14  he is slowly becoming one.  Those students he saw

         15  from LaGuardia are forming a student union.  They

         16  want to start to have a voice in the City. So, I

         17  mean that could be a positive thing that comes out

         18  of this. But on the other hand, I'm in the schools

         19  all the time and I've never had an issue with the

         20  cell phones.  You know, even if I've seen one, it's

         21  not a big deal.  Ipods may be more than not but

         22  usually they just put them away.  As a sub I am used

         23  to students challenging me quite a bit and I see the

         24  worst of behavior.  More issues I have trouble

         25  dealing with are things being thrown across the
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          2  room, like pencils and pens, is far more distraction

          3  than any technology.

          4                 I think that there is a power

          5  struggle going on right now between the

          6  Administration and the Council, which by the way I

          7  applaud you.  Clearly he's going to lose because

          8  there are a lot of parents and a lot of kids with

          9  cell phones and it's motivating people to be very

         10  upset.  It feels like it's violating my

         11  Constitutional Rights and that of my kids.  It's

         12  going to affect the way the middle class views the

         13  public school system, so that is going to impact the

         14  City economy.  We can start bringing in bigger

         15  dialogues, at which I may end up doing as I am going

         16  now for a graduate degree in Public Administration.

         17                 You know, I have been in the schools,

         18  I'm talking to the kids and it's true, they are

         19  feeling like the totally dumped on and you know this

         20  is sending a lot of bad messages, which I really

         21  don't thing our City wants to do.  I also teach

         22  creativity and innovation at Columbia Business

         23  School to senior executives.  And to tell our

         24  students that cell phones and communication is not

         25  for them, until they graduate or only off hours, is
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          2  really sending a very, very bad message in terms of

          3  how we are going to be perceived in the global

          4  economy right now, which really makes me wonder what

          5  the Bloomberg Administration is up to. I have spoken

          6  with two of his executive assistants and I know he

          7  needs to be in contact with his family or at least

          8  know what they are doing at all times, whether or

          9  not they know he knows.  So there is something going

         10  on and this is a concern.

         11                 I've been supportive of the Mayor.

         12  I've spent time with him, while he's had his

         13  portrait painted and I really don't know what's

         14  going on.  But, I think this is bigger than a lot of

         15  us.  I think that it's time to turn back the clock

         16  to go to the 20th Century, which is not going to

         17  happen.  So despite his, or --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Please finish

         19  up.

         20                 MS. LEVI: Yes. So despite the

         21  resistance to finding a solution, a creative

         22  solution.  I'm not advocating a particular solution,

         23  but that really needs to be conversation that is

         24  going to have to come about eventually, whether

         25  there is law suits. I support you in what you are
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          2  doing and I am going to try to do the best I can to

          3  organize grass roots effort.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you very

          5  much.  I thank the both of you for coming in.  We

          6  appreciate it.  We are trying to just move along

          7  because we have several other panels. Diane Park,

          8  LAB Parents Association. Mary Cash, New York City

          9  LAB School PA, Christopher Durusinni, Teachers Prep

         10  and Darlene Fein, Public Middle School Parent.

         11  Please come forward.  And you may begin. Diane, you

         12  may begin. Diane?

         13                 MS. FEIN: I'm Darlene.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So Diane is not

         15  here. So whoever is second, the next person, go.

         16                 MR. DURUSINNI: Good afternoon

         17  Chairman Vallone, Chairman Jackson and all the

         18  members of the Public Safety and Education

         19  Committee. My name is Christopher Durusinni,  I

         20  started high school in Brooklyn.  I am on the

         21  Student Advisory Council and I am on the

         22  Chancellor's Student Advisory Council.

         23                 For one thing, I find it appalling

         24  that we are having a Hearing today or something that

         25  is basically a no- brainer. We need our cell phones
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          2  for the safety and betterment of our students.  This

          3  bill should be passed for two distinct reasons,

          4  communication and safety. Communication is

          5  everything in today's world. There are students with

          6  part time jobs and internships, which take place

          7  after school and after school programs.  These

          8  students need a cell phone so it is possible for

          9  them to be informed of what is going on before they

         10  reach their place of business.  And as for after

         11  school program, their parents need to know of any

         12  changes that are going on or just some need to know

         13  that their child is okay.

         14                 For the subject of safety, there are

         15  many ways as you know and as you heard.  The parents

         16  need to know that the child has come to school

         17  safely and coming home safely.  These after school

         18  program last until 8:00 or 9:00 o'clock in the

         19  night.  I'm a person who actually carries his cell

         20  phone to school due to the fact I participate in

         21  many programs. I have to call my mother to let her

         22  know what's going on and I am coming home, or I'll

         23  be late for dinner.

         24                 To hear that Chancellor Klein and

         25  Mayor Bloomberg are not willing to comply or work
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          2  with the City Council on this piece of legislation

          3  is highly appalling.  To hear the Deputy Mayor's

          4  comments that they are not willing to budge, sounds

          5  like a four- year- old child not willing to give up

          6  his candy.  However, in stead of doing away with

          7  cell phones altogether, we should once again work

          8  together to the point where you could bring cell

          9  phones to school, have or not use them in school and

         10  if they are used then it's up to the Administration

         11  to take those phones away.

         12                 The legislation does not state that

         13  cell phones have to be on, once again.  The

         14  Chancellor's and Mayor's primary argument is that

         15  they cause a distraction, if used to organize fights

         16  and because cameras are used to take inappropriate

         17  pictures.

         18                 Once again, the Intro does not say at

         19  all that the phones have to be on.  You have to be

         20  accessible to students in case of emergencies.

         21                 My last comment.  They say that

         22  safety is primary for children.  With this ban on

         23  cell phones they are overriding that safety and

         24  saying that everything else becomes before a child's

         25  safety.  Is that what the Department of Education is
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          2  trying to avail to us students and parents. Isn't

          3  safety that important, but just education?  How can

          4  you educate a child, when the child is not living at

          5  all.  How can you educate a child when the child is

          6  not present.  Cell phones propose a level of comfort

          7  and safety for the parent, as well as anybody that

          8  comes in contact with that child.  What you do today

          9  will ultimately affect what will happen tomorrow.

         10  It was said before about a dollar only being spent

         11  once. We fought together for in CFE to get our $13

         12  billion for capital and expense money. Why can we

         13  not do the same for this minor detail?  I'd like to

         14  end with that.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you young

         16  man.  You represent all of the other fellow students

         17  very well.  Next.

         18                 MS. CASH: I'm Mary Cash.  I have a

         19  child at New York City LAB School and another child

         20  in a special education school whose eight.  I came

         21  today -- I have a written statement, but basically I

         22  came today because my child, on the last day of

         23  school last year was mugged on his way home from

         24  school.  And it was just a God send that he had his

         25  cell phone with him.  He was able to call me.  He
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          2  was able to call 911.  I was able to calm him on the

          3  phone.

          4                 He encountered the probably 18 to 22

          5  year old person who had robbed him.  Five minutes

          6  after the incident, got terrified and ran away.  If

          7  he didn't have his cell phone with him, I don't know

          8  I would have been able to come and meet him or how

          9  the police ever would have located him.  You know,

         10  this was a frightening enough experience.  I really

         11  don't even want to think about reconstructing it

         12  without the cell phone, as part of it.

         13                 A cell phone truly can make the

         14  difference between a very frightening or

         15  disconcerting or uncomfortable experience and an

         16  absolute tragedy and this must be recognized.  They

         17  have all these specialized schools now that they are

         18  encouraging kids to go to.  They are travelling so

         19  far.  They are early in the morning leaving their

         20  houses, getting home late at night.  It is the

         21  responsibility of the Department of Education, who

         22  is starting these schools and encouraging them to

         23  take the responsibility to allow kids to get there

         24  to the best of their ability, safely and home.  And

         25  I also, as the parent of a special education
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          2  student, as well, something I didn't put in my

          3  testimony, that just sends terror through me.  More

          4  and more of these special education kids are being

          5  put into main- stream programs.  Every child with an

          6  individual education plan, I hope is getting a

          7  medical exception if they are not traveling to and

          8  from school on a special education bus.  Do not make

          9  special education parents go through more procedures

         10  and go to more meetings so their children can have

         11  this crucial tool on their way to and from school.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well thank you

         14  Mary. I appreciate you coming in and listening to

         15  the testimony and giving your specific comments

         16  about your son and his situation.  Next.

         17                 MS. FEIN: Hi, my name is Darlene

         18  Fein. I am a public school parent.  My child is in

         19  middle school now and I want to thank all the

         20  Council people for doing this.

         21                 I just want you to know, when my

         22  daughter was in fifth grade, the only way I would

         23  let her walk home from school is because I bought

         24  her a cell phone.  We didn't even know that they had

         25  this policy because all the kids who had the cell
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          2  phones, they turn them off and the teacher collected

          3  them and at the end of the day she gave them to the

          4  kids.  So then when my child went to middle school,

          5  the same thing, as long as the phones were turned

          6  off, that was okay.

          7                 This such a safety issue, as you all

          8  know and you have your children and we are

          9  representing our children here.  It doesn't make any

         10  sense to equate cell phones with weapons, they are

         11  totally different things.  It's like they are

         12  treating our children as second class citizens

         13  without rights and they don't have the right to

         14  defend themselves.  I think it is a deterrent and it

         15  can help somebody to have communication where they

         16  can call 911.

         17                 And also, I really have to know that

         18  the people who were here from the Mayor's Office,

         19  when they were not speaking they were using their

         20  Blackberry continuously throughout this meeting,

         21  which I thought was very disrespectful that here

         22  they are bringing this up about electronic devices

         23  and they are using theirs.

         24                 You say about solutions, I think that

         25  we should have something maybe make it simple.  If
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          2  your child has a home room class, you turn your cell

          3  phones off, have the parents sign a waiver, the

          4  teacher is going to collect and that the Board of

          5  Education is not responsible for it and the teacher

          6  will give it back at the end of the day.  That's one

          7  solution I have.

          8                 I think the idea, well first of all I

          9  am sorry, I just want to say too that there is so

         10  many things going on too. Like even tonight there is

         11  a Community Board Six meeting going on. They want to

         12  make resolution, I know Norman Seigel's office they

         13  are doing something, there are so many things going

         14  on and it's a shame, I was at the last meeting and

         15  here a meeting today and hearing Dennis Walcott

         16  again.  It's like it's not a discussion and I don't

         17  see the purpose of that.  I don't even know why he

         18  came if he still has the same position and it is

         19  supposed to be democracy and they are supposed to

         20  listen to the parental involvement, which they don't

         21  do.  The parents are very concerned.  This is such

         22  an important issue to everybody to know to be in

         23  touch with your children and to be in touch with

         24  your families.

         25                 The last thing that I want to say, is
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          2  that the middle school, where my child goes now,

          3  that I heard that during 9 11 that the kids asked

          4  the principal what to do, could they use their

          5  phones and they said yes, please do that.  Because

          6  there was no way to get in touch with your school

          7  when this happens, phones are so busy, you didn't

          8  know what was going on. And the idea that people did

          9  have cell phones, they could communicate with their

         10  families during this tragedy.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Just a quick

         12  comment as far as the Blackberry. I have my

         13  Blackberry and quite frankly considering that I have

         14  a lot of things to do, I use it as a communication

         15  tool also in order to communicate with my staff

         16  about certain things. I was trying to text my staff

         17  that I am starving, I haven't eaten all day and they

         18  haven't responded to me, so I left here to go into

         19  the back to call them and said, I need some lunch.

         20  Because I have a meeting immediately that started at

         21  2:00 o'clock, I would not be able to go to lunch and

         22  I needed to communicate with them that I am starving

         23  and I can't focus when I don't eat.

         24                 MS. FEIN: No, I think it's very

         25  important, but just as they were saying, that it's
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          2  not, they are being very hypocritical.  They have

          3  their devices.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I think that we

          5  all know that these are tools in today's 2006 and

          6  you know, no one wants our children to be able to

          7  use cell phones during school hours.  But, to say

          8  that they are not allowed to have them with the

          9  batteries removed and put away, we don't think that

         10  this is reasonable.  And we are asking for a

         11  reasonable compromise in order to address this. It

         12  seems as though the Mayor is not willing to do that.

         13    And young man, you make us all proud in

         14  representing the students at the high school level

         15  and you said you are on what committee or what

         16  panel?

         17                 MR. DURUSINNI: I'm on the Regional

         18  Student Advisory Council on the Chancellor's Student

         19  Advisor Council.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The Chancellor's

         21  Student Advisory Council. Well, has the Chancellor's

         22  Student Advisory Council advised the Chancellor on

         23  this issue?

         24                 MR. DURUSINNI: To tell you the truth,

         25  I spoke to the Chancellor myself about the random
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          2  scanning, about how that can cause a lot of chaos. I

          3  talked to the Chancellor about the cell phone,

          4  that's one thing we have been working on since we

          5  started. So, for me I'm grateful that we are

          6  actually able to go through with the process of

          7  permitting cell phones into the school, because

          8  remember we are not here to have them on, we are

          9  here to have them accessible to us.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.  But I

         11  mean did your group take a position formally, did

         12  you meet and say we feel x and did you communicate

         13  that to the Chancellor and to the Mayor?

         14                 MR. DURUSINNI: We communicated that

         15  to the Chancellor.  We have not been able to speak

         16  that to the Mayor.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.  But so,

         18  the Chancellor's Student Advisory Council took a

         19  position.

         20                 MR. DURUSINNI: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what was

         22  their position.

         23                 MR. DURUSINNI: The position was that

         24  we desperately need cell phones inside the schools.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And how many
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          2  students on this Chancellor's Student Advisory

          3  Council?

          4                 MR. DURUSINNI: About 20.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: About 20. And

          6  these are high school or intermediate?

          7                 MR. DURUSINNI: Yes. High school

          8  students.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what was the

         10  Chancellor's response?

         11                 MR. DURUSINNI: The response that I

         12  have been hearing, there are articles and

         13  everything, they cause disruption, they are being

         14  used to cheat on exams, and they are used to take

         15  inappropriate pictures and Council Member Fidler

         16  said before, they can use an office phone if they

         17  wanted to really call and organize a fight so you

         18  can't eliminate -- by eliminating cell phones you

         19  are not eliminating the problem, you are just

         20  causing more chaos. And instead of working for laws

         21  for revision, they fail to do so, which is causing

         22  people to sneak in phones, which should not be

         23  allowed to happen.  We shouldn't need to sneak in

         24  phones, we shouldn't have to sneak in anything, they

         25  just need their's to work.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well thank you

          3  all for coming in.  And our last panel is Donald

          4  Smith, he represents his family, Lynn Paltron, her

          5  twins family working mom, she is here.  Vanessa

          6  Mazursky, a parent of public school children,

          7  Deborah Brunson, Educator's Against Academic

          8  Genocide and Educators Parents and Youth of Color

          9  and Jacob Morris.  If anyone else wants to speak on

         10  this subject, please come forward to the desk.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: While they are

         12  arranging that panel, we will be joined by David

         13  Yassky, who would like to make a brief statement on

         14  this issue.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you

         16  very much Chair Vallone.  You know, I just want to

         17  add my voice to what I am sure has been a loud

         18  chorus here.  The Department of Education is just

         19  wrong on this.  They are just plain wrong.  You

         20  know, this past weekend, in my District, I have a

         21  parent of a middle school telling me, this is the

         22  last straw.  If this isn't reversed, I'm moving to

         23  the suburbs because I don't want to have my child,

         24  my 12- year- old go on the subway to school and back

         25  and not be able to call me on the cell phone.  And
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          2  that is the reality of what parents want and there

          3  is just simply no reason to tell them no, on this

          4  one.

          5                 It's not like it use to be.  A lot of

          6  middle schoolers go long distances to the school we

          7  are talking about, 11 year- old, 12- year- old

          8  children and it's not just about safety, it's for a

          9  whole host of reasons.  Parents, if the subway isn't

         10  working, as it often isn't, they want their child to

         11  be able to call and say, the train is having a

         12  problem, I'm going to be late.  If the child is

         13  going to go to somebody else house after school,

         14  they would not be able to call and tell them that.

         15                 This is what the parents want their

         16  children to be able to do and there is simply no

         17  reason to say to no.  It's hard enough to be raising

         18  a family in New York City without the Department

         19  making it even harder on them.  So I certainly hope

         20  the Department will listen to the very good sense

         21  and wisdom of you, my colleagues here on this

         22  Committee and the people that testified here today.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you

         25  Council Member Yassky. Appreciate you coming in and
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          2  lending your voice to this. And I don't know if you

          3  are aware -- Council Member Yassky, during the

          4  course of the Hearing, several other members signed

          5  on, so we have approximately 40 members that have

          6  signed on to this piece of bill.

          7                 With that, I would like to go forward

          8  with I guess Jacob Morris and Deborah Brunson, and

          9  are you Vanessa? Maria.  In that order please.

         10                 MR. MORRIS: Thank you Chairman.  Well

         11  basically there is a technological solution and it's

         12  pretty easy.  It just takes DOE cooperation.  And I

         13  was moved by several of the members of the Council's

         14  questions, the Deputy Mayor, in regard to would they

         15  participate in a task force for a solution.  And

         16  they flat out said no.  You know that's where it's

         17  at.  We are dealing with the most arrogant, the most

         18  discourteous, the most insulated school district in

         19  the whole United States.

         20                 I've spoken with marketing executives

         21  at Verizon, at Singular and Sprint.  They would be

         22  delighted to provide a program for parents where,

         23  because there are all sorts of plans, and cell

         24  phones get turned on and off all the time, if you

         25  don't pay your bill and they turn them back on when
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          2  you pay your bill.  So there is no technological

          3  area of barrier to this program being instituted.

          4  Only DOE cooperation is necessary.  Very simple.  If

          5  DOE cooperated and said, cell phones that are

          6  certified with this program are allowed, for

          7  possession in the schools, and the other ones

          8  aren't, then this whole problem would go away.  It

          9  would be a very popular telephone that parents would

         10  buy for their kids. Because it would be authorized

         11  for possession in the school system.

         12                 But it takes DOE working with the

         13  cell phone providers, with the Council, with the

         14  community to come up with this solution.  Then this

         15  could go away and we could deal with other issues

         16  like our very high drop- out rate, the math and

         17  science achievement gap and other things that we

         18  really need to focus on.

         19                 I know, they said that they can do

         20  this. The cell phone providers absolutely can do

         21  this if Members of the Council would care to pursue

         22  that.  Then I know that the cell phone providers

         23  would be responsive.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Can you get us,

         25  whoever you spoke to about that, and whatever

                                                            240

          1  COMMITTEES ON PUBLIC SAFETY AND EDUCATION

          2  information you have about that in writing because

          3  it is something we would like to take a look at if

          4  that technology exists.

          5                 MR. MORRIS: Singular, Verizon and

          6  Sprint are I think clearly credible.  I would be

          7  delighted to work --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Can you get a

          9  response in writing regarding proposals they have

         10  for that.  That would be great and forward it over.

         11                 MR. MORRIS: The key aspect, that the

         12  marketing executives brought up was, that this won't

         13  work unless DOE cooperates.  However, if you pass

         14  this legislation, they might be motivated.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.  Next

         16  please.

         17                 MS. BRUNSON: Good afternoon, my name

         18  is Deborah Brunson.  One  of the first things I

         19  would like to say is that Mayor Bloomberg and

         20  Chancellor Klein demonstrate increasing hostility

         21  toward the students of this City with each --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Deborah, can you

         23  please just move closer to the mic.  He turned it up

         24  because you were not loud enough, just move closer,

         25  speak a little louder.  Thank you.
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          2                 MS. BRUNSON: Mayor Bloomberg and

          3  Chancellor Klein demonstrate increasing hostility

          4  toward the students of this City with each new

          5  policy they introduce.  Policies that are

          6  criminalizing students rather than addressing any

          7  real academic need.  Because students are young, it

          8  does not mean that they are not responsible

          9  individuals.

         10                 I also would like to comment that I

         11  realize principals have to tow the party line or

         12  risk no longer being principals.  While leadership

         13  courses are taught, it has been made apparent here

         14  that the ability to lead is not always the outcome.

         15  The Chancellor's Regulation allows uniformity and

         16  equity.  I am a clear example of the fact that the

         17  Department of Education policy are only uniformity

         18  and equitable on paper.  I was terminated because I

         19  am a quality educator.

         20                 Reality is, if adults are vulnerable

         21  to danger, students are vulnerable to danger.  I was

         22  the person who just would not believe that I would

         23  ever pick up a cell phone or own one until I found

         24  that I did have the need for one.  Therefore as I

         25  said, as an adult, and I am very capable of handling
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          2  any situation that comes my way.  But most children

          3  can't.  They are not able to, for instance, speak up

          4  for themselves.  Everyone is not always the fighter.

          5    Everybody is not always one who can talk

          6  themselves out of a situation.  Cell phones allows

          7  students a certain amount of protection and they

          8  have to be able to get in touch with people who can,

          9  for instance, come to their rescue and that's what a

         10  cell phone provides in my opinion.  A cell phone is

         11  definitely something that is a new technology and

         12  some people are not use to technology but they are

         13  increasingly finding that it is a technology that

         14  they need.  And definitely students are finding that

         15  they need this on a daily basis.

         16                 I had a niece who was attending high

         17  school out in Queens.  She lives up in Harlem about

         18  158th Street.  That is a very long distance to

         19  travel with those of you who are not aware, Ales

         20  Martin (phonetic) is almost on the boarder line with

         21  Long Island. So she also wanted to participate on

         22  the basketball team.  I was her transportation from

         23  the Bronx and I live basically on the borderline

         24  with Yonkers.  So, again this is a distance to

         25  travel. So again, the cell phone is definitely a
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          2  necessity because of the use of a cell phone I was

          3  able to get my niece home in a timely manner so she

          4  could make it to school the next day.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.  Last

          6  but not least, Maria Ortiz. Maria.

          7                 MS. ORTIZ: Hi.  I'm a parent, to

          8  children in need, public schools.  One in Middle

          9  School, and one in high school and I could see how

         10  cell phones could be disruptive in any situation

         11  where your having, you know conducting a class.  On

         12  the other hand there could be measures that could be

         13  taken to avoid this disruption and the benefits of

         14  having the cell phone, which not to be used in class

         15  of course but to be used as many specified here in

         16  terms of safety and for the child to be able to

         17  communicate with the family.

         18            Now in both of my kids situation, the cell

         19  phones have been around for a while now and measures

         20  have been taken in the schools to avoid the

         21  disruption and I kind of think these are the type of

         22  things that could be implemented.  In one of the

         23  schools what they have done is the cell phones are

         24  not allowed to be taken from their back packs and if

         25  the cell phone is found in the child's hand, it is
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          2  taken away and the parent has to come and pick it

          3  up. And then when this happens once, this never

          4  happens again.  You know maybe they were going

          5  through their books or something and it happened to

          6  fall out or something. But in the other school the

          7  cell phone is put into a container and at the end of

          8  the day the child picks up his cell phone. So these

          9  are ways that are really very appropriate to be used

         10  in these situations and it has not been a disruption

         11  and these are the kind of things that the Chancellor

         12  and the Mayor should consider, before they start

         13  this ruling that there should be no cell phones.

         14  Especially at this day and age and also being that

         15  children are further and further away from the

         16  house.

         17                 I really feel very distraught over

         18  the idea the Chancellor who has put in a whole

         19  program to implement parental involvement in the

         20  schools is not even willing to have a dialogue and

         21  to be able to maintain his commitment.  This will

         22  show the parents that he is actually committed to

         23  parental involvement so I hope that he will

         24  reconsider. In most of the schools here I think that

         25  have seen this happen, it has worked very well.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well I want to

          4  thank you all for coming in.  We have heard a lot of

          5  testimony today. The majority of the testimony from

          6  advocates and parents against the Mayor's cell phone

          7  ban we had Deputy Mayor Dennis Walcott and Terrance

          8  Tolbert, Director of Intergovernment Affairs and

          9  three principals who testified in favor of the ban,

         10  but everyone else, to the best of my knowledge

         11  testified against it.  My colleague, Peter Vallone,

         12  Jr. Let me thank you for co- chairing this meeting

         13  with me. I am starving, I'm so hungry.  Let me say

         14  to all of the staff, I know that you Peter and the

         15  staff are just as hungry as I am.  I want to thank

         16  all of them for preparing us to have this long drawn

         17  out Hearing today and this is the first step in a

         18  process of us exercising our right as a legislative

         19  body to move forward with making the law.  So thank

         20  you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me echo

         22  those sentiments. Thank you.  Thank you Chair

         23  Jackson for your work, and especially the staff,

         24  Jennifer Culp, and Jerod, Jennine Ventura and Rob

         25  and everyone else who has done all the work to allow
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          2  us to sit here and look reasonably good.  So thank

          3  you all and let's go eat.  This meeting of the

          4  Public Safety Committee and Education Committee is

          5  adjourned.

          6                 (Whereupon the following written

          7  testimony was read into the record.)

          8

          9

         10  Written Testimony Of:

         11  Gale A. Brewer

         12  Council Member, District 6

         13  Manhattan

         14

         15

         16  May 11, 2006

         17

         18

         19  Mr. Joel Klein

         20  Chancellor

         21  NYC Department of Education

         22  52 Chambers Street

         23  New York, NY 10007

         24

         25                 Dear Chancellor Klein:
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          2                 I write on behalf of parents in my

          3  community who have expressed concern over the

          4  consequences of the school safety initiative

          5  announced recently by the Department of Education

          6  (DOE) and the Police Department.

          7                 I understand that the initiative

          8  authorizes and directs the Police Department and the

          9  Division of School Safety to conduct random searches

         10  at public schools throughout the city, using

         11  portable scanners that are set up at the entrance of

         12  the school throughout the school day. While

         13  subjecting students to random searches at school and

         14  requiring them to pass through electronic scanners

         15  to enter their school community creates a negative

         16  environment for young people, I recognize the need

         17  to prevent students from bringing potentially

         18  harmful items to school.

         19                 The consequence of primary concern to

         20  parents in my community is that students who

         21  previously carried cell phones to school will now

         22  have their phones confiscated if they attend a

         23  school on the day that it has been selected for

         24  search. I understand that currently students are not

         25  allowed to possess a cell phone in any DOE building,
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          2  but I also know that many schools have not enforced

          3  this policy as long as the phones are not seen or

          4  heard.

          5                 Many parents trust their children to

          6  take cell phones to school as a safety measure in

          7  the post-9/11 world. Many parents also use their

          8  students' cell phones to stay in communication with

          9  their children in an increasingly complicated city.

         10  The potential for cell phones to become a

         11  distraction in school is problematic, and they can

         12  add to an already overwhelming number of discipline

         13  issues facing teachers and administrators. However,

         14  many schools have been able to deal with these

         15  challenges effectively.

         16                 I understand that the Chancellor's

         17  Regulation that the DOE has used to govern student

         18  possession of cell phones does not specifically

         19  mention cell phones, as it has been in place since

         20  1988 without modification. In the interest of

         21  updating the regulation, and amending it to fit into

         22  modern local communities, I request that the

         23  citywide policy on student possession of cell phones

         24  be changed to give School Leadership Teams (SLT) the

         25  authority to develop a policy that is best for their
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          2  community.

          3                 Due to significant variation in

          4  schools and limited policy alternatives with regard

          5  to student possession and use of cell phones in

          6  school, granting SLTs the authority to set policy on

          7  this issue makes the most sense. The suggestion that

          8  cell phone lockers be placed in schools seems to be

          9  too time consuming and costly, and scrambling cell

         10  phone signals within the school zone would create a

         11  safety hazard in the event of an emergency.

         12                 Thank you for your attention to this

         13  matter. If you have any questions, please contact

         14  Tyler Smith on my staff or me at (212) 788-6975

         15

         16

         17  Written Testimony Of:

         18  Senator Thomas K. Duane

         19  29th Senatorial District

         20  New York State Senate

         21

         22

         23  New York City Council

         24  Joint Public Safety and Education Committee

         25  Hearing on the Department of Education's Policy
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          2  Banning

          3  Cell Phones in Public Schools

          4  June 14, 2006

          5

          6                 My name is Thomas K. Duane and I

          7  represent New York State's 29th Senatorial District.

          8  Last week I introduced Senate Bill Number 8128,

          9  which would prohibit schools from confiscating

         10  students' cell phones and prohibit students from

         11  using their cell phones at school.

         12                 I salute my colleagues in government,

         13  Councilmembers Lew Fidler and Tish James, for

         14  respectively sponsoring Intro. 351, which would

         15  allow New York City schoolchildren to carry cell

         16  phones to and from school for safety purposes, and

         17  Resolution 342, which calls on the City Department

         18  of Education to place a moratorium on the

         19  confiscation of students' cell phones during random

         20  searches of middle and high schools. I encourage the

         21  entire Council to support these measures. I also

         22  understand that Councilmember James has introduced

         23  another resolution supporting State legislation

         24  including my Senate bill, and I thank her for that.

         25                 As you know, in 2006, many New York
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          2  City families depend on cell phones to ascertain

          3  that students have arrived safety at school, after

          4  school when plans of a family member may change, and

          5  anytime during an emergency crisis.

          6                 Naturally, cell phones must not be

          7  used in the classroom, and it is important to

          8  discourage that from happening. Some supporters of

          9  the ban have suggested that cell phones make it

         10  possible for students to cheat on exams and spread

         11  rumors. While surely it is not technology that's to

         12  blame for these unfortunate phenomena, we should

         13  ensure that cell phones are not used to facilitate

         14  these behaviors. As a volunteer teacher of a Civics

         15  class at the Institute for Collaborative Education,

         16  I'm able to remind my students to turn off their

         17  phones before class - but I know that may not always

         18  be enough. We need a better solution.

         19                 However, the current ban on cell

         20  phones in schools is not a solution. It is avoiding

         21  the problem, and creating a new one.

         22                 Mobile phone technology is here to

         23  stay, and now it's time to come together and find a

         24  more constructive answer. Of course, we're not the

         25  first ones to confront this issue. In Portland,
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          2  Oregon, individual principals are allowed to develop

          3  cell phone policies tailored to their schools, and

          4  many of them simply reserve the right to confiscate

          5  any phone used improperly. In suburban Philadelphia,

          6  a school district repealed a cell phone ban after

          7  realizing it was unenforceable and anachronistic -

          8  instead it employs a loose "don't-ask-don't-tell"

          9  policy. In England, more than 80 schools already use

         10  brand new technology that broadcasts a warning

         11  message when any mobile phone use is detected. I

         12  certainly hope an all-out ban isn't the only policy

         13  New Yorkers can come up with.

         14                 In fact, I know it's not. The

         15  Association of New York City Education Councils, a

         16  parent advocacy organization, is sponsoring a

         17  contest for the very same students affected by this

         18  ban to suggest a better solution to the problem.

         19  While the students' ideas may not be the answers

         20  we're looking for, the innovative alternatives they

         21  have already come up with represent far more

         22  creativity in trying to solve this real problem than

         23  we've seen from the Department of Education.

         24                 The Mayor and Schools Chancellor have

         25  said they will not withdraw the ban. I stand with
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          2  parents, students, and teachers, as well as many of

          3  my government colleagues, in urging the City Council

          4  to pass Resolution 342 and Intro 351 in order to

          5  compel them to do so.

          6

          7

          8  Written Testimony Of:

          9  Diane Park

         10  20 Waterside Plaza

         11  27B, NYC 10010

         12

         13                 My daughter is an eleven year old in

         14  the sixth grade. Since the city does not provide

         15  school bus service to pick her up from home and

         16  deposit her safely at school, I am forced to send

         17  her to school on public transportation.

         18                 Recently, I checked the New York

         19  State Sex Offender Registry for my home zip code, as

         20  well as the zip code for my daughter's school, and

         21  the surrounding zip codes on her route. There are

         22  more than 100 registered level-three sex offenders

         23  in these 7 zip codes alone! (A significant number of

         24  whom are residing at the men's shelter at Bellevue

         25  Hospital). And the mayor and Chancellor expect me to
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          2  send my daughter to school without a cell phone!

          3                 The cell phone is VITAL to the safety

          4  of my daughter as she travels to and from school on

          5  public transportation in a city on high alert for

          6  terrorist threats where literally hundreds of

          7  pedophiles are also roaming the streets. With her

          8  cell phone, my daughter calls me when she gets to

          9  the bus stop, again when she gets on the bus, when

         10  she leaves the bus and when she arrives safely at

         11  school. If she runs into problems along the way, she

         12  has the cell phone to contact me. If necessary, she

         13  could also contract emergency personnel such as the

         14  Police Department. Recently, she and I were on the

         15  M14 when a truck slammed into the back of our bus.

         16  We were forced to exit the bus at the place that was

         17  not a designated bus stop and make our way to

         18  another bus stop. If my daughter had been there

         19  alone, she would have definitely needed my guidance,

         20  via cell phone. The cell phone enables us to

         21  communicate with each other when there is any number

         22  of unanticipated changes in logistics.

         23                 I wrote a letter to the Chancellor's

         24  office and received a response in which his

         25  "Strategic Response Group" indicated that if there
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          2  is an emergency during the school day, parents can

          3  always reach their child through the principal

          4  office's. As a parent whose child's elementary

          5  school on 9/11 was P.S. 234, located on the corner

          6  of Greenwich and Chambers, only blocks from the

          7  burning Twin Towers, I can tell you from direct

          8  experience that reaching the school in an emergency

          9  is not always possible. I tried FRANTICALLY to get

         10  through, along with hundreds of other parents who

         11  were also calling simultaneously, only to get a busy

         12  signal. And what if there is some emergency within

         13  the school itself, such as the Columbine shootings?

         14  Without a cell phone, children could literally be

         15  trapped.

         16                 My child is a great kid and an

         17  excellent student. How horrible of the mayor and

         18  Chancellor to make her feel like a common criminal,

         19  frisking her and confiscating her personal property.

         20  Good kids are being forced to break the rules

         21  because parents are not willing to take the risk of

         22  sending their kids to school without cell phones.

         23                 The Mayor and Chancellor need to be

         24  able to differentiate between cell phone usage and

         25  cell phone possession. If specific kids are abusing
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          2  cell phones, those cell phones should be taken away.

          3  But I cannot accept a policy that puts all NYC

          4  children in jeopardy. The current policy must be

          5  modified so that our children can continue to bring

          6  necessary cell phones to school.

          7                 Testimony of Diane Park, Parent of

          8  Public Middle School student.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 2:39 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 14th day of June 2006.
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